%

\ 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Vs

Notice of meeting of

Audit & Governance Committee

To: Councillors B Watson (Chair), Brooks (Vice-Chair),
Bowgett, Jamieson-Ball, Scott, Kirk and R Watson
Date: Monday, 21 December 2009
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: The Guildhall, York
AGENDA
Note: ‘

As agreed at previous meetings, the Chief Internal Auditor and
District Auditor (Audit Commission) will be present in the
meeting room from 5:00 pm to provide a private briefing for
Members, if required.

1. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda.

2. Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting

during consideration of the following:

Annex B to Agenda ltem 10 (Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter
Three 2009/10) on the grounds that it contains information relating
to negotiations in connection with a labour relations matter arising

between the authority and employees of the authority.

information is classed as exempt under paragraph 4 of Schedule
12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as revised
by The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order

2006).

YORKPRIDE

www.york.gov.uk



Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Audit &
Governance Committee held on 4 November 2009.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for
registering is 5:00 pm on Friday, 18 December 2009.

Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 (Pages 7 - 70)

This report presents to Audit & Governance Committee the Audit
Commission’s final reports for the 2009 Comprehensive Area
Assessment.

Response to Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009
(including Improvement Plan 2009/10 Update) (Pages 71 - 82)

This report provides an initial response to the findings highlighted in
the 2009 Comprehensive Area Assessment reports. The response
includes the delivery of the 2009/10 milestones contained within the
Council’s Improvement Plan as approved by Executive on 21 July
20009.

Asset Management Report 2008/09 - Audit Commission
(Pages 83 - 102)

This report invites Members to consider the Asset Management
Report produced by the Audit Commission as part of the 2008/09
audit, which reviews the Council’s arrangements for a strategic
approach to asset management, the management of assets to
deliver value for money and partnership and community
involvement in asset management.

Asset Management - The Way Forward (Pages 103 - 112)

This report responds to the Audit Commission’s report in the
previous item on the Council’'s performance in asset management,
and to a national report issued by the Audit Commission in June
2008, and outlines the objectives of the Council’'s approved
Property Blueprint included in the More for York programme.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Data Quality Policy - Progress Report (Pages 113 - 118)

This report outlines the progress made towards implementing and
embedding a data quality policy across the Council and provides
feedback from the Audit Commission on the Council’s Data Quality
Arrangements under Use of Resources Key Lines of Enquiry
(KLOE) 2.2, as part of the Organisational Assessment.

Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter Three 2009/10 (Pages 119
- 138)

This report presents details of the revised risks associated with the
refreshed Key Corporate Risks (KCRs) as at the third quarter of
2009/10.

Audit and Counter Fraud Mid-Term Monitor (Pages 139 - 174)

This report provides details of the progress made in delivering the
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud work plan for 2009/10 and asks
Members to consider and approve revised Terms of Reference for
Internal Audit.

Follow Up of Audit Recommendations (Pages 175 - 180)

This report sets out the progress made by departments in
implementing those agreed audit recommendations which were
due for implementation by 31 October 2009.

Review of the Audit & Governance Committee's Terms of
Reference (Articles & Functions) (Pages 181 - 192)

This report asks Members to consider proposed revisions to the
Audit & Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference (described
as Articles and Functions in the Council’'s Constitution) and to
recommend these changes to Full Council for approval.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Update
(Pages 193 - 196)

This report provides an update on progress being made towards
implementing the statutory required changes in financial reporting
from UK General Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).



15. Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal
Audit (Pages 197 - 200)

This report seeks Members’ views on future arrangements for
undertaking the review the effectiveness of the Council’s system of
internal audit.

16. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Name: Fiona Young
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 551027
e E-mail — fiona.young@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above.




Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00
pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing
online on the Council’s website. Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the
full agenda are available from Democratic Services. Contact the Democracy
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the
agenda requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you. The meeting
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing
loop. We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours
for Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign
language interpreter then please let us know. Contact the Democracy Officer
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the
meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in another
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing
sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this
service.

T AT TS (AT ST 2T =L G (FI ST T WARAT 56 T AT (b8 T ZA, §F T W
0 T TN 0T (R T S S (RIS AR T4 T | BRI a (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin teriimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terciiman bulmalk icin mimkin olan hersey vapiacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

RS DERMIERAFEE TN RES A » 4 R ERIEMA BN TS ZHEE
=EIOERAS. |ES (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550uéJf-iufﬁ’“f@gd/é_fuu,ﬁ}E’aL}“ﬁﬁ'q_J@ $re e st Sl

Informacja mozie byé dostepna w ttumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550



Page 2

Holding the Executive to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda.
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny
Management Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the
Council is to:
¢ Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as
necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?
e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to
which they are appointed by the Council;
e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for
the committees which they report to;
e Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes
MEETING AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 4 NOVEMBER 2009

PRESENT COUNCILLORS B WATSON (CHAIR), BROOKS

(VICE-CHAIR), BOWGETT, KIRK, R WATSON AND
FIRTH (SUBSTITUTE)

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS JAMIESON-BALL AND SCOTT

IN ATTENDANCE COUNCILLOR MOORE (EXECUTIVE MEMBER
FOR CORPORATE SERVICES)

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda. No
interests were declared.

34. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee
meeting held on 21 September 2009 be approved and signed
by the Chair as a correct record

35. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

36. DRAFT REVISED CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

Members considered a report which invited them to comment on the format
and content of a set of draft revised Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs)
prior to their referral to Executive and Full Council.

The draft revised CPRs, attached at Annex A to the report, were intended
to provide a more flexible set of rules and reflect the more devolved
decision-making framework adopted by the Council in April 2009, whilst
maintaining the key principles of the current procurement regulations.
Unlike the current regulations, which formed part of the Financial
Regulations, they would be maintained as a separate document. One
major change contained in the revised CPRs was that ‘routine’
procurements over £500k (as defined in Annex B to the report) would no
longer need to go to the Executive for approval. Other substantial and
minor changes were listed in paragraph 10 of the report.



Page 4

The draft CPRs had been issued to finance managers and other key
Officers for consultation and were now before the Committee to seek
Members’ views before the final draft was taken to Executive. Officers
confirmed at the meeting that a number of amendments had already been
made to the draft document at Annex A, to correct typographical errors and
respond to consultation. During their discussion, Members agreed a
number of further changes, as detailed in Resolution (i) below.

RESOLVED: (i) That the draft revised Contract Procedure Rules at
Annex A to the report be recommended to the Executive, for
onward approval at Full Council, subject to the amendments
already made by Officers and subject to the following
additional amendments:

e Paragraphs 6.1 and 9.1 — reduce the financial limit for
verbal quotations to £5,000.

e Paragraphs 6 to11 — amend the wording so as to
clarify the position in respect of procurements of an
exact value as well as those under or above a specific
value.

e Paragraph 13.1 — remove the word ‘racial’ from the
sixth bullet point.

e Paragraph 27.6 — remove the word ‘cancel’ from the
second line and substitute ‘rescind’, and break down
the paragraph into sub-paragraphs to make it clearer.

e Paragraph 27.9 — remove the word ‘formal’ from the
first line.

e Paragraph 30.2 — Officers to consider whether this
paragraph should be re-worded. !

REASON: To reflect the Committee’s views on the appropriateness of
the Contract Procedure Rules in maintaining the integrity of
the Council’s procurement arrangements.

(i) That the recommendation to Executive / Full Council in
respect of the delegation of routine procurements (as defined
in Annex B) to the Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring
Officer be approved.

REASON: To ensure that the Council can continue to deliver business
as usual and that only non-routine procurements are referred
to the Executive for approval.

Action Required
1. Include the requested amendments in the report to SA
Executive




37.

Page 5

CORPORATE DEBT POLICY

Members considered a report which invited them to review and comment
on the content and format of a draft Corporate Debt Policy prior to its
referral to Executive and Full Council.

The draft Policy, attached as Annex A to the report, set out a framework for
a consistent, ‘firm but fair’ approach to debt collection that would apply
across the organisation to ensure that the Council continued to maximise
collection performance, in line with its Income Policy.

The draft Policy had been circulated to all finance managers and key
Officers involved in debt collection across the Council, as well as to
efficiency partners Northgate Kendrick Ash. Consultation had also taken
place with the Social Inclusion Working Group and comments had been
invited from the Citizens Advice Bureau and Christians Against Poverty.

During their discussion, Members emphasised the need for clear
communication with customers, in particular those with learning difficulties,
as well as the need to use tact and discretion when communicating with
relatives of the deceased. Officers explained that the standard
correspondence was currently under review. They agreed to make the
new draft templates available to view on the intranet and to circulate an e-
mail to Members of the Audit & Governance Committee when this had
been done. '

RESOLVED: That the draft Corporate Debt Policy be approved for
submission to the Executive, subject to the following
amendments:

e Paragraph 28(I) — make reference to the Data Protection
Act with regard to the sharing of personal information

e Paragraph 50 — clarify the wording of this paragraph with
the Legal team. 2

REASON: To reflect the Committee’s views on the policy prior to its
approval by Full Council.

Action Required

1. Make the templates available on completion of review and SA
e-mail A&G Members to inform them

2. Include the requested amendments in report to Executive  SA

B Watson, Chair
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 6.35 pm].



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda Item 5

YORK

c’j\%‘ CITY OF
& CouUNCIL

Audit & Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Director of Resources

Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009

Summary

1 The purpose of this paper is to present to Audit & Governance
Committee the Audit Commission’s final reports for the 2009
Comprehensive Area Assessment.

2 The council is pleased to receive the Comprehensive Area Assessment
reports set out the final results for 2009, these are attached as annexes
as follows:

e Area assessment with one green flag for ‘working together for
disabled children’ and no red flags (see Annex A);

e Organisational assessment with an overall score of 2,
Performing Adequately (see Annex B);

e Annual Audit Letter with a clear audit opinion on the council’s
financial statements for 2008/09 (see Annex C). The content of
this Letter has already been published in the Annual
Governance Report, presented to the Audit & Governance
Committee on 21 December 2009.

3 The final reports in addition to other performance information relating to
the city have been published by the Audit Commission on the ‘One
Place’ website as from 9 December 20009.

4. The council’s detailed response to these reports is contained in a
further report called “Response to CAA 2009 published in the agenda
for this meeting.



Page 8

Background

The process

Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is the new framework for the
independent assessment of local public services in England; CAA was
introduced in April 2009.

The CAA framework is area based and focused on outcomes delivered
by councils working alone or in partnership. It is designed to be more
proportionate than previous performance frameworks, and is aligned
with frameworks in other public sectors. The development of CAA
came at a time when government was committing to an overhaul of
performance management. CAA has been developed to work closely
with the new Local Area Agreements (LAAs) and the National Indicator
Set as part of a single system.

By bringing together evidence across different local services, the Audit
Commission believe that CAA is more effective in driving improvement
than separate assessments for each sector can be.

CAA has two main elements which inform each other:

e An area assessment that looks at how well local public services
are delivering better results for local people across the whole
area, focusing on agreed priorities such as health, economic
prospects and community safety, and how likely they are to
improve; and

¢ Organisational assessments for councils, combining the external
auditor’'s assessment of value for money in the use of resources
with a joint inspectorate assessment of council service
performance, for example Audit Commission, Ofsted and Care
Quality Commission.

The area assessment is not be scored, it is a narrative report providing
an overview of key priorities for the area, overall success and
challenges, and a summary of prospects for improvement highlighting
where different or further action is required. It identifies significant
contributions made by individual partners and, if need be, where a
partner organisation needs to do more. The area assessment may
include green and red ‘flags’:

e Green flags highlight exceptional performance or outstanding
improvement from which others can learn

e Red flags represent significant concerns about outcomes or
future prospects where more or different actions are required.



10

Page 9

The organisational assessment is carried out annually across all
councils, fire and rescue services (FRSs), police authorities and PCTs.
Organisational assessment will include two elements:

e use of resources

managing performance

The organisational assessment is scored for the use of resources and

performance elements separately.

These two scores will then be

combined to give an overall organisational score as follows:

Score Descriptor Performance
1 An organisation that does not meet minimum
requirements Performs poorly
2 An organisation that meets only minimum
requirements Performs adequately
3 An organisation that exceeds minimum
requirements Performs well
4 An organisation that significantly exceeds
minimum requirements Performs excellently

11

12

13

14

15

The Area and organisational assessments are being published
annually; the first round of CAA results are to be published on 9
December 2009. The Audit Commission is committed to making the
CAA more relevant and accessible to the public and has adopted the
‘oneplace’ brand for public reporting to help this. The main vehicle for
publication will be on the ‘oneplace’ website where results of both area
and organisational assessments are accessible by geographical area.
The Audit Commission envisages ‘oneplace’ becoming a powerful tool
for public accountability.

Summary Results 2009
Area Assessment:

York has been assessed on how well it delivers against its seven aims
in the Sustainable Community Strategy - to create a Thriving City,
Sustainable City, Safer City, Learning City, Inclusive City, City of
Culture and Healthy City.

The council is delighted that the city has been awarded a Green Flag
for its achievements and innovative working with disabled children.
Strong partnership working, including the involvement of parents, is
having a significant and positive impact on the lives of children with
disabilities in York.

York has one of only seven green flags in the Yorkshire & Humber
Region and significantly no red flags. Nationally there are 62 red flags
in areas of concern with a lack of future prospects.

York is quite unique, with only two other authorities (Slough &
Wolverhampton) matching York’s CAA profile in terms of:




Page 10

achieving 1 green flag and no red flag

scoring only a 2 overall for the organisational assessment, despite
scoring a 3 on managing performance. Most councils in this
position score a 3 overall (see ‘Analysis’ below).

16 The area assessment in summary:

a.

City of Culture - highlights the satisfaction amongst residents
regarding art galleries and museums in the city, as well as a
lower level of satisfaction with leisure and sporting facilities.
Healthy City - praises York as a healthy city, where life
expectancy is higher than the national average. The number of
early deaths from heart disease, strokes and cancer has
reduced in recent years. The number of adults taking part in
regular physical activity, however, is decreasing.

Inclusive City - highlights York’s growing BME population and
that people from these backgrounds are less likely to have
positive experiences in the city. It recognises the work that has
already been done to tackle issues of equality, but also raises
concerns about high house prices in York and the impact that
has on home ownership.

Learning City - rates York’s educational and children’s services
as excellent quality and highlights the city’s exam results as
amongst the best in the country. The OFSTED children’s
services annual rating for York has been confirmed as
‘performing excellently’.

Safer City - rates York as a safe city, where overall levels of
crime have fallen in recent years. Youth offending is also
relatively low, but alcohol and drug misue is a significant
contributory factor to crime.

Sustainable City - praises the work of organisations making
York more sustainable, for example through its status as Cycling
City and the use of Park & Ride as particularly good. The
assessment praises the city for planning to mitigate further
flooding in the future as a result of climate change. Particularly
strong performance has been highlighted in reducing waste and
increasing recycling in partnership with communities, with this
being raised as a potential Green Flag area for the future.
Thriving City - rates York’s local economy as strong, with levels
of unemployment below regional and national levels and weekly
wages high. It recommends that the main area of focus should
be on ensuring that local people can acquire the necessary skills
to get the new jobs that are coming to the city, as well as helping
businesses weather the recession.



17

18

19

20

21

Page 11

Organisational Assessment:

The council has been awarded a score of 3 ‘Managing Performance’
within its services and a 2 for its ‘Use of Resources’. The Audit
Commission weighted combined score for the organisation is 2
'performing adequately'. See ‘Analysis’ below for national comparisons
relating to this score.

The Managing Performance score reflects the continuing strong
performance scores across the council with Children’s Services
continuing excellent performance and in respect of adult care services,
the council responding well to address the need for improvement in its
services provided for older people.

Within the Use of Resources score there are elements of stronger
performance in some areas, in particular the council's provision of
value for money services, its risk management arrangements and
elements of its commissioning of services. The report acknowledges
that the council has already embarked on a challenging programme to
deliver £15m efficiency savings over a three year period, the need for
which was identified through our own self assessment processes. The
successful effective delivery of the ‘More for York’ programme should
have a positive impact on the council's future use of resources.

Annual Audit Letter:

The Letter summarises the findings from the District Auditor’s audit of
the council’s 2008/09 financial statements, giving an unqualified audit
opinion, and the work undertaken to assess the council’s
arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources. This
confirms the outcomes reported earlier this year by the Audit
Commission in the Annual Governance Statement (Audit &
Governance Committee 21 September 2009).

The Council’s Response

The council’s response to the CAA reports is outlined in the next report
on this meeting’s agenda, which also updates progress against the
council’s Improvement Plan 2009/10.

Consultation

22 The Audit Commission consulted with the council and its partners on
the CAA findings before presenting the final report.

Options

23 No options are required in this report.



Page 12

Analysis

24

Unlike York, the vast majority of councils who scored a 3 for managing
performance and a 2 for Use of Resources, received a 3 overall for
their Organisational Assessment:

: Authorities in
All - Single .
Authorities  District Tier Yorkshire &
Humber
Scored 3 for organisational 71 24 29 4
Assessment made up of Wakefield
3 — managing performance Scarborough
2 - UoR Harrorgate
Hambleton
25 A much smaller proportion of councils received an overall score of 2 for
their organisational assessment, having scored a 3 for managing
performance and a 2 for Use of Resources:
. Authorities in
All - Single .
Authorities  District Tier Yorkshire &
Humber
Scored 3 for organisational 19 10 9 2
Assessment made up of York
3 — managing performance Richmondshire
2 -UoR
26 Also, other councils who have scored 4 (excellent) for Children's
services, also scored well on their overall organisational assessment.
However in comparison to Kingston on Thames (who have the same
scores for Use of Resources and managing performance), York's
overall Organisational Assessment score has been labelled a 2 rather
than a 3 (see table below). It should also be noted that Kingston upon
Thames received a red flag, whereas York did not.
ee Red anaging are
ag ag OR Perfo ance Overall OA ore
York 1 0 2 3 2 4
Blackburn with Darwen 0 1 3 3 3 4
Camden 2 0 4 4 4 4
City of London 2 0 3 4 4 4
Kensington and Chelsea 2 0 3 4 4 4
Kingston upon Thames 1 1 2 3 3 4
Lewisham 1 0 3 3 3 4
Tower Hamlets 1 0 3 3 3 4




Page 13

Corporate Priorities
27 The delivery of the council’'s priorities through the sustainable
community strategy and the corporate strategy is a fundamental part of
the comprehensive area assessment, both at a citywide level and at a
more local level through the organisation assessment.
Implications
28
(a) Financial - There are no implications
(b) Human Resources (HR) - There are no implications
(c) Equalities - There are no implications
(d) Legal - There are no implications
(e) Crime and Disorder - There are no implications

(f) Information Technology (IT) - There are no implications

(g) Property - There are no implications.

Risk Management

29 Comprehensive Area Assessment is a key strategic risk area for the
council, which is being monitored by CMT and the Audit & Governance
Committee.

Recommendations

30 Audit & Governance members are asked to consider the content of this
report and its annexes in in conjunction with next item on the agenda
for this meeting entitled ‘CAA Response’.

Reason

To ensure that members are aware of inspection and audit outcomes,
recognise the achievements and also areas for improvement identified
in the report.



Page 14

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Pauline Stuchfield lan Floyd
Assistant Director of Resources Director of Resources
(Customer Service &
Governance)
Report Approved N Date 7.12.09

Tel: 01904 4551706
Marilyn Summers

Head of Performance and
Business Assurance

Tel: 01904 551723

Specialist Implications Officer(s) Not applicable

Wards Affected Not applicable an [ ]

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

Comprehensive Area Assessment (Framework Document)
published by the Audit Commission
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/localgov/audit/caa/pages/caaframework.aspx

Annexes

Annex A Area Assessment detailed report
Annex B Organisational Assessment detailed report
Annex C The Annual Audit Letter



Page 15

York

Area Assessment

Dated 9 December 2009

for an independent overview

of local public services




Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 16

Contents

York at a glance
How is York doing?
About York

How well do priorities for York express
community needs and aspirations?

Priorities for York
« The City of Culture

. The Healthy City

« The Inclusive City

. The Learning City

. The Safer City

« The Sustainable City

. The Thriving City

2 York



Area Assessment

3 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 17

York at a glance

This independent assessment by six inspectorates sets out how well local
public services are tackling the major issues in York. It says how well they are
delivering better results for local people and how likely these are to improve in
future. If, and only if, our assessment shows that the following special
circumstances are met in relation to a major issue, we use flags to highlight
our judgements. We use a green flag to highlight where others can learn from
outstanding achievements or improvements or an innovation that has very
promising prospects of success. We use a red flag to highlight where we have
significant concerns about results and future prospects that are not being
tackled adequately. This means that local partners need to do something
more or different to improve these prospects.

Green flags - exceptional performance or

innovation that others can learn from

IE] Green flag: Working together for disabled children

Red flags - significant concerns, action

needed

No red flags have been identified for York

The local area

York has been a centre of government, religion, education, commerce,
entertainment and transport for 2000 years. The City and its surrounding area
include the historic walled city, the suburbs and a large area of countryside.
Four million visitors each year bring wealth into the area as well as disruption
and congestion.

The total population is 195,400, 4.9 per cent of which come from black and
minority ethnic (BME) communities. The proportion of people from BME
communities doubled between 1991 and 2001 and is expected to grow
further in the next few years.

York's population is growing and is projected to rise by 4.2 per cent between
2001 and 2011 and by a further 8.3 per cent up to 2021. The four institutions
of further and higher education bring the total number of students in York to
around 20,000 (or approximately one-tenth of the population). York's four
million visitors each year boost the local economy but place significant
demands on the transport system.

The next section tells you how York's public services are doing in each of their
local priority areas.



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 18

How is York doing?

The City of Culture

Local partners want to inspire residents and visitors to free their creative
talents and make York the most active city in the country. They plan to
achieve this by providing high quality cultural and sporting activities for all.
Public satisfaction with museums and art gallaries and parks and open spaces
is among the highest in the country.

Four million tourists visit the city each year, attracted by a number of the city's
cultural attractions including York Minster, the National Railway Museum and
the Yorvik Viking Centre. These facilities are well regarded by both visitors
and residents of the city, and a City of Festivals programme provides year-
round cultural activities for local people.

However, local people are less satisfied with the quality of local sports
centres. York is home to a large variety of sporting organisations, with around
350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city, although there is a lack of
public sports and recreation facilities to meet the needs of local people.

The Healthy City

Partners want York to be a place where residents enjoy long healthy and
independent lives. The city's strategic partnership - Without Walls - plans to
achieve this by supporting people to make healthy lifestyle choices. They also
want to develop health and social care services quick to respond to those that
need them.

York is a healthy city. Life expectancy is high and the number of early deaths
from heart disease, strokes and cancer has reduced significantly in recent
years. However, there are differences across the city with people in some
poorer parts of the city dying up to five years earlier than in more well-off
areas.

Several other issues are becoming more significant. Adults are not as
physically active as they should be and this is contributing to increasing
obesity. Binge drinking is also increasing and has resulted in an increase in
alcohol-related hospital admissions. The number of teenage pregnancies has
increased. Drug misuse in York is above the national average and more needs
to be done to tackle the problem.

The standard of general health care is good, although the quality of care for
adults with mental health problems, whether in hospital or in their own

homes, needs to be improved. Social care services perform well but there are
plans to improve these further.

The Inclusive City

4  York



Area Assessment

5 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 19

Local partners want York's citizens to feel included in the life of the area.
They plan to achieve this by improving prospects for all, tackling poverty and
exclusion and making services and facilities easy to access.

York's community is changing, with an increasing number of people from
black and minority ethnic (BME) backgrounds coming to live in the city.
Although most local people think York is a pleasant place to live people from
BME communities are much less positive about the city. Public sector partners
are taking action to develop their understanding of the issues facing BME
communities and have recognised that more needs to be done to meet the
needs of this group of people.

The needs of other groups, such as older people, children and young people,
and people with disabilities, are more likely to be met. And much work is
going on to ensure people from the less well-off parts of the city are not
disadvantaged. Public sector agencies are working together to help people
from these neighbourhoods into employment and make sure they get the
benefits they are entitled to.

York is an expensive place to live and home ownership is beyond the reach of
many local people. Increasing the supply of affordable housing remains a
major issue for public sector partners. Some progress has been made but,
because of the current economic downturn, it is unlikely that targets for the
next two years will be met. Homelessness in the area is higher than
elsewhere, particularly for young people.

The Learning City

The city's strategic partnership - Without Walls - wants to make sure that
local people have access to world class education and training facilities and
provision. Partners want people to develop the skills and aspirations they need
to play an active part in society and contribute to the life of the city.

York's children and young people can take advantage of good quality
education in the city. Most of the city's schools perform well and the city's
universities and further education colleges have a good reputation.

Ofsted has rated the City Council's services for children and young people as
performing excellently. A review in 2008 by the Audit Commission and Ofsted
rated the city's arrangements for keeping the city's children safe as
outstanding. Exam results for York's schools are consistently among the
highest in the country.

But children from the poorer parts of the city do not do as well as other
children, and this gap is wider than in many other parts of the country. This
also applies to a small number of pupils from black and minority ethnic (BME)
backgrounds.

Fewer of York's young people from poorer backgrounds go on to higher
education than in other parts of the country. However, most young people do
go into education, employment or training when they leave school and
opportunities for adult education are improving.



Area Assessment

6 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 20

Skill levels in the city are high in comparison with local areas in Yorkshire and
Humberside and among the highest nationally. But more needs to be done to
enable all local people to gain the skills they need to take advantage of the
new industries arriving in the city. Partners in the city know this and are
working together to tackle the problem.

The Safer City

The Without Walls Partnership wants to make York a safer city with low crime
rates and high public satisfaction with the city's safety record.

York is a safe place to live. Overall levels of crime have fallen consistently in
recent years although the fear of crime, though reducing, remains an issue for
local people. Youth offending rates are low when compared to other areas,
although the number of young people who re-offend is relatively high.

Drug and alcohol misuse continues to be a significant contributory factor to
crime in the city. One issue of particular concern in York is the level of cycle
theft - particularly as the city is nationally recognised as a cycling city. There
has been some success in improving road safety, particularly in more rural
areas, which has resulted in a fewer road casualties.

The Sustainable City

York's partnership (the Without Walls Partnership) is aiming to reduce its
impact on the environment while maintaining York's special qualities and
enabling the city and its communities to grow and thrive.

Good work by local organisations is making York a greener more sustainable
place to live, work and visit. Recycling rates have improved because of this
strong partnership working and are now among the highest levels of
performance nationally.

Investment in park and ride and developing cycling routes through the City is
reducing traffic and giving people healthier choices for travelling into the City.
The City was recently awarded Cycling City Status in recognition of its
progress.

There's a strong focus on reducing the COZ2 people in York produce as they
go about their lives. Partners are working well together to plan for the
increasing risk of flooding that will go with climate change.

The Thriving City

Partners aim to support York's economy to make sure that employment rates
remain high and that local people benefit from new job opportunities.

Despite job losses in recent years from the loss of traditional industries such as
the railways and chocolate making, York's local economy remains strong.
Levels of unemployment are below national and regional averages and
weekly pay levels are high. The tourism industry remains buoyant despite the



Area Assessment

7 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 21

recent economic downturn and new jobs, many in science-related industries,
are being created.

The main challenges facing the city are to help local people to weather the
recession and to make sure that local people have the training and skills they
need to get the newly created jobs. The number of people with formal
qualifications is higher than many other cities nationally, but the challenge is
to make sure those qualifications are relevant to the new jobs being created
as the local economy changes. The need for new economic development in
the city also has to be balanced against the need to preserve the historic
nature of the city, which is one of the main attractions for tourists.

About York

A recent survey shows that in York 87 per cent of people are satisfied with
their immediate local area as a place to live. This is higher than the average
for similar areas and higher than the national average of 81 per cent.

Covering an area of 105 square miles, the district of York comprises an urban
area centred on the historic city surrounded by many small rural and semi rural
settlements. For many it provides a great standard of living. Schools are good
as is healthcare. The City is popular with students and both its universities are
growing. Until recently the economy has been strong with well-paid jobs in
financial services as well as many other opportunities in tourism. Despite the
recession for most York residents unemployment is a risk that seems remote.

But some people are still not sharing the benefits that living in York brings.
Owning their own home is out of reach of many residents on average
incomes. Residents are dissatisfied with the choices for recreation available to
them. Some in York do not have the skills and qualifications that will help
them get good jobs in the new businesses coming into the City. A fifth of
York's people live in poverty. This poses a major challenge to its hope of being
an even more inclusive city.

Population growth and a decrease in the average number of people in a
household is placing pressure on housing. ‘Affordable’ housing is in particularly
short supply and house prices are well above the regional average. Given the
historic nature of the city's built environment, planning and development are
highly sensitive issues.

York is a relatively affluent city but this masks pockets of deprivation. There
are low levels of unemployment in the city, but high levels of relatively poorly
paid jobs, most associated with the tourist sector. Over the last few years, the
city has responded to the relative decline in employment in traditional local
industries (such as chocolate manufacturing and railways). Traditional
industries have been replaced by a high-tech and science based industrial
sector linked to the universities. The Council and partners see Science City
York as playing an increasingly important part in the development of the city.

Educational attainment in York is high, with achievements that are
significantly higher than both the Yorkshire and Humber and England
averages. Adults in York have better skills levels than adults in most other
areas but a minority, often from poorer areas, do not. Partners in the City



Area Assessment

8 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 22

know this and are working on the problem.

Health is generally good and life expectancy is greater than the national
average. However, there are pockets of poor health in more deprived areas
of the city. Levels of crime are below regional and national averages.
Congestion is a significant issue in the area as York remains a major tourist
destination in the UK.

The Without Walls - WoW - partnership brings together local private, public
and voluntary organisatons to work on the most significant issues facing the
city.

How well do priorities for York express
community needs and aspirations?

The needs and aspirations of York's people are reflected to a great extent in
the priorities the Without Walls Partnership (WoW) is working on. The
partnership has a clear shared set of ambitions for the City for the next 20
years or so. The local area agreement and Sustainable Community Strategy
are based on a good understanding of local needs. The local area agreement
has 35 national and 13 local indicators within the priority themes for the City.

The City's priorities are based on a clear vision and challenging ambitions,
underpinned by priorities which have been influenced by the views of local
people. The preparation of the sustainable community strategy involved an
extensive consultation exercise, a robust assessment of current performance
and analysis of the issues facing the city. Partners are ambitious for the City
and all its people.

It was informed by a wide ranging consultation such as the 'Festival of I[deas'
which used approaches such as radio debates, conferences and
neighbourhood consultations and targeted communities of interest, such as
older people, people with disabilities, representatives from BME communities
and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) residents.

Local communities are getting increasingly involved in decision making
through neighbourhood management with local action plans setting out the
ambitions and actions for local areas. A more comprehensive approach to
engagement with local communities has recently been adopted. The impact
of this is not yet clear. Before its introduction the results of consultation were
not being shared in a systematic way. Partners did not know whether all
groups in local communities have had a chance to contribute.

The City of Culture

The City's cultural heritage is a key element of its attraction to tourists and
makes a significant contribution to the local economy. Four million tourists visit
the city each year generating around 11,000 jobs for local people and bring
some £350 million into York. Partners in the City focus strongly on preserving
and improving the city's built environment and Visit York, the local tourism



Area Assessment

9 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 23

partnership, has made good progress in raising the profile of the city's
attractions since its inception in April 2008.

The city is the home to notable national and regional attractions, such as York
Minster, the National Railway Museum, Yorvik Viking Centre and York
Racecourse. These are well used and regarded by visitors and residents alike.
The city's Museums Trust, which manages a number of museums and galleries
across the city, runs many events designed to involve visitors and local people
in cultural activities and is increasingly using museums for educational
purposes for local schools. The city's racecourse is the venue of major race
meetings which provide an additional attraction for people within the city and
across the region.

The level of public satisfaction with these facilities is understandably high -
significantly higher than in most other parts of the country - and many local
people participate in cultural activities. York's residents participate in the arts
more than those in any other city in the region. At 53.5 per cent, participation
is also well ahead of the national average. The proportion of local people who
visit museums is also much higher than the national average, and York schools
have the highest level of achievement of "Culture Mark" of any authority in
the country.

Another important feature of the cultural life of the city is the City of Festivals
programme. This year-round programme includes a range of events dealing
with different cultural activities such as dance, drama, food and drink,
literature and sport. Local people are heavily involved in the festivals and they
are highly valued by residents and visitors alike.

However, the situation regarding facilities designed specifically to meet the
needs of local people is less positive. Although the number of visits to public
libraries is relatively high, public satisfaction with them is low. The City Council
has recognised this and is part way through a programme to make them more
attractive to local people and place them at the centre of local communities.

There is a lack of public sports and recreation facilities that meet the needs of
local people. Only about one in three local people are satisfied with the quality
of sport and leisure facilities. This places York in the bottom 20 per cent of
cities in the country. The gap between what people need and want and what
is available now is great. This applies to indoor activities such as swimming
and badminton, and external facilities such as football and rugby pitches.
Some facilities are seeing more use though, for example, the redeveloped
Oaklands Sports Centre. York's people's dissatisfaction with these gaps may
also be contributing to falling numbers of people taking part in exercise.

Action is being taken to tackle these problems. For example, the ‘Fitas a
Fiddle' programme for older people is increasing the numbers of people taking
exercise. York is home too to a large variety of sporting organisations, with
around 350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city.

We want to look more deeply at how partners in the City are working
together to ensure that all York's people get to benefit from the City's status
as an important visitor destination.



Area Assessment

10 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 24

We will also want to know more about how the city is going to close the gaps
in what sport and leisure facilities are on offer. We will be following this up in
our work ahead and report what we find next year.

The Healthy City

There is a lack of public sports and recreation facilities to meet the needs of
local people. The gap between what people need and want and what is
available now is great. This applies to indoor activities such as swimming and
badminton, and external facilities such as football and rugby pitches. York's
people are dissatisfied with these gaps which may also be contributing to
falling numbers of people taking part in exercise. Some facilities are seeing
more use though, for example, the redeveloped Oaklands Sports Centre.

Action is being taken to tackle these problems. For example, the ‘Fitas a
Fiddle' programme for older people is increasing the numbers of people taking
exercise. York is home, t0o, to a large variety of sporting organisations, with
around 350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city.

We want to know more about how the city is going to close the gaps in what
is on offer. We will be following this up in our work ahead and report what
we find next year.

York is a healthy city. Average life expectancy at birth is increasing and, at 83
for women and 78 for men, is higher than both regional and national
averages. Early deaths from heart disease and strokes and from cancer have
reduced significantly in recent years and are below the national average.
Deaths from smoking are also below the national average, as is the number of
smokers. York's babies and young children are more likely to live than in other
areas. Babies born in the City are also more likely to be the right weight than
is the case across the country as a whole. Expectant mothers are smoking less
and breastfeeding rates are improving.

More needs to be done to deal with health inequalities and encourage local
people to develop healthy lifestyles. Life expectancy varies across the city,
with people in more deprived parts of the city dying five years earlier than in
more well-off areas. Local GP surgeries provide a way to promote better
health with other projects to encourage more healthy lifestyles.

The number of people taking part in physical activity is low and falling. Latest
data shows that only one in five adults exercise three times a week compared
with one in four in 2007/08. This is contributing to an increase in the number
of obese adults. Partners across the city have recognised the problem. They
are working together to improve access to more sport and leisure facilities.
They have also developed programmes aimed at specific groups, such as the
over 55s and people with a disability, to increase participation.

The number of children and young people participating in physical activity is
high, with almost all school children taking part in at least 2 hours PE and
school sport a week. This is well above the national average. However,
childhood obesity is becoming more of an issue. Although not high when



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 25

compared with other parts of the country, 8.4 per cent of children at age 5
are obese and this figure increases to 15.6 per cent when they reach eleven
years of age.

Alcohol and drug misuse in the city is a concern. Estimated levels of binge
drinking are high, affecting almost one in four adults compared with one in
five nationally. As a result, the number of alcohol-related hospital admissions is
increasing. Although still below the national average, the number is expected
to rise further. Drug misuse in York is also above the national average, and
actions to reduce drug and alcohol related harm have also been inadequate,
resulting in intervention from the National Treatment Agency. Good evidence
about the scale of drug misuse among the adult population is not available.

The number of teenage pregnancies has increased by a quarter since 1998.
However, the rate of teenage pregnancy remains one of the lowest rates in
the Yorkshire and Humberside region and is lower than the national average,
although partners recognise the need to do more to address the issue which
provides an additional health risk to both mother and child.

Most patients feel the quality of health care is good, although there are some
issues about the quality of care for people with mental health problems. The
Healthcare Commission has assessed the quality of hospital services for
people with acute mental health problems to be weak - in other words, not
meeting minimum requirements and the reasonable expectations of patients
and the public. The proportion of adults with learning difficulties and mental
health problems who are helped to live at home is low and declining, as is the
number of households receiving intensive homecare.

Dental health in the city is good, with the average number of decayed,
extracted or filled teeth in young children being significantly lower than the
national average. However, access to NHS dentists is a major issue and local
health organisations have recognised the need to make it easier for local
people to get dental treatment, particularly those in less well-off areas.

We will continue to monitor the impact of actions taken to improve the health
of local people, particularly about reducing inequalities in health and in
encouraging people to develop healthy lifestyles.

The Inclusive City

?] Green flag: Working together for disabled children

Strong partnership working, including the involvement of parents, is having a
significant and positive impact on the lives of children with disabilities in York.
In early 2009, parents of disabled children in York gave the city's quality of
health, education, social care and support for their children the highest score
in the country. Meeting the needs of disabled children, young people and their
families is a strategic priority for the city. Strong partnership working in the
city is giving children and families personalised services across health,
education and the voluntary sector.

An inspection in 2008 by Ofsted and the Audit Commission judged the City
Council's services for children with learning difficulties and/or disabilities as

11 York



Area Assessment

12  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 26

outstanding. These services are making real differences to the lives of
children. For example, Council services, a voluntary agency and the parent
forum are working together to provide a pioneering service of personalised
mentoring. This is giving children support that matches their needs tailored to
their problems. Another outcome from joint working is increased access to
and take-up of leisure opportunities by children with disabilities. Families value
these opportunities for the difference they are making to their children's lives.

Innovation is strengthening the joining up of services. For example, ‘end to
end' care and support is now provided. Children and young people are
supported through the significant challenges that they face in their lives when
they move from school into further education, employment or independent
living. A new multi-agency Transitions Team supports young people aged 14-
25. This nationally recognised team provides independent travel training,
children and adults social care support, participation support and provision of
shared and independent housing. Support is seamless - its focus is on the child
or young person not on the particular organisation providing the support. It
successfully puts the customer at the heart of what partners are doing.

Other actions are having a positive impact on the quality of life of children
with disabilities. They include the City of York Charter for Disabled Children
which sets out what children and their parents can expect from partners. This
provides a way to hold partners to account to ensure they provide joined-up
services to meet their specific needs. It is based around nine promises covering
a range of issues. These include: involvement in planning and decision making,
access to more places and activities, a wider range of short breaks, and better
support in the transition into adulthood. All children have a single named
contact to make sure that all service providers work together to deliver
seamless services.

In early 2009, York gained the highest score in the country in a national survey
that asked parents with disabled children to rate the quality of health,
education, social care provision and support. The survey gives a way of finding
out whether partners really are delivering on the ambitions set out in the
national strategy - Aiming High for Disabled Children. Feedback to parents is
done through a You Said, We Did booklet. This shows how services have been
shaped and changed to meet children's and families' needs. This booklet has
been recognised by government as an example of good practice.

The views of disabled children and their parents are at the heart of the way
services are delivered. Disabled young people have completed accessibility
surveys of leisure services and helped schools write their Disability Equality
Schemes. The issues they raised have resulted in changes to the way services
are provided. The long-standing parent forum, CANDI, (Children and Inclusion)
is a dynamic group that has co-written, and jointly leads, two levels of unique
disability equality training for all staff and universal providers. CANDI supports
participation of parents and young people at every level and has helped to
ensure parent and carer representation in strategic planning for services in the
city.

Successful action is being taken to raise children's aspirations. In 2009, a
ground breaking Opportunities Fair provided young people and parents with
information, advice and guidance about the options available to them when
they leave school. Participants received one to one advice, face to face
contact with providers and workshop taster activities, designed to raise young



Area Assessment

13  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 27

people's aspirations and support them in making decisions about their future.
Young people, families and providers gave the Fair excellent feedback.

Partners in the City know that children with special educational needs do less
well than their peers when they take their GCSEs. This is because York tries,
whenever, possible to avoid labelling children as having these needs. So
York's pupils with special educational needs are those for whom an academic
qualification will be unattainable. Nevertheless the work on inspiring children
through mentoring and the other initiatives going on in the City give these
children a real chance of making their own positive contribution to the City.

The Inclusive City

York's population is changing. It is getting older and the over 50s will make up
an increasing proportion of York's people. At the same time people from a
black and minority ethnic (BME) background are coming into the city in
greater numbers. York experienced the second highest percentage growth
rate in ethnic minorities of any city in the country in the period 1991-2001.

People from these communities believe that York is a less welcoming and
tolerant place than people from other communities think is the case. Although
more than half the population of the city feel they belong to their local
neighbourhood, fewer than one in five people from BME communities feel the
same way. Some of the needs of these communities are being met but
organisations in the city know they don't yet fully understand the needs of the
growing BME community. Public sector partners know they will need to alter
the way they work to address these differences.

Partners in the city are working together to address inequality with many
groups such as people with disabilities, children and young people and older
people. Young people with learning difficulties or physical disabilities get good
support in their transition to adult life. Such support includes encouraging
independent travel and by providing shared and independent housing. Many
programmes and activities provide support targeted at the most vulnerable
children and their families. New arrivals from Eastern Europe and the Traveller
community receive prompt and suitable support to help them settle into the
life of the area. Changes have been made at some sports centres to make
them more accessible to people with disabilities and a local library runs a
computer club designed for older people and those with disabilities.

York is rightly seen as a well-off city (In 2007, York was ranked as the 242nd
least deprived of 354 areas nationally, having improved its position from 219th
least deprived in 2004). But there are pockets of significant deprivation in
some parts of the city. One neighbourhood is in the 10 per cent most deprived
in the country. Around a third of households are living on low annual incomes
and around 1 in 8 of the city's children live in poverty. About 4,600 homes
suffer from fuel poverty - their inhabitants are spending more and more of
their money on keeping warm. This is better than in other areas regionally and
nationally but it's still a real problem for the people involved. Some of the
older houses in York are hard to heat and keep warm too.

The poorest area of the city is now the focus of joined-up working to tackle its
long-standing problems. This is improving the lives of many people in this
community. Some local people have been helped into work and others, many



Area Assessment

14 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 28

of whom are elderly, have also been helped to claim the benefits to which
they are entitled. Benefit payments to people in this neighbourhood have
increased by £22,000. This project is now being rolled out into neighbouring
communities.

Living in York is becoming more expensive, with house prices increasing by 38
per cent between 2002 and 2005, while earnings only increased by 16 per
cent over the same period. York's average wage is around £19,000 while an
average house costs a little under £200,000. Home ownership is out of reach
of many York residents. There has been a drive to provide more "affordable”
housing in the city through agreements with developers, and 151 such homes
were builtin 2008/09. However, the current economic downturn means that
this is unlikely to be repeated in 2009/10 which places increased pressure on
the social housing stock and housing waiting lists.

The quality of housing in York is improving. The number of houses failing to
meet national decency standards has fallen significantly. Almost all council
housing now meets basic decency standards, compared with almost 84 per
cent four years ago. The quality of private sector housing is also improving,
with less than one-fifth of private sector homes failing to meet decency
standards compared with a national average of around two-fifths.

More housing is also being provided to meet the specific needs of older
people. Recently 100 bungalows that could not be brought up to decent
homes standards were demolished and are to be replaced by a 40-bed extra
care facility for older people, with 60 new bungalows and 100 affordable
general needs houses.

The number of homeless people, particularly young people, is high compared
with many other parts of the country. In 2007/08, half the people accepted as
homeless in York were 16 to 24 years old. A fifth of this group were 16 to 17
year olds - twice the national rate for this age group. However, partners have
recognised the issue and have had some success in dealing with it. At the end
of 2008/9, there were 167 households in temporary accommodation, which is
a 20 per cent improvement on the 209 households in 2007/8. Specific action
has been taken to help homeless young people. This includes joint action
between the city council, Arc Light, the Salvation Army and the Peasholme
Charity. Their work has reduced the number of rough sleepers in the city.
Partners won external funding of £350,000 which has been used to deliver a
Teenage Parent Housing Support Project.

There are some examples of how local people have been involved in issues
affecting them, but this has not happened in a consistent way with different
communities in the city. Partners have now agreed a comprehensive
community engagement strategy. Turning this into action is an important
priority for the City.

We will review the success of the Without Wall Partnership in putting its plans
into action over the next year.

The Learning City

York is well known for the standard of education received by its young



Area Assessment

15 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 29

people. This year, Ofsted has rated the City Council's children's services as
performing excellently.

Most schools, children's homes, pupil referral units, nurseries and childminders
are good or better. This means that almost all children and young people get
good help and support. Ofsted's inspections of York's schools found most of
them to be good or better - more in similar areas or nationally. No school in
York is inadequate. Almost two-thirds of the city's primary and secondary
schools perform above the average for England.

York Council's adoption and fostering agencies are outstanding and children's
homes are good or outstanding. Most childcare is good or better. Nursery and
primary schools in York perform better than in similar areas or nationally.

Ofsted and the Audit Commission looked in December 2008 at how York's
children are kept safe. They said these arrangements were outstanding. The
review also looked at the services children in the Council's care receive. These
too, were outstanding. One serious case review has taken place since
December 2008. (These happen to ensure that lessons are learned after
instances of potential abuse emerge.) The review was judged by Ofsted as
adequate.

Some of York's most vulnerable children and young people do not do as well
as their peers. Most young people get services that are good or better but one
of the City's special schools and one of its units for pupils with challenging
behaviour are not so good and are rated as adequate. Also, children aged 11
who have free school meals do less well than the rest of their age group in
the City. This gap is wider in York than elsewhere in the country.

A similar gap exists for young people at 16 who have special educational
needs. A small number of young people from a minority ethnic background do
not do as well as their peers at 16. More of York's teenage girls get pregnant
than is the case nationally or in similar areas. Partners in the City know about
these problems and are working together to tackle them.

The difference in achievement between the City's poorest and wealthiest
continues into higher education. Fewer of York's young people from low-
income backgrounds go into higher education than in most other parts of the
country.

In November 2008, the QS-Times Higher Educational Supplement ranked the
University of York 81st out of the world's top 200 universities - a rise of 43
places from 2006. York St John's University plays an important regional role
and is particularly popular with mature students. Both universities continue to
grow with significant building programmes. They are playing a significant role
in developing science-based and high-tech industries which are replacing
more traditional industries in the city and are a key element of the city's
future economy.

Almost all adults in York have some form of qualification. But, although not
high in comparison with most other parts of the country, there are a
significant number of adults with no formal qualifications, and many people
experience literacy and numeracy problems. Developing higher level, more
diverse skills across the working age population is key for partners in the city.



Area Assessment

16  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 30

York's people will need these skills to succeed in the knowledge-based
industries replacing the traditional manufacturing industries on which the city
was built. Good work is underway on this but partners in the city know more
needs to be done.

The Safer City

York is a safe city. Overall, crime has fallen consistently between 2003/04 and
2007/08 and is below regional and national averages. Serious acquisitive crime
has continued to fall and local targets have been achieved. Targeted action
has resulted in significant decreases in crime and anti-social behaviour in some
areas of the city. For example, an alley-gating campaign resulted in a 68 per
cent fall in reported crime levels in the Clifton area in August and September
2008, compared with figures for the same period in 2006.

There has been an increase in the percentage of people who feel York is a
safe place. But partners in the City are not complacent about this. Of 18
Neighbourhood Action Plans developed by local communities, 17 contain
ambitions around the theme of community safety. However, a high proportion
of local people feel that their views are considered in dealing with crime and
anti-social behaviour and many feel these issues are being dealt with
successfully.

A high number of offences in the city are carried out by a few persistent
offenders. Although reoffending rates of young offenders supervised by the
Youth Offending Team fell by 32 per cent in 2008, they remain at a level
significantly above those for similar cities. The percentage of young offenders
engaging in education and work is low compared with other similar areas. The
number of first-time entrants into the youth justice system has fallen and
young people in care who offend are well supported and few are involved in
reoffending.

Preventive programmes such as the Youth Inclusion Support Programme (YISP)
and targeted youth work are contributing well to continuing these low
numbers. The Youth Offending Team has become the strongest performing
team in the region, although the dependency on short-term funding presents
a risk to keeping the current performance.

Partners have worked well together to improve road safety with a particular

focus on the specific concerns of rural communities. This has had a significant
impact, most notably in reducing accidents involving children, where a 50 per
cent cut was achieved in six months in 2007/08.

However, some issues remain to be addressed. Despite overall decreases in
crime, one issue of concern is the high level of cycle theft - particularly for a
city recognised nationally as a cycling city. This issue has been recognised by
partners and a programme of education and prevention is being carried out by
the Safer York Partnership in parallel with the Cycling City programme.

Drug and alcohol abuse continues to be a significant contributory factor to
offending within the city. Estimated levels of binge drinking are significantly
higher than the national average, as is the drug abuse in the city. Local public
sector bodies recognise the need to address these issues, but actions so far



Area Assessment

17 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 31

have not been successful. This is strangely at odds with the views of local
people. Few people feel that anti-social behaviour is a problem in the city, or
that drunk and rowdy behaviour or drug misuse is a significant problem.

We have not had the chance to look in detail at the issues around alcohol and
drug abuse this year. We will include these issues in next year's assessment.

The Sustainable City

York has been recognised for the actions partners have taken to protect the
environment. In a national survey, the City was ranked 18th out of 324 towns
and cities for the number of recycling centres, conservation groups and eco-
friendly businesses. Partners have made good progress in balancing the needs
of a vibrant city against protecting the environment.

The volume of household waste is falling, while the proportion of waste
recycled and composted has more than tripled from a low base a few years
ago. Almost half of York's waste is either recycled or composted - one of the
highest rates in the country. Three out of four local people are satisfied with
recycling facilities. This is also higher than most other parts of the country.

A major reason for this success has been involving local people and action
from local environmental groups such as York Rotters who champion
composting. Young people in particular are recycling more, with schools
recycling 76,600 kg of paper and cardboard which has saved more than 101
tonnes of CO2 emissions going into the atmosphere. There are high levels of
public satisfaction with street cleanliness standards, which have continued to
increase in recent years, although levelled out in 2008/09.

The standard of parks, play areas and public spaces is good. Three parks have
been awarded Green Flag status and public satisfaction is high. Despite an
increase in visitors to the city, overall traffic volumes have remained stable.
More people are using the city's park and ride system and there are plans to
develop it further. The first Car Free Day took place in the city in September.
It was supported by the City Council and around 30 local businesses who
encouraged their employees to leave their cars at home and use alternatives
to get to work. Early signs are that it was successful in reducing the volume of
traffic in the city centre.

An increasing number of people in the city walk or cycle, and York has been
awarded national Cycling City status. This means government funding will be
available over the next three years to improve opportunities for cycling and to
build on the one-in-five residents who currently cycle to work. Work is already
underway to make the city's roads safer and easier to use by cyclists and to
expand the existing cycle network.

Many events have also taken place to encourage more people to cycle. A
Biking Viking event involved 70 school children from 4 schools in York dressed
as Vikings riding into the town centre for a Viking show and various
competitions. The city also hosted its first Festival of Cycling in August which
attracted around 10,000 visitors and was successful in encouraging local
people to take up cycling. The city also hosted a stage of the Tour of Britain
raising the city's profile as a cycling city.



Area Assessment

18 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 32

Some early progress has been made in reducing carbon emissions across the
city. City of York Council introduced a carbon management programme in
April 2008, which is helping to reduce its carbon footprint, and other
organisations and businesses across the city are looking to follow suit.
Progress has been made to improve local biodiversity, although not as quickly
as expected. This is because of lack of resources (money and people), the
need to negotiate with private landowners and altered management
practices.

In a city where the built heritage is so important it obviously has an important
effect on where development can happen. Despite this, the area of previously
developed land that has been vacant or derelict for more than 5 years is high
and increasing. However, developments are well planned to make best use of
the space available and most are found near to other services which reduces
the need to travel.

Another challenge facing the city is the growing risk of flooding, which has
had a major impact on the city many times in recent years. Work is underway
to improve flood defences in and around the city. Action is also being taken to
manage the flow of the river upstream of the city in North Yorkshire.

We will track progress on the city's plans over the coming year. Our work will
include a look at two main areas. Firstly, what are organisations in the city are
doing to reduce their carbon footprint. Secondly, the progress on working
with others on managing flood risk.

The Thriving City

Local organisations are working well to give York's people the help and
support they need to cope with the effects of the recession. Events have been
held to provide advice and guidance both to small businesses and to
individuals hit by the recession. For example, York Enterprise Week included a
range of events to help local residents and businesses through the credit
crunch. ltincluded an event called Thrive and Survive at the city's racecourse.
The event covered many issues including skills and training, business support
and doing business with the Council. Free workshops were also provided
aiming at giving businesses and individuals practical help. The event was
popular and attendees' feedback has shaped other work.

People who have lost their jobs have been targeted for extra help and support
to give them the best possible chance of getting back into work. Targeted
programmes in the most deprived areas of the city have been successful, with
367 people from such areas helped into employment or training over the last
year. People with money troubles have also had services developed to help
with their particular needs and a benefits take-up campaign has resulted in
people claiming £22,000 more benefits that they were not claiming. A
mortgage rescue scheme has also helped some families facing repossession.

There was a significant fall in the number of new business start-ups in
2008/09, although the percentage of established small businesses showing
year-on-year employment growth has improved and remains among the
highest in the country. An Enterprise Fund is now in place to help with
business start-ups. So far six new local businesses are now up and running



Area Assessment

19 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 33

after support from the Fund. Other support for new businesses has been
provided through initiatives like the Pheonix Centre and Eco Business Centre.
This provides accommodation tailored to the needs of new small businesses
and is popular - almost all of its 60 units have tenants. The City Council is
paying suppliers quicker to help their cash flow.

Support is also available to longer-standing businesses. This is being done
within a clear vision of how partners think York's economy should develop.
Partners in the City have commissioned research from the Centre for Cities
that has helped shape the vision. Partners understand the strong base the
City's universities, colleges and the Science City development give them in
developing an economy that can take the City forward while making it less
dependent on tourism. Joint work on the York Business Forum and the
VisitYork brand supports the wider plans for other areas of the City's
economy.

Traditional local jobs in the railways, sugar processing and chocolate
manufacturing industries have reduced significantly in recent years and are
being replaced by jobs which need different skills.

The city's status as a national Science City means that many new jobs are
being created in science-related industries and in more high-tech, knowledge
based industries. This will make it more difficult for some local people to find
employment unless they are able to develop the new skills needed.

Training more people to technician level (NVQ 3 and above) will support the
development of a knowledge-led economy. The number of local people with
formal qualifications is relatively high in comparison with many other similar
cities. But more needs to be done to make sure they have the qualifications
and skills they need for the new kinds of jobs being created.

In a survey carried out in 2006/07, almost one-in-five employers reported skills
gaps in their current workforce, which is higher than the national average.
More recent figures suggest this situation is improving. In 2003 around 25,000
people (one in five of the working age population) had numeracy and literacy
problems. In 2008 more than 7,000 people (6.8 per cent of the working age
population) had no formal qualifications.

Progress is being made but more needs to be done. A 'Spotlight on Skills'
Campaign involving a month long programme of events has been successful in
encouraging local employers to invest in developing the skills of their
workforce and in encouraging working age adults to participate in skills
training. The programme involved 110 employers, 290 individuals and 33 local
agencies, and has improved working relationships.

Other longstanding programmes have had a positive impact on peoples' lives.
Future Prospects provides help and support to people looking to develop their
skills, get back into work or deal with being laid off. The service offered by
this organisation includes skills training as well as helping people work through
what getting work will mean for their household income when their benefits
change. Finding a way through the benefits system was identified as a barrier
to getting into work in a survey of Future Prospect's clients.

There has been an increase in the number of adults achieving basic literacy,



Area Assessment

20 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 34

numeracy and IT qualifications, and young people gaining vocational
qualifications. People in the less well-off parts of the city are not as well
qualified, although partners are targeting actions in these areas and the gap
with the rest of the city is narrowing. Partners are focusing on helping young
people into work as they are being hit hard by the recession. However, after a
continued fall, the percentage of young people not in education, employment
or training (NEETSs) increased to 4.2 per cent in 2008/09. The increase has
continued into the first quarter of 2009/10, although it remains lower than
most other places in the country.

We will follow up the City's progress in achieving its priorities for the City's
economy in the next phase of our assessment. We want to know how the
advantages the City has are being used to help the more disadvantaged in the
area.



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 35

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

Alternative formats - If you require a copy of PDF documents in this site in
large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

for an independeant overview

§ =3 ._._.._ﬁl L ol VILES




Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

City of York Council

Organisational Assessment

Dated 9 December 2009

for an independent overview

of local public services




Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 38

City of York Council

Overall, City of York Council performs adequately

Managing performance 3 outof4
Use of resources 2 out of 4
Managing finances 2outof4
Governing the business 2outof4
Managing resources 2 out of 4

Description of scores:

1. An organisation that does not meet minimum requirements, Performs Poorly

2. An organisation that meets only minimum requirements, Performs Adequately

3. An organisation that exceeds minimum requirements, Performs Well

4. An organisation that significantly exceeds minimum requirements, Performs Excellently

Summary

City of York Council performs adequately overall. It is improving in many of
the priorities for the city it identified with partners. These priorities are to
make the city thrive, sustainable, safer, a learning place, inclusive, healthy and
a city of culture.

In assessing the Council's overall performance we have given particular
weight to its use of resources. The Council's systems for managing its
resources meet minimum requirements. They do the things they are designed
to achieve. But the evidence of outcomes from this aspect of the Council's
work was not consistent enough to score a 3. Areas of lower performance
include financial planning, asset management and ensuring diversity and
equality are dealt with consistently. Achieving its priorities will put greater
demands on its use of resources as public spending comes under increasing
pressure. Budget constraints held back some priority services in the past. This
remains a risk now.

York scores three out of four for managing its performance. The Council's
priorities reflect the City's needs. Many community groups were consulted as
local priorities were identified. Groups included travellers, the homeless, single
parents with young children, students, housebound elderly, and people with a
physical or learning disability. Their views have led to priorities being amended
giving a stronger focus on housing and homelessness, and children and young
people.

Services key to the Council's priorities are doing well.
Ofsted rate services for children and young people as performing excellently.

The Care Quality Commission rate services for adults as performing well. But
vulnerable peoples' needs and wishes want further attention though to

2 City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 39

ensure they are met. The Council knows this and its plans reflect its ambitions
for all of York's people.

The Council has worked well with partners to support the local economy and
help local people through the economic downturn. Initiatives include providing
advice and support to local businesses and individuals.

The Council has also worked well with partners to improve the environment. It
has updated the way it manages waste and has increased recycling - a
service now well regarded by local people. Progress on managing traffic
congestion is being made. The Council is reducing its carbon footprint.

Successful joint action with the police is dealing with anti-social behaviour and
reducing youth offending. York is a safe city although there has been an
increase in some types of crime.

Quality and choice in housing is improving. Homelessness is reducing, but
remains high for young adults when compared with similar areas. Plans are in
place to tackle this. Satisfaction with local recreational facilities is poor, and
the lack of good quality leisure facilities may be limiting progress in increasing
adult participation in sport.

The Council scores two out of four for managing its resources. llts work meets
minimum requirements. The quality of many services has improved while the
Council's costs remain low in comparison with similar councils. But several
issues held the Council's rating down in this area of its performance.

For example, the Council's arrangements for asset management lack
consistency and are not helping it achieve better value for money. It does not
have all the information it needs on the assets it has available to it in every
area of the city. Coupled with a lack of robustness in its asset management
plans all this means the Council cannot be certain that it has the assets it
needs to deliver its priorities. Enforced delays in rationalising its offices have
held up savings and other improvements in how the Council works.

The Council is improving its understanding of its impact on natural resources
and has taken early steps to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions. Plans are
being developed to improve the way the Council uses its buildings to make it
easier for the public to get its services and to provide better value for money.

The Council has recently developed a Fairness and Inclusion Strategy
satisfying its statutory duties as an employer and service provider. But equality
and diversity are not yet consistently dealt with in all Council services. The
Council has listened to local people to make it more likely that their needs are
met. The Easy@York project has made access to services easier. It has also
improved the way it responds to local people.

The Council's financial and corporate planning processes are only partially
integrated. Links between the Council's medium term financial strategy and
capital, IT and workforce planning are not strong enough. Financial planning
has focused on savings that do not undermine priorities rather than starting
from what funding is needed to achieve those priorities.

This will need to change - the Council's costs are already low and greater

3 City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 40

financial constraints now face the public sector. Different ways of providing
services are being explored that should improve efficiency. But the medium
term financial strategy is not clear about the risks that may prevent the
delivery of corporate and service priorities.

The Council provides good community leadership in bringing local partners
together and gives good support to joint working. More work is needed
though to ensure that all councillors and officers work together consistently to
achieve the Council's overall purpose and vision. Managerial leadership has
been strong which has strengthened joint working across services. However,
the Council is in transition following the recent departure of the Chief
Executive and the arrival of his replacement.

About City of York Council

York is a historic city with an international reputation. The City and its
surrounding area include the historic walled city, the suburbs and a large area
of countryside. 4 million visitors each year bring wealth into the area as well
as disruption and congestion. Covering an area of 105 square miles, the
district of York comprises an urban area centred on the historic city
surrounded by many small rural and semi rural settlements. The area has a
total population of 195,400. The black and minority ethnic (BME) population is
4.9 per cent of the total. The proportion of people from BME communities
doubled between 1991 and 2001 and is expected to grow further in the next
few years.

The population of the district of York is increasing and is projected to increase
by 4.2 per cent between 2001 and 2011 and by a further 8.3 per cent up to
2021. The four institutions of further and higher education bring the total
number of students in York to around 20,000 (or about one-tenth of the
population).

Population growth and an increase in smaller household is placing pressure on
housing. ‘Affordable’ housing is scarce and house prices are well above the
regional average. An average house in York costs around £200,000. The
average annual wage in the city is about £19,000. Given the historic nature of
the city's built environment, planning and development are sensitive issues.

For many the area provides a great standard of living. Schools are good as is
healthcare. The City is popular with students and both its universities are
growing. Until recently the economy has been strong with well-paid jobs in
financial services as well as many other lower paid opportunities in tourism.
The City has responded well to the relative decline in employment in
traditional local industries (such as chocolate manufacturing and railways).
These jobs have been replaced by a high-tech and science based industrial
sector linked to the universities. Science City York is playing an increasingly
important part in developing the city.

But some people are still not sharing the benefits that go with living in York.
Owning their own home is out of reach of many residents on average
incomes. Residents are dissatisfied with the choices for recreation available to
them. A fifth of York's people live in poverty. This poses a major challenge to
its hope of being an even more inclusive city. The Council's plans reflect the

4  City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 41

depth of this challenge.

Organisational assessment

Thriving City

The Council and partners have worked well to soften the impact of the
economic downturn on the city. Despite recent job losses, businesses still feel
York is a good place to be. Initiatives involving the Council include York
Enterprise Week. During the event businesses and individuals got advice and
support. An enterprise fund to support new business start-ups is now in place.
The Council, with its partners, has set up a mortgage rescue scheme to help
people who are at risk of losing their homes. But, for all this increased support,
York like other places saw significantly fewer new small businesses in
2008/09.

The city’s economy is strong compared with neighbouring areas. The
unemployment rate remains below those for the region and the UK. The
number of people claiming job seekers allowance rose in line with national
and regional trends. Interestingly - and in contrast with other trends - the
number of working age people on out of work benefits fell slightly in 2008/09.
The number of people of working age with qualifications has increased.
Almost two-fifths have NVQ Level 4 qualification or above. This is higher than
in most other parts of the country.

Housing and council tax benefits claimants are getting a better service. The
average time taken to process new benefit claims fell to 15 days in 2008/09.
But this is still longer than the national average. Benefit take up campaigns
have been successful in helping people to claim what they are entitled to. The
Council is working successfully with partners to help the poorer parts of the
city. Residents are being helped into training and employment. Other people
are being given advice on how to keep their homes warmer while saving
money.

Sustainable City

Council action to reduce household waste has led to a 5 per cent fall in the
amount collected in 2008/09. Almost half of the waste collected is now
recycled. Significantly less waste was disposed of through landfill. That’s good
for the environment and saves taxpayers money. Soon more waste will be
recycled through a new kerbside collection scheme. Alternate weekly
collection of waste and recycling across the city will help achieve its target of
recycling half of the city’s waste by December 2010. Public satisfaction is
improving and is now around the national average.

After four years of improvement standards of street cleanliness were static in
2008/09. York’s standards are just below the national average but satisfaction
with the standard of street cleanliness is high. The Council improved the way
it manages sites of nature conservation value in 2008/09, with more of these
sites now being well managed. However, the Council carried out fewer
conservation area appraisals than planned.

5 City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 42

The Council has helped manage traffic congestion. While this remains a major
local issue peak period journey times in the city have stopped increasing. Plans
to extend the Park and Ride network are being rolled out. People are happier
with their bus services than is the case in other areas. Over the last two years
the number of bus journeys in the City increased putting the City amongst the
best performers nationally. Aimost half a million more bus journeys were made
in 2008/09 than in the previous year. But this was 1.7 million short of the
target of 17 million journeys the Council had set itself.

After a successful Council bid for national Cycling City status, external funding
is available to enable it to improve facilities for cyclists over the next three
years. Early progress has been made in resurfacing existing cycle lanes,
improving cycle access and encouraging children to cycle through events such
as the Biking Viking event involving children from four schools cycling into the
City centre.

The Council has made some early progress in reducing its carbon footprint.
Completed projects on the Eco Depot, Yearsley Pool, school waste recycling
and the use of renewable energy has reduced carbon emissions. Other
projects are in progress to make schools, sport centres, street lighting and
Council housing more energy efficient as the Council works towards reducing
its CO2 emissions by a quarter by 2013.

Safer City

The Council’s work is helping to make York an even safer city. Crime and
anti-social behaviour are being tackled successfully. A high proportion of
people feel that their views are considered and that issues are being dealt
with effectively. Few people see anti-social or drunk and rowdy behaviour as
being a problem. Serious acquisitive crime increased slightly in 2008/09 but it
remains below the 2006/07 level. The increase is due mainly to a 14 per cent
increase in domestic burglaries.

The Council’s Youth Offending Team has worked well with young offenders,
contributing to the number of first time entrants to the youth justice system
falling by a third. Reoffending by young people in York is also going down but
is higher than in similar areas. The percentage of young offenders engaging in
education and work is also low compared with other areas.

The Council has good arrangements for ensuring children and young people
are safeguarded. Children’s needs are assessed quickly and families are given
the support they need to help them cope. This has resulted in fewer children
coming back on to the child protection register than in most other parts of the
country.

The Council and its partners have also had some success in improving road
safety, with a slight fall in the number of people killed or seriously injured in
road traffic accidents in 2008/09.

Learning City
Children’s services in York perform excellently. York’s schools provide a high

standard of education for most local children. Most schools, children’s homes,

6 City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 43

pupil referral units, nurseries and childminders are good or better. This means
that almost all children and young people get good help and support. Ofsted’s
inspections of York’s schools found most of them to be good or better more
than is found in similar areas or nationally. No school in York is inadequate.
York Council’s adoption and fostering agencies are outstanding and children’s
homes are good or outstanding. Most childcare is good or better. Nursery and
primary schools in York perform better than in similar areas or nationally.

Ofsted and the Audit Commission looked in December 2008 at how York’s
children are kept safe. They said these arrangements were outstanding. The
review also looked at the services children in the Council’s care receive. These
too were outstanding. There has been one serious case review since
December 2008 which was judged adequate.

York’s performance against almost all national performance indicators for
education matches or exceeds that of similar areas. The number of children
achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE including English and Maths is
among the highest in the country, despite falling slightly in 2008/09.

Children from communities at risk of disadvantage do not necessarily do as
well though. York’s vulnerable children and young people do not do as well as
their peers. Most young people get services that are good or better but one of
the City’s special schools and one of its units for pupils with challenging
behaviour are adequate. This is in the context of good or better provision for
the majority of young people.

Also, children aged 11 who have free school meals do less well than the rest
of their age group. This gap is wider in York than elsewhere in the country. A
similar gap exists for young people at 16 who have special educational needs.
Some young people from a minority ethnic background do not do as well as
their peers at 16.

The skills of the working age population are improving. About three out of
every four people in the city now have at least an NVQ Level 2 qualification.
This is below the target the Council and its partners set for themselves. They
know more needs to be done to ensure local people are able to take
advantage of new job opportunities as the economic recession ends.

As the economic downturn developed, the number of 16 to 18 year olds not in
education, training or employment increased in 2008/09 to 4.2 per cent. But
this is still much lower than in most parts of the country.

A smaller proportion of young people from poorer homes in York go on to

higher education than is the case for those from better off families. This gap is
wider than in many other parts of the country.

Inclusive City

The Council and its partners have made some improvements to the quality of
services to those with specific needs. The Care Quality Commission has rated
the City Council’s adult social care as performing well and improvement from
last year.

The Council has improved the quality of services to vulnerable older people,

7  City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 44

but more needs to be done. Significant improvements were made in 2008/09
for older people with care needs, and the number of people being supported
to live independently in their own homes increased by over a tenth.

More carers now get support. A high proportion of older people are satisfied
with their homes and the local neighbourhood although many feel more needs
to be done to help them live independently. In comparison with services in
other similar areas, performance remains below average and the Council
recognises the need to take further action to continue the improvement so
far.

The Council has also reduced the time taken to carry out assessments of
children with care needs. Children in its care are being moved around less
which is better for them. A high proportion of parents are satisfied with the
services provided to disabled children, with York coming out top of 30
authorities who took part in a survey in 2008/09.

Good progress has been made in meeting the city's housing needs. The
number of homes not meeting the Government’s decency standards fell by
almost half to 5.7 per cent in 2008/09. There are 151 new affordable homes
in the City because of the work of the Council and its partners. Although less
than the Council's target it represents good progress in the current economic
climate.

Work has recently started on replacing 100 prefabricated bungalows with 196
new homes across three sites in the city. These include 95 houses and
apartments for affordable rent, discounted sale and sale on the open market.
There will be new housing too designed to meet the needs of older people.

The Council has also been successful in dealing with homelessness, with the
number of families living in temporary accommodation decreasing by a fifth,
although homelessness of young adults remains relatively high.

City of Culture

The Council, with partners, has continued to provide the City of Festivals
programme. This includes events dealing with different cultural activities such
as dance, food and drink, literature and sport. As well as a residents’ festival,
some events are targeted at different groups, such as older people. Local
people are closely involved in the festival programme. The festivals uphold and
promote the strong sense of community for many in the city.

Cultural facilities are a key part of the attraction for visitors to the city and
satisfaction with subregional cultural attractions, such as museums and art
galleries, is high.

The Council has taken some actions to encourage local people to take
advantage of local facilities. For examples the Council is developing the
“Changing Places” project. This is opening up the city and cultural and leisure
opportunities to people with more complex health and care needs.

Satisfaction with facilities provided for the use of local people, such as libraries

and sport and leisure facilities, is poor despite recent improvements. There
have been delays with plans to redevelop the Barbican Centre and, although

8 City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 45

progress has been made in improving the quality of some swimming pools and
sports centres, rates of adult participation in active sport and recreation are
low. Targets for increasing participation in physical activity have not been met.

The Council has taken action to develop and improve play areas and the level
of satisfaction with parks and open spaces is above average.

Healthy City

The Council has taken actions to improve the health of local people, although
results have been mixed. The Council is joining in a local ‘Altogether Better’
programme focusing on healthy eating, physical activity and mental well-being
and has targeted those with greater health and social care needs.

Healthy eating programmes have been introduced for older people in
residential care, although these are not in place in all facilities provided by
independent providers. Despite introducing a range of activities, the
proportion of adults taking part in physical activity has fallen. A ‘Fit as a Fiddle’
programme has been introduced to encourage older people to take part in
physical exercise. The numbers of people taking part are increasing and, as
well as helping older people stay healthy, the programme provides older
people who would otherwise have been isolated, a chance to socialise.

The Council has been successful in developing services to help older people
live independently, although the number of older people being admitted to
residential care remains relatively high. The Council has strengthened its
arrangements for safeguarding vulnerable older people and treating them
with dignity and respect. Carers now have greater choice to enable them to
get personalised support that bests meets their circumstances, although more
needs to be done to support them.

The Council has been more successful in promoting healthy lifestyles with
children and young people. Health promotion in York’s schools has had a
positive impact on most pupils. More children take partin PE and sport than in
similar areas, although the take up of school lunches is lower. Obesity rates in
primary schools remain lower than most parts of the country, although there
was a slight increase in 2008/09.

Services for young people needing support for mental health issues are good
and are better than most other parts of the country, although services for
adults are not as effective.

Despite projects to reduce it, the rate of pregnancies in the under-18 age
group has continued to increase. Unplanned and unwanted conceptions are a
particular area of concern. Work is continuing on this and the Council is
hopeful that the situation is now improving.

9 City of York Council



Organisational Assessment Mublication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 46

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

Alternative formats - If you require a copy of PDF documents in this site in
large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

10 City of York Council



Page 47

Annual Audit
Letter

City of York Council
Audit 2008/09
November 2009

‘B g(%'rﬁht]ission



Page 48

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body.
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors
accept no responsibility to:

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or
any third party.



Page 49

This report summarises the findings from our 2008/09 audit. It includes messages
arising from the audit of your financial statements and the results of the work | have
undertaken to assess your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of
resources.

| gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008/09 financial statements on
30 September 2009.

The draft financial statements presented for audit contained a number of significant
and material errors which the Council amended. The Council is designing and
implementing quality assurance processes that will prevent and detect these errors
before the 2009/10 draft financial statements are approved by members and submitted
for audit.

Additional audit work required to give the unqualified opinion has resulted in me
charging the Council an extra £2,000.

| gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's value for money arrangements in
2008/09.

The Council's overall use of resources score for 2008/09 is level 2, meeting minimum
standards and representing an adequate performance.

Within this score there are elements of stronger performance in some areas, in
particular the Council's provision of value for money services, its risk management
arrangements and elements of its commissioning of services.

The Council has embarked on a challenging programme to deliver £15m efficiency
savings over a three year period. The successful delivery of this programme should
have a positive impact on the Council's future use of resources.



Page 50

Actual Proposed Variance
Financial statements and annual 134,701 132,701 2,000
governance statement
Value for money 108,354 108,354 0
Total audit fees 243,055 241,055 2,000
Non-audit work 0 0 0
Total 243,055 241,055 2,000

Recommendations are shown within the body of this report and have been agreed with
officers.

The audit has been carried out in accordance with the Audit Commission’s policies on
integrity, objectivity and independence.



Page 51

The Council's financial statements and annual governance statement are an
important means by which it accounts for its stewardship of public funds.

| gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008/09 financial statements on
30 September 2009.

My audit of the 2008/09 financial statements identified a number of errors, and some
were material.

A significant proportion of the errors related to the tangible fixed assets balance and
the related capital accounting entries. In particular we identified a number of duplicate
entries in the 'assets under construction' category of the balance sheet. In total the
tangible fixed assets balance was reduced by £25.5m from the balance in the draft
financial statements as a result of my audit.

The asset register has an important role in helping the Council manage and account
for its tangible fixed assets. While the Council has improved the usefulness and quality
of its asset register from 2007/08, further work is needed to ensure that it is fully
effective. The Council is reviewing the register to ensure that it contains all, and only,
the fixed assets that it needs to account for in 2009/10.

Other material errors included £15.3m of expenditure and £2.6m of income being
mis-classified in the Income & Expenditure Account, and £19.5m mis-classified as a
deferred asset and a deferred liability in the balance sheet, as a result of a change in
the financial reporting requirements. In addition there were several smaller value
errors.

Officers are establishing the reasons why these errors occurred, and are committed to
implementing a thorough robust quality assurance process, to identify and correct the
errors before the financial statements are approved in June 2010.

Implement a thorough and robust quality assurance process that is designed to
identify material errors in the financial statements before they are approved in
June 2010.



Page 52

Whilst my audit identified a greater number of errors than the previous year's audit, the
Council had improved its project planning and project management for producing the
2008/09 financial statements. The financial statements were produced slightly earlier
than in 2007/08, and the supporting working papers were generally produced to the
required standard. | will continue to work with officers to enable them to deliver further
improvements in 2009/10.

Other than the comments above relating to the quality assurance processes in the
closedown of the accounts, | did not identify any significant weaknesses in your
internal control arrangements.

The Council made a number of amendments to the presentation of the financial
statements before we gave our opinion. These amendments improved the quality of
the financial statements.

There are some outstanding matters that officers intend to resolve in the 2009/10
financial statements, and | will work closely with officers to continuously improve the
quality of the financial statements. These matters were fully reported in my 2008/09
Annual Governance Reports issued in September 2009.



Page 53

| considered how well the Council is managing and using its resources to deliver
value for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local people, and gave a
scored use of resources judgement.

| also assessed whether the Council put in place adequate corporate arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is
known as the value for money (VFM) conclusion.

In forming my scored use of resources judgements, | have used the methodology set
out in the use of resources framework Judgements have been made for each key line
of enquiry (KLOE) using the Audit Commission’s current four point scale from 1 to 4,
with 4 being the highest. Level 1 represents a failure to meet the minimum
requirements at level 2.

| have also taken into account, where appropriate, findings from previous use of
resources assessments (updating these for any changes or improvements) and any
other relevant audit work. However, the 2008/09 assessment is very different from
previous assessments. Judgements are now much more strategic and less detailed,
with a focus on outcomes rather than processes. The standard required to achieve a
level two assessment has been raised and is now much more demanding.

The Council's use of resources theme scores are shown in Table 2 below. The key
findings and conclusions for the three themes, and the underlying KLOE, are
summarised in Appendix 1.

Use of resources theme Scored judgement
Managing finances 2
Governing the business 2

Managing resources 2



Page 54

The Audit Commission’s overall score for the Council’'s use of resources is level 2
(performing adequately). This takes into account

the Audit Commission’s scoring criteria in the new Use of Resources approach this
year; and

the Council’s planned and actual progress, and the positive impact this should
have on the Council’'s arrangements.

The Council has embarked on a three year efficiency programme to realise £15m of
savings and improve service delivery. While it is too early to assess the impact of this
programme on the outcomes delivered by the Council, it is clear that the successful
delivery of the programme is critical for the Council to achieve its priorities with the
strict financial climate facing all public service bodies.

The Council has an established and well understood financial planning and monitoring
system. The design of the system is geared towards identifying and monitoring
efficiencies and savings in a detailed and methodical way on a service by service level,
rather than focusing on more corporate wide and cross directorate efficiencies.

The Council has recognised the difficulties in continuing with this approach and taken
positive action by employing an efficiency partner to look for savings across the
Council, as well as reviewing and revising the existing financial planning and
monitoring arrangements.

The Council has developed a strategic approach to asset management, which has had
some positive impact, but is not consistently applied across the organisation. The
approach is centred around a corporate Asset Management Plan (AMP) and a
corporate Asset Management Group charged with the task of implementing the AMP.
The group relies on influence rather than direct control of asset management across
the Council, and structures are not in place across the Council to ensure the principles
of good asset management are applied consistently. Implementation plans for asset
management are not consistently robust. Corporate and service AMPs are not
under-pinned by robust implementation plans although the existing area-based AMPs
have action plans which are clearly focused on local needs and priorities.

The delivery of the Council's ambitions for asset management is constrained by limited
financial resources and a lack of a full understanding of how assets contribute to the
achievement of corporate priorities. This makes it difficult to ensure that financial
resources are consistently prioritised to maximise their impact, although there are
examples of how social and environmental outcomes have been improved.

The Council does not have systems in place to effectively demonstrate value for
money in asset management. Steps are being taken to address the gaps in information
regarding the Council's asset portfolio through the development of a new asset
database.



Page 55

Performance indicators are not routinely used to monitor progress against the
corporate AMP. Annual benchmarking is carried out against a set of national asset
management indicators, but there is no framework of local indicators and targets to
monitor progress against the objectives and priorities contained in the corporate AMP.

The Council is not addressing the growing level of backlog maintenance. There is a
repair and maintenance strategy which is managed by the corporate landlord, and
aims to ensure the effective use of the Council's resources. It sets a number of
objectives designed to ensure that all the Council's assets are fit for purpose by 2017.
However, as repair and maintenance budgets are largely devolved to services, it is
difficult to ensure that they are consistently prioritised in line with the corporate Asset
Management Plan.

There are examples of how the Council is improving services through improvements to
its asset base. However, there is no consistent approach to challenge whether assets
are required, fit for purpose, and provide value for money in meeting current and future
needs.

The Council has an established policy to work with community groups which is
delivering community benefits. There are examples of assets being transferred to
community groups which have had a positive impact and others are being considered,
particularly in relation to those areas covered by an area Asset Management Plan. The
Council is also developing its approach to working with partners to improve the
effectiveness of the asset base. There are examples of shared use of buildings, but the
Council recognises the need to adopt a more strategic approach.

Produce and implement action plans arising from the use of resources
assessments and value for money work.

| assessed your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your
use of resources against criteria specified by the Audit Commission. From 2008/09, the
Audit Commission will specify each year, which of the use of resources KLOE are the
relevant criteria for the VFM conclusion at each type of audited body. My conclusions
on each of the areas are set out in Appendix 1.

| issued an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council had adequate arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.



Page 56

| have agreed this letter with the Chief Executive and the Director of Finance. | will
present this letter at the Audit & Governance Committee in December 2009 and it will
be made available to all members.

Further detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations in the areas covered by
our audit are included in the reports issued to the Council during the year.

Report Date issued
Audit & Inspection Plan April 2008
Financial Planning & Monitoring Arrangements March 2009
Data Quality Arrangements April 2009
Supplementary Opinion Plan April 2009

Use of Resources Report September 2009
Annual Governance Report September 2009
Supplementary Governance Report September 2009
Asset Management Report November 2009

The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to our audit. | wish to
thank officers for their support and co-operation during the audit.

Steve Nicklin
District Auditor
November 2009



Page 57

"Jeak sy} SJUNOOIE. Jeip ay} Yim

SONSS| [BLB)BW PaliluUSpl SABY oM JaAaMOH “pajeadal uaaq Jou aaey sieak snoinaid Jo swa|qold ay) Jo 8wos }nsal e se pue sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew josfoid
poob Buipnjoul sjuswabuele umopasold panoidwi 92e|d Ul }8s sey [Iouno 8y} INg ‘Way) YIM SBNSS| snolawnu pey aAeY sjuswalels |eioueuly lipne-aid siesh
snoinaid By "SJUBLUSSOSSE $924N0Sal JO 9Sn ,sJeaA aunyny uo joedwi [Im ‘sieah aaiy) ul sbBuines Aousioiys JO WG| 3 9ASIYJE 0 s388s Yoiym swweiboid Aousioiye
s,|louno) 8y “seale Buipodal [eroueuly pue Buiuue|d |eldueuly 8y} 0} sjuswancidwi Buew si pue ‘s}sod sy Buipuelsiapun uo Ajbuol)s pawlopad sey [19unod ay |

suoisn|auod pue sbuipuly Aoy

z 91090S dwdY |

"SalaY) S824n0sal JO 8sn 8aJy) Y] JO Yoes Joj suoisnjouod pue sbulpuly Asy ay) esuewwns sajge) Buimojjo) ay |



Page 58

-abug|leyo pue Auinios aAIjONIISUOD aJow WOJ) Jduaq pjnom asay) ybnoyye ‘sieah jusgal ul sjesodoud

106png ay) 0) uonejal ul 1PUN0D AQ play usaq aney sajeqap Ayibus| pue ‘siaquisw pue s1ad1yo 0} papircid usaq sey Buiuiel) pajebie) swog “saljjigisuodsal asay)
punoJe yJomawel} ay} apiroid uonebajaqg jo swayog pue suonenbay [eloueuld 8y) pue ‘uonniIsuoD ay} ul Jno 1as Aes|o ale sanljigisuodsal [BNpIAIPU| “[IOUN0D
[N} 03 ybnouyy ajelooalip wouy sueld [eioueuly 8y} Jo Juswdodasp pue Buiuodal Jo saull Jes|d Y)im 81njonais 80UBUIBAO0E [BIouUBUL POO)SISpUN ||9M B Sey |Iouno) 8y |
‘pasde||00 SyuUBq 8y} usym

pasodxa jou sem )i Ajjusnbasuo) "papesbumop Buleq sbuijes J1palo sy} 0) Joud SJUBLIISSAUI 8S8Y) PSPUS PBY NG SYUEBJ JIPUR|SI| Ul SJUBWIISSAUI SABY PIP [1I0UN0D
a3y eouepinb y4d|D Junodoe Ojul Usye) Sey pue ‘syueq dIpueao| au} Jo asde|j0o ay) o b ul ABajels Juswabeuely Ainseal] S} pamalnal Sey [1Iouno) 8y |
“Jejndodun aq 03 Jybnouy) Aisnoinaid ‘sywiad Buiyled yuspisal

uou JO JS02 8Yj Ul 8sealoul 8y} se yons apew Bulaq suoisiosp jo6pnq oioads 0) pa| UOIIRNSUOD 8y} pue ‘sjuspisal Jo Juad 1ad g Aq 0) pepuodsal alom shaAins ay)
60/800Z U] "Jaqwiada ul uoneynsuod jo6png Japim s} Jo Jed se siapjoyayels yim sdoysyiom se |jom se sAaains aul| uo pue |ejsod pue Jaquiaydag ul Uolje}nsuoo
196pnq awayos juswancidwi |BOO| Sapn|oul Jey) Jepusied Juswabebus ue pue Absjeng juswabebug ue padojansp sey [1DuUnod ay) ‘Buluueld jeioueuly Jo SWIs)

u| ‘sjuswissasse Joedw saiienba Bupjeuspun Aq §0/200z 92uis uone|siba| sanienba ay) yum aul| ul saibajel)s pue saioljod sy Buissasse usaq sey [1I9UnoD ay |

"saljiiold Janlap 0} shkem anneulsye alojdxa pue asn adinosal abusjieyd o} papusiul

sI pajuswajdwi mou malnal Aousioiys ay) pue ‘sanold oibajens Aay s,|10uno) ay) sjo9jal pue pajepdn Ajeinbail si jjasy Abajel)s [elouruly WIS) wWNipaw ay |
‘Buipuels |eIoUBUL PUNOS B UIBJUIBW O} PaSU 8y} PUB ‘WId) WNIPaW 8y} JOAO S|[BfIOYS 82IN0Sal S}l JO SSBUBIEME S |IDUNOY 8y} JO

}nsal JoaJp B aJe sieak aaiy} }xau a8y} Jono palinbai sbuines WG 3 8yl "0L/600Z woly ssedoud Buiuueld 196png sy} 03 Indui 10841p B peYy 810}818y) pue ‘WJsd} wnipaw
a2y} Jono sBulnes Jo s|ons| palinbaua Ajiuspl 0) padjay sey jey; Jouped Aouaiolye ue Buuiodde Aq pasnooy ajelo03o0alip uey) ajelodiod alow sbulaes axew 0} paAow
Ajuaoal sey [19uno) ay| “slequisy Aq pasiunnios suejd sBuiaes onsijeal 1nqg buibus|jeyo Aq pauoddns ‘jos si 1@bpng onsijeal pue paouejeq ‘aAisuayaldwod
‘sessao0ud Buiuue|d

[BIOUBUL [BNUUE PUB WIS} Wnipaw 8y} 0} |9|jeded ui unu ase jey} Buluued seoinosal uewny pue ]| ‘|ended 1oj sassao0id oy} 0} spewl 8q 0} pasu syul| 31o1jdxs alow
pue J8so|2 Jng ‘ssed0.d uoneoyinuapl sbuines [enuue ay) o} [eibajul si Buibieyd swoou| “uil 3jing sa1ousbuuod pue paIsapisuod AjpAljoe ale syuswdolaasp Bulwoodn
ybnoyie ‘(S41IN) Abajelis [eloueuly WIS} WNIpaw ay) 0} uone(al ul saiold a2iAles pue ajelodlod Buiasiyoe Jou JO SYSU BY) 0] Spew aq 0} paau syul| Jales|D
"SOOIAISS |[B SSOIOB SOI0UBIDIS pue SjuswaAcidwl 821AI8S JBAIIBP pue ajelBajul A|iny 0] 31 8jgeus pinoys swwelboid Aousioiys mau s [1ounoD)

ay| ‘sbuines Aousiolye 0} pajnguuod sey josloid yoA@Ase] ayj 0} Buipuny Jo uonoalipal ay) pue ‘sieaA snoiaaid ul ajeqep juedyiubis 0} 10algns usaq aaey Buipuny
Jo} sanuoud ay | ‘syjuswanoidwi Ajuoud aa1A18s ay) puny Ajin} 0] papasu alnjipuadxe ay) uo Buisnoo} uey) Jayjed ‘saijLioud a0IAISS JO JuswaAalyoe ay) asipledos(
1,uop 1ey) sauo Jiaqe ‘sbuines Bupew uo usaq Ajgbie| sey buiuueld jeioueuly Jo snooy ay] “sanuoud yum paiedwod uonesljiin 82inosal Jo sisAjeue ue apnjoul
[1ouno) 0} syodal pue ‘saiuioud uo joeduwl Jisy) JO SWIS) Ul palapisuod ale sjesodold sbuineg -pajelbojul Ajjened ale sassaooid Buluue|d 8)ei0dioo pue [eioueul 4

suoiIsn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy
SOA jJow uoLIdIID NW4A
(4 9109g

(Bujuueld jejoueuy) L'} 30IM



Page 59

‘ubisapal 821AI8S |BjUBSWIEPUNY

ybnouy) sieah aaiy) 1xau ay} 1on0 WG| F Jo sbuines Aousiolyje ayew 0} swie yoiym aininy ayj Jo} swwelboid Aousioiye snopique ue dojaasp 0} Jaulied 10joss ajeaud
B U}IM PaYIOM SBY [I0UN0Y 8] "SB2IAISS 0} $$822e panosdwi pue sbuines Aousiolis ul pa}nsal sey Yolym sieak Jo Jaquinu e JI8A0 SMalAal Jo abuel e pajesodiooul
sey pue ABojouyds) mau Jo asn aAleAouul Bupew si swwesboud siy] -swwelboid yioA@Ases ay) Aq paouspire se ‘saijuold uo snooy Jes|o B Sl alayl ‘60/8002

ur panaiyoe buieq 6/ 1 IN Aq painsesw sbuiaes Buises|al yseo wig3 JoAo pue papasodxs Buisaq g0//00Z 0} Sieak 81y} ay) Jo Yoes oy s}abie) Aousiois yum way)
Buinsiyoe Jo piodal yoed) B sey [19UnoD 8y} pue ‘s}abie) Aousios Buibus)ieyo jo Bumes ay) salinbai sajelado [1oUN0D 8y} YdIym UIYlIm SJUIBAISuod [eoueuly Jybn ay |
"PaAaIYOE UBa(Q SABY SBWO02IN0 aA1)ISod awos pue 1oedwl [BloUBUL 8Y) SB ||@M SB SaNSSI |BI00S pue |BJuSWUOIIAUS JO JUNOJE saye) ABajesls

juswiainNgoid 9|geulrisng s 1ounoD ayl “A)o ayj Jo sued awos ul s)sixa yoiym deb saijiienba ayy buimouseu uo siseydws Buisealoul ue yym ‘sjoeduwl [BJUSWIUOIIAUS
pue [e100s Japim Buliapisuod awly swes ay) 1e 1sjiym Aouaioa anoidwi 0y diysisued ul payiom sey [1Iouno) ayj moy Jo sajdwexa Jo Jaquinu e ale alay |

‘1oedwi [enusjod Jo ajeds ay) pue sanlioud yum juswubiie uo paseq punj AlaAlap

VYV 1 84} JO UOIBDO||B 10} SPIF UO SUOISIOap apew aaey siaulied ataym Bunjiom diysisuped 0] spusixa yoeoidde siy| -uoljepowwodde ad1jo mau Jo Juswdoaasp ay)
0} Bunejas asoy) se yons ‘suoisioap oibejels Jolew o) Ajjenba saidde 1 puy “Sseale Jo Jaquinu B Ul SSWO0JIN0 0} S)S0D JO oljel 8y} ul sjuswsroidwi [enpelb ul pajnsal
SABY U2IYm SUOISIO8p |euoiielado sunnod 0} saiidde siy] “Bupjew uoisipap wioul 0} [esodsip S} Je UOIIBWIOUI IS0 8U} JO SN Ja)aq ayew 0} buiuels si [1ounod ay |
‘Bupjiom diysisuyied Jonod 0y padojensp Buiaq si yoeoisdde siy| "sawooino AIsAijap 821AI8S 0} 8)NQIIUO0D S)SO0D MOY UO 8)eqap pawloul

aIow e 9|qeus 0} JI01|dxa 810w apew aq 0} pasu Seale OM] 9S8y} Usam]aq Syul| 8y} Jng uoljewlojul Juswsbeuew souewlopad 891AI8S )M Sisquisw 0} pauodas mou
Bulojiuow |eIoUBUIH JUBWISSSSSE |BJUSLIUOIIAUS UB PapN|oul 0S| Sey YdIym ‘Uoljepowilodde 8210 mau 0} snow pauueld ayj se yons ‘sjosfoud Jolew oy paidde

aJe sanbjuyos) Buisoo a}1| BJOYAA [1IOUNOD By} SSOJOB S)SOI BoUBSE SSBUYDIS Bulonpal se yons ‘sanss| 8}elodiod SSaIppe 0} Udxe) usaq Os|e Sey UOIJO. [NjSsadong
"S9OIAISS 40} puewap Buimolb sy} Jo JUNOIJ. Y00) puB SjusWBA0IdWI BIIAISS PaIBAIIBP OS|e INg ‘}S0D 8dnpal 0} SUOIJOB Papn|oul SBJIAISS

8led }Inpe JO M3IASI Y “PBUIBISNS SBJIAISS S,UaJp|Iy2d ul aouewsopad ybiy pue ‘siesah juadal ul saoinies Ajloud jo abuel e ul spew usaq aAey sjuswanoldwi ‘s}sod
Buibeuew uo snooj Buoss ay) audsaq "Aousioiyaul [enusajod Jo seale Ajjuspl 03 sasn 1 yoiym saniunuoddo Bupjiewyousaq snolawnu Jo asn Sayew [Iouno) ay |

‘Alleuoneu sj1ounoo Alejun Jo 8.l Xe] [1I9uno) @ pueg 1Semo| pJiYyl ay) pue peay Jad puads 1semo| sy 1e sasiales Alijenb poob JaAljep 0] [10UnoD ay) psjgeus
sey souewIopad pue }sod Uo snooy Buols v "Aj[euisixs pue Ajjeussiul yloq ‘seinssaid pue sisAlp Asy ay) pue ‘sjsod sy Jo Buipueisispun Jesjo e Sey [1I9unod ay |

suolIsn|suod pue sbuipuiy Aoy

SaA Jow uou=Id NWAA
€ 9100g

(sa1ouaioyya Buiaaiyoe pue s3sod Bulpuelsiapun) 'L JO M



Page 60

-asay) Buneoo| Jo ases ay) 0] spew usaq aArY Ssjuswaroldwl Juadal pue uone|suel) abenbue| ubiaio) Buipnjoul
‘SJUBLINDOP JO SUOISIOA 3|QISSOI. JUSISHIP UO UOIBWIOLUI UIBJUOD SS0P 8)IS oM S,[10uUnoD) 8y “Ajunwiuod [e00| 8SIS9AIP SU} JO SPaauU 8y} JodW pue Ssasse
0} papaau S| yiom Jayuny jey) pabpsimounoe sey pue ‘syuswinoop ajqejieae Apiignd sy Jo Ajjigqissaooe ayy Buinoidwi ul ssaifold swos spew sey |1Iounod ay |

"1eaAk 1se| woly panoidwi sey |iesy Joded Bupjiom 8y “owi} UO SIBQWISW 0} PARILIGNS SJIOM SJUNOJJE

3y} pue ‘ueah ise| ueyy yoeolidde pabeuew josloid pue painjoniis aiow e Buisn paonpoud ussq aAeyY 60/800Z U! HpNe 10} pajiwgns SJUSWS)e)S [elouBUl Y |

"ABM JUB)SISUOD puUB B3O B Ul 8pEeW JOU AJuslind ale ejep |BIOUBUY-UOU pUE [eloueul) usamlag sabeyul ay)

‘ejep Jo s}os om) oy} ule|dxa 0y spodal sy} ul suoljeue|dxs Jes|d aie a1ay) pue ‘Wodal ajbuls e ul Jeyj}abo) pauodal S| UoIjeWIOolU| [BIDUBULL UOU pUE |eloueul Yybnoyyy
‘pJomaloy} 8y} Ul |9A8] Alewwins B Je uinjno o)

196pnq Jo uosuedwod e uiejuod Op sjusawWalels ay) ybnoyje ‘syuswalels [eioueuly ay) ul Ajjeussixa pauodal 8soy) pue sjnsal payodal Ajjeulajul usamiaq |ieJ) Jea|o
e Ajjuapl 0} ynoiip si ) Buuojuow |eroueuly Ul pasn ale suonasfosd yoiym ul Aem ayj 0} anQq “pauiiuspl aie spuadsiano aiaym Alaaljap 891A18s uo Jpoedw [eiusjod
Aue ajebijiw 0} uaye) 8q 0} UoIO. O} JUBIDIYNS SI PapIACId UOIIBLWIIOUI JBY) UMOYS SeY SieaA snoiaald ul YIom INQ "Sanss| Joulw uo snooy alow Bunowoud Ajjenusyod
pue ‘Ayjbus| suodal [ewloy aiow asay) Bupew ‘(sesodind jJuswabeuew asuewuopsad 10} Je pay0o| 84 JYBIW SSOUBIIBA JOUIL 8I0W dISYM) [9A3]| 8)BI0}D8.IP Y}
anoqe payuodal ale 000 ‘0G3F JOA0 saoueLIeA || “sjuswdolaasp Buiwoodn umouy pue spuadl Buljieasud Jo Jeak Joud uo paseq ale jsow ‘suonosfosd asayy buionpoud
Jo} ABojopoylawi 1os ou si a1ay} ybnoyle pue ‘pus Jeah ay) 0} suoijosfosd uo paseq AlBAISN|oXd Jsowle sI Bulojluow ‘[9As| 8)eioloalIp 8A0QY “yoeoldde ul suonelea
ale alay) pue a|gejawi} Buoyuow 3o6pnq |euIO) B sey 8)elojoalip auo Ajuo ybnoyje ‘siseq Ajyiuow e uo Ajiewid si sajelojoadip ulyym Bunuodal jeroueuly ay |
'600¢Z aunp ul pajussald

sem lodal |eulj e alojeq 600z Alenuepr 0) pouad ay) ul pajeljusduod aism suodal pue ‘gz Jeqwaidag [un uonewuoul Buuojuow }ebpng aAlgda1 Jou pPIp SIaqWIBIA|
"$8]2J0J08.IP JSOW Ul 800z AINe [13un uels

Jou pip Buloluow Jey) Juesw SJUNOJDE 8y} JO 8INSOID pue §O/800Z Ul pajdope ajgelawl) ay) ‘8insol0 SJUnodoe Jajse) Jo sainssald pajedionue ayy yym adoo 1ounod
ay} djay pjnoys sjuswaAciduwl panuiUOD 8y | JUBLUSSSSSE $82IN0SAY JO 8SM ,sieak 1xau ul 8say) Jo joedwl ay) SSBSSE |[IM dM pue 0|/600Z Ul pajuswsa|dwi Buiaq
ale sjuswaaoidwl Jayun4 *60/800¢ JO pPus 8y} 810489 SIY} JO BWOS Juswaldwi 0} pauels pey pue ‘yiomawel} Buipiodal [eloueuly pasiaal e Buidojeasp si 1oUnoD ay |
“1eaA ay) ybnoly) uonisod payosloid ay) pue 16png ay; yum aulj ul Buieq uinpno 60/800Z Y1 0) paINguUIUc sey SIy| “uoiewloul Buuojuow ay) uo Auinios
8]e10di09 JO [9A8] 8y) pue Bullojuow [9Ad] 8jelojoalIp 8y} 0} spiebal yum Auenaiued ‘go//00Z SoUls apew uasq aAey sjuswanoidul '|9A8] 8)el0diod ay) Je uey)
|9A3] 8)eIO}OBIIP 8Y} Je 8AI08YS8 pue jJuanbaly aiow usaq sey Buuojuow go/800Z Ul ybnoyye ‘eoeld ul swslsAs Bulojiuow [eioueUl 8jenbape sey [1ounoy sy} [|BISAQ

suoisnjouod pue sbuipuiy Aoy
SOA JoWw UoLIdIIO N4A
[4 9109g

(Bunuodai jeroueuy) €L 30



Page 61

"AJaAljop 82IAI8S JO ALIOU0DS paxiw aI0W

B SpJemo] |1ouno) ay) BulALIp sI SIy| “S921AIas Aay JO Jaquunu e Jo ubisapal [ejuswepun) e ybnouy) sieak aaly) 1xau ay) Jono SBUIABS WG |3 JOAIISp 0] SWie Yolym
awwelbold mainay Aousiolyg Jolew e yum pajeibajul buieq si swweliboid Y10ADAsES oy "S8OIAISS paleys Swos pue ‘aled awoy JO Sjuswald pue jJuswabeuew
199|} ‘S921AISS Yiom}au pabeuew se yons ‘sa0inIas palnoold Ajjleula)xs Jo sejdwexa swos ale a1ay | “Buppom sjigow Buipusixa se yons saaneniul ybnoiy)
S8I0UBIDIYS puUEe SjuswaAcidwl 82IAI8S Jaylny JoAIIBp 0} Buaas si pue S82IAI8S 0} SSBJ0E J0alIp JO sueaw B Se a)Is gam s) dojaaap 0} Buinunuoo s |1IDunoD ay |

-ABojouyoa) Jo asn ay) pue ubisapal sseo0id ssauisng ybnouy) sieak aaiyj 1se| ay) Jono sbuines Aousiolye a|geysed ul 000703 palanep

pue sadIAIas 0] Ssa92e panciduw sey swuwelbolid yioA@Ases ay] ‘Aousiole anoidwi pue saolales ubisapal 03 ABojouyoa) Jo asn poob Buew si pue ‘mainal

10} sao1n1es Buisnioud pue juswanoidwi 1oy seale BulAjnuapl Ul sisuled pue siasn WOoJ) YOBgPaa) JO JUNCOJE S8 .} PUB UONOR)SIIES 92IAISS SI0)UOW [I0UN0D 8Y |
"S$S920B asiwixew 0) Aem e ul paubisap ale sa2IAI8s ainsud 0} 109loid yloA@Ases ay) pue 108loid uoiepOWWOIO. 8210 MBU 8Y) SB yons

syo9loud a1el10diod jJo ubisap ay) uo 10edwi ue pey os|e sey juswabebus Ajunwwos -suejd uonoe pooytnoqybiau padojoAsp aABY YOIYUMm SOILIWIOD PIBAA SAII084S
1o ylomiau e ybnouy) juswanoiduwi Joy sanlioud [eoo| Buisaibe ul paAjoAul a1e saljunwwo) “8jdoad Jap|o 10} 8JIAISS UOIIBULIOJUI PUB 8JIAPE MU B PUB 8JIAI9S
suosiadApuey e jo Buluoissiwwod ay) ul paynsal sey suwwelboid ajdoad bunuoddng ay) 0} payull Juswabebus Jesn “eidoad Jap|o pue sanigesip yym sjdoad
‘ajdoad BunoA jo joadsali ul AjJeinoied ‘@ousnjjul ue pey SABY SMIIA 18U} MOY pue sadlAIas Buluoissiwwod ul pabebus usaq aney siasn moy Jo sajdwexa ale aiay |
"Spaau ainjnj Jo

JUNO22R S8 E) pUR ‘9|gelau|nA jsow asoy) Ajejnoiued ‘seaialas Buluoissiwwod o) yoeoidde ayy buiouanjui si siy] (1 Dd) 1snil aien Arewd ay) yum diysisuped ul
JNO palLIed JUBWISSaSSY SPadN d16ajen)S Julop ay) pue JuswdojdAap d1wouoda o) Bunejas sisAjeue Jaylny Aq pawojul osie si siy] "Absjens Ajunwuwod sjqeuieisng
ay} jo Juswdojansp ay) ul Juswabebus pue uolB}NSUOD BAISUSIXS YBNOoUy) Saijiunuwiwod [B20] JO sSpaau ay) Jo Buipueisiapun Jes|o e padoj@Asp sey |1Iounod ay |

suolIsn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy
SOA Jow uoudLId WAA

r4 21008

(Juswainsoud pue BujuoissIWWOI) L'z JO M

'SOWO02)N0 panosdul Jesjd ajeljsuowsp

0} 8|ge 8q 0} s}0adxa |1DUN0YD 8y} 8I8YM Q1/600Z Ul Buinunuod ale syjuswanrosdwi asay) pue ‘Ajjenb ejep s,[10unoD 8y3 0} Spew a8 0} SNUIIUOI sjuswarcidwl Jayun 4
"g|geJlau|nA Jsow asoy) Ajenoiued ‘ajdoad Japjo pue ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo ‘68 1o} sadinles Buluoissiwwod 0} yoeoidde Buoss e sey [1ounod ay| “sdiysiauped
S,|10UN0D By} 0} papualxa ale saoljoeld poob ayl yolym o) Jusixe ay) aaocidwi 0} adoos si alay) ybnoyye ‘yuswaebeuew ysu uo AjBuolys pawlopiad sey 1ounod ay |

suoiIsn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy

z 9109s awdYy |



Page 62

‘suonesiuebio Jayjo yim suosuedwod JUBASIaI Sapnjoul papiAcid uolewiou] "sanssi aouewlopad Jualind uo suonejuasald pue suodal yidep
-Ul JOPISUOD BAIIN23XT S,|I0UN0D Y] pue wea ] juswabeuepy ajeiodion Buiajoaul suolissas Buliojuow aouewlopad juiof ‘spodal Bulojuow Jeinbal 0} uonippe u|

‘puelisIapun 0} JaISes Way) ayew 0} pamalnal usaq Ajjuadal sey Jeulo) JIsy| "aoualpne ay} JO Spasu ay) 0} palojie)

SI YoIym uoljewlojul souewsopad |euoljesado pue |eloueul JO UoljeUIqUIOD B aphioul sJoday "siayew uolsioap poddns o) papiacid si uonewloul Aljenb poos

"J8S J0)JedIpU| [BUOIIBN MBU 8y} JO SWOS Jo Joadsal ul sanssi ylim Buliesp se |jom se ‘ejep diysiaued swos Ul sassauyeam ssaippe 0} buissaiboud si JIOAA 1oues Ul
S,]loun0) 8y} UlYIM eale paleys e ybnouy) Ajulew suop buleq ‘@yenbsape aie sisuped woly pajas||0d ejep Bunepljea 1o} swa)sAs pue ‘elep s|geldd pue JueAs|sl

Buisn pue Buronpoud jo plooal yoel) poob e sey [1ouno) sy “JIpne s JeaA 1se| ul pasiel sanssi 0) Buipuodsal ul ssalboud Buipnjoul ‘syuswabuelie Jo SSaUsANO8YS
8y} Uo slodal SaAIB08) 938)ILUWOY SOURBUIBAOS) B 1PNy 8y "eiep Jo Aoeinooe ay) 0] abus|jeyo Buiobuo ue sspinoid pue sa2IAISS UIYIM D suoldweyd yoiym (90d)
dnoug 19010 8ouUBWIONSd SPIM-IOUNOD B YBNnoly) uoijoe ojul paje|suel) si pue Uoijos||oo ejep ul sjuswaaocidwi poddns o} s)yj00) pue souepinb sepinoid Aoljod ay |
‘DA J0 $}98Yd Jpne |eulsjul 0} yoeoidde paseq-ysu

e Bulwlojul si pue ‘(yy]) Juswaalby ealy |20 8y} Ul papnjoul siojedipul Alioud asoyy yum Buipels ‘ssaiboud ul si Juswissasse siy| ‘pame|) Buiag eyep Jo sysu ay)
a1ebijiw 0} suonoe Ajjuapl pue splepuels ayj Jsuiebe Jojeoipul Yoea JO JUSWISSaSSE Palods B MOj[e 0] XUJeWw B sapnjoul j| “ejep o AJjIgissadoe pue ssauljawiy ‘AlpleA
‘Aoelnooe 1oy spiepue)s 1no sjas yoiym paydope usaq sey Aoljod v "ue|d Juswaaoidwi s,|louno ayy uiyum 10afoid Asy e se D@ Jo uoisnjoul sy} pue uoidweyo

DA Se 19010 421y k Jo uoneulwou ay} ybnolyy pesies usag sey sanssi D Jo ajyoid syl (Da) Ajenb ejep aasiano 0} yiomawel) 8)ei0diod Jsngol e si alay |

suolIsn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy

SOA JoWw UoLIdID N4A
[4 9109g

(uoneuwuoyur jo asn pue Ayjenb ejep) z'z 30IH

‘Joedw ay) Ajyuenb Ajny 0} 8|geun Si |1I9UNOY BY}

ybnoyyje ‘sbuines |eloueul) Se |[9m Se S)I1aua(g |BID0S pue |ejuswuocliaue Bulaalap si ABojelS Juswaindold 9|qeule)sng ay] “SWalsAs |BloUBUL MBU JO UOIIONPOJUI
oy} ybnouy) passaippe aq 0} si siy} ybnoyjje ‘ puads 10e1jU0I-140, JO JUBIXS 8} UO UOHBULIOUI pa}iwl| AQ paulwiapun S| SJOBIJUOD Ylomawely BuilsIxa JO SSeUSAIBD
ay] -epusbe saljiienbs ay) pue A}lIGBUIBISNS [EJUSWIUOIIAUS UO SNJ0J JB3[D B Sapnjoul $sa8o0id ay| "adueAape ul paysiignd eusjuo uonenjeas ypm ‘Ajjenb pue

}S09 S82UBIEq UYdIym [apow YY4d|D e Buisn psjenjeas aie siapusa) Joley "uoneneAs Japus) 1oj sassad0.d paysi|geisa [|am Sey [I9uno) 8y "SadIAas a1ed Allap|e Joj}
puewsp ul 8sealoul pajedioiue sy} Se Yyons ‘saoInIas 1o puewsap ul sabueyd oy uejd 0} S1ayio pue 10joas Alejunjon sy} yym Bujiom osje si )| ‘Asuow 10j anjea pue
sououd uo snooy pauieisns B aINsud 0) BuluoISSILIWOD pamalnal AjJuadal sey pue J0}o8s AJejun|on 8y} Wolj Jeak yoes SadIAIaS JO Wiy 3 JON0 Saind0id [1Iouno) ay
‘sJa1|ddns |e20] Jo ainjie} |eusjod 8y} 0} dnp SBIIAISS |1DUN0D O} Ysu 8y} Buisiwiuiw se ||am se sqol [eoo| Jos)oid

0} padjay sey Siy] "uinjumop 2IWOU0Id By} O} payul| S8ssaulsng |eoo| 0} Joddns ol1oads papiaoid sey [1I9UnoD ay) ‘ssauisng |IDUNOY 10} Japus) 0} Moy uo sialjddns
0) 82IApe pue Joddns |eijauab 0} uoIppe U] "S8JIAISS 1o} puewap Buisealoul ue }9aw 0} Ayoeded ay) Buidojaasp Ul pue s82IAI8S pasijeuosIad 810w SpJemo)

aAoW ay) Ul siepinold aied ynpe Buioddns si 3] “way) dojensp 0} sisuped yum Bujiom si pue sjaytew Ajddns |eooj jo Buipuelsiapun poob e sey |1ouno) ay |

(panupuog) (uswainosoid pue BujuoissIWWOD) L'z JOIM



Page 63

"sanond 1ounod poddns jey) seaue souewiouad Aoy Jsuiebe ssaiboid mainal 0) SISqUUSI\ BAIINDSXT puB | |AD Usamiaq Jeak yoes pjay suoissas Jojuoul juiof inoy
ale alay) pue ‘Aem painjoniis e ul sanoud ajeiodiod aasiyoe 0) Jay1eb0o) pa)Jom aABY BAIINDSXT J8IyD pue Jepes sy "uonesiuebio ay) ssoioe siayip uonesadood
SIY} JO |9A8] BY) pUB ‘UOISIA pue 8sodind ||BIBAO S JI0UNOYD 8U) 8A8IYOE 0} J8Y1ab0] 3JoM SI8D140 PUB SI8quIBW |8 Jey) 8INSUS 0} Op 0} }IOM SWOS [|}S SI 818y |

‘ue|d yuawdojansp |euosltad [ewloy e 0} dn paubis Ajjuaiind aaey sisquiaw /| Ajuo ybnoylje ‘paonposjul usaq aaey sjesiesdde juswdoaasp Jequisw
pue ‘asueyd juswdojaasq Jaquisiy yap| 8y} 0} dn paubis aaey sisquisly “palinbau si Bujuies) Jeym apiosp pue spasu Bujuiely Umo J1Iay) SS8SSe Ued siaquiswi
0S ‘paysl|gelse usaq sey aapiwwo) uswdojaasq Jequwiay v “padojansp pue paddinbs Aliedoud aie siaquisw jey) ainsua 0} bBuiuiely sepinoid [1oUno) ay |

‘sjuswanoidwi Jsuiebe sselbo.d yoel) pue ainseaw 0) Moy BullepIsuoco si pue ‘Jipne asueuIaA0b

[221Y18 N0 WoJ) S8Woo)No ay) 01 AjgAiisod papuodsal sey [1I9Uno) 8y ‘epell 8q ued sjusweaAoidwl Jaypn] pue suolsus) swos [|i1s aJe aisy) ybnoy) ‘siesk
JUsd8l Ul 8pewW usaq aARY sjuswaAoidw| "SI8d10 pue slaquiaw ussmiaq sdiysuoieel buiyiom poob Ajueuiwopa.d aie aiay| "e)ep 0} dn suiewal )i 0S PaMaIAS.
AjJeinBal s| pue [spow Y13 84l SMOJ|0} )| "SI8d1QO puUB SIaquisiy JO saijjiqisuodsal pue $aj0J 8U} JN0 S)8s AJes|d ‘aAlsusyaldwod S UoHNISUOY [1I9UN0D By |

suolisn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy

SoA Jow UOLIBYLID WA
Z 2100g

(eoueusanob poob) ¢z 30

‘anosdwi 0} suonoe Ajljuapl pue Asuow 1o} anjea anosdwil

‘@ouewiopad-1apun }abie) 0} uonewlojul souewlopad Buisn Jo p1ooal ¥oel) B Sey [10uno) 8y} pue Buijuueld ssauisng pue sseooud Juswabeuew souewlopad sy}
usaM}ag Syul| Jeajd aJe a1ay] “AlSISAIP JO SjUBWS|S pue SI0}edipul 8}l Jo Alijenb ‘uoijoe)siies Jasn SE [|oM Se SINSeaW ADUSIOIS pUB |BIQUBUIL SBPN|OUI UOIJEWLIOU|
‘lons| o1b8)el)S B Je souewlopad JO SSIIELIWNS 9PN|OUl PuB ST 9y} pue [19unod 8y} Yyloq Joj saiold punole painjoni)s ale suodal 8ouewIOuad ||Iouno)

ayj Jo sanuold ae10diod ay) pue juswealby ealy [B00T 8y} Yim juswubile ainsus 0} pamalnal usag sey aouewlopad abeuew o) pasn siojeolpul jo abuels ay |
‘plepuels

108UU0D JUBWIUIBA0S) 8y} yim aoueldwod spiemo) Buppiom st j1ouno) sy} pue ‘sainpadoid pue saonoeid ajeudoidde Aq pspoddns si pue spiepuels [euoljeu Yyjm
jueldwod si ‘sease ssaulsng Ay SJ18A00 yoiym aoeld ul si Aojjod Ajnoas || uy “eiep jo Aljigeral ay) uo 1pedwi pjnod yoiym swajqold Aue paiiuspl jou sey ueid sy}
Jo Bunsa] ‘palss) Alueinbas pue Ajjenuue pajepdn si yoiym aoejd ul si uejd A1sA09a1 JS)SESIP Y "uoildnJiIod 10 SSO| BJep JO YSH 8y} SsiWwiulw 0} Pa||cJ3uod pue pabeuew
AjoA110aye ale swalsAs Juswabeuew ejeq ‘Jueas|al ulewal suodal 81NsuUs 0} SI9yeW UOISIOSp WOl yoeqpas) buusyieb Joy wsiueyosw e sepirocid 50d aul

(dS7) diysisuped d16a1e1S 2007 8y} 0} syodal

aouewopad Jeinbas sapincid pue yy 8U) Ul papn|oul SI0)e21pul [BUOIjBU pue [BOO| 8y} Wa)sAs juswabeuew aouewuouad sy uiyum pajelbajul sey 1ounod ay |
‘ejep Jo sisAjeue |eoiydelboab Jejealb s|qeus 0) swalsAs uonewlopul sy Buidojaasp si 1I0Un0D By} pue AJISISAIP JO SJUSWSIS JO JUNodJe aye) sjuswsbuelie Builodey

(panunuo9) (uonew.ojul jJo asn pue Ajjenb eyep) z'z 30IM



Page 64

"S80UBISWNDIID [BO0] JIoY) 0] pajdepe aney Aay) jeyl suolesiuebio Ajlunwiwod pue A1ejunjon yium Buiyiom 1o} yiomawed)

|euoijeu e ‘)oedwo) J0308S pJaiy] 8y} 8oe|d ul Ind aAey [1I0Un0D 8y epuabe Aouaioie Jisy) ojul payull Buieq si jeyy suonesiuebilo Ajunwwod pue Alejun|jon

a1 10)09S pJIy} 8y} yim Juswaaibe apim A)jeoao| e sey |1Iouno) syl "dST 89Ul 0) Yoeq paj S)NSal 8U) YIM JUBWISSSSSE J|8s |enuue ue 8)9|dwod sdiysisuped jueoiiubis
pue ‘swie J1ay) buinsiyoe ale Asy) Jayiaym ainsesw 0} sio}edipul asuewlopad pue sueld uonoe aaey sdiysisuped urew ay) ||y Ananoe diysisuped Buliojiuow

pue dn Buipias ul siao10 Joddns 0} s|ge|leA. ale $8241n0Sal pue ‘pawlo} 8q pinoys diysieuped e Jayjeym sujwialep sieonjo diay o) seulidapinb ajesodiod uj 3s¥o8yo
iod Qg e si 818y} ‘si9o10 0} pepiaodd si Buiuiely ‘sdiysisuped jueoyiubis sy Buiuiwielap 1oy eSO Jos sey ‘sdiysiauped s}l JO 8segelep B sulejuiew [1Iouno) ay |
"JONpuUOo9 JO 8p0I 8y} JO sjuswalinbal ay) uo siaquisw 0y Ajjenuue

JUSS aJe SIspulllal pue ‘SI8d1}0 JoIuas pue siaquaw 1o aoe|d ul ate Ajjendsoy pue syib jo sis)sibal pue sjsalsjul Jo sig)siBay "uonnNIISUOD 8y} ulyim j02030.d
JB2IJJ0 /I8gqUIBW |BUWIOY B S| 818Y) pue aoe|d ul 8 JoNpu0d JO SBPO0I JBJIJ0 PUB Jaquis| Julejdwod 8y} Ul POAJOAU] 8SOY} WO} JybBnos AjJusiind Jou Si Yoeqpas)
‘ajisgam ay) uo paysiignd ase suonebnsaaul e Jo Sawoolno sy} ybnoyje pue ‘sjisgam s,[1Iounod) ayj BIA a|qe|ieAe A|apim si ssa001d sjuie|dwod Jaquisw ay |

'600¢ sunr

ul p|ay sem aAndax3 JaiyD ay) yum Bugaw [eniul ue ybnoyyje ‘senssi [eo1Yle ssnosip 0} siapes| Aued Jaylo Jo JapeaT ‘eAndaxg jaiyd ay) yim }asw Ajaunnol

JOU Op JIeYd pue 8spiWWo) SpJepur)S ayl "60/800¢ Buunp sease oyoads ul Buluiel swos papiaocid sey Ing ‘}oNpuod JO Spiepue)s 0} Uoile|al Ul slaquuaw JO spasu
Buluiesy sy) passasse Aj|n} j,usey [10UnoD ay] “Jieyd se Jaquisw paydo-09o juspuadspul Ue Sey pue ‘espiuwo)) spiepuels ay) Jo ajyold ay) asies 0} buikiyy Ajpaijoe

S| [19UN0D 8y “suonesiuebio Jayjo yum diysisuped ul Buiom usym psauiejuiew aie INoIABYS(] JO spiepuels ybiy moy 0} usalb aq 0} Spasu uoljeiapisuod) 1oNpuod
10 8p0o9 J18y) Moj|o} siaquisw sdiay pue ‘Ajjeuls)xa pue Ajjeulsiul yjoq ajol s} sesiolgnd ‘syuswalinbal ay) yum soueploooe ul sejelado s9piwwo) splepuels ay |

(panunuoo) (esueutanob poob) ¢z IO



Page 65

‘paisa) pue pamalnal Aeinbal aie pue aoe(d ul ale suejd Alnunuoo ssauisng pue Aouabisw3 “suonenbal pue me| yum asueldwod pue ainjipuadxs jo AJjeba)

8y} JOA0 |013u09 apinctd AjSAiloays ‘UuoiIN}iISUOD 8y} Se |[am Se ‘18010 BulIojiuol pue LGLS 8yl 'SOYV 8y} Jo uofeliedald sajeulpiood pue ‘sjuswabuele soueusanob
ssnoasip 0} Aueinbal sjsaw dnois) 8o0UBUIBAOL) 19210 UY "SOY 9y} Bunsidwoo pue Buissasse 1oy aoe|d ul ylomawel) e s| alay) pue ‘aoe|d ul sjuswabuelie

[0J3UOD [BUJBIUI BY] [|B suidiapun UOIINIISUOD 8] "S|0JJU0D [BIOUBUL JOAO 82URINSSE JUBIOILNS sapiacld ue|d JIpny [BuJS)u| 8y JUBWISSSSSE S82IN0Say

J0 as ,s1edh xau ul sjuswabuele mau ay) jo 1oedwi pue uonelado ay) SSasse |[IM SAA 6002 [1idy | U0 paouswwod yoiym ‘Japinoid a9IAIas paleys JIpny |eulaiu|
a)eledas e ysi|gelss 0} Josloid sy} pasaAl|sp sey |Iouno) 8yl 60/800Z Ul uoiippe uj “Aisaijep uo pajoedwi aAeY 1Byl 60/800Z Ul SBIoUBOBA USaq aAeY 18y} Ing ‘ue|d
Jpne 0/800Z dU} 10 Judd Jad (6 Jono pa}ajdwod Jey) 82IAISS JIpNE [BUIB)UI BAIIOBYS UB SBY |IDUN0D 8Y| "SONSS! |0Ju09 [eulaiul [eiusiod Ajjuspl 0} S88)WW09 JaYylo
U}IM uosiel| JO 92UspIng a3} SI a1ay} ybnoy ‘sjuswabuelie |01juod [eusajul 8bus|ieys AjpAioe o} Builiels si 99jWWo) 8y "98IlWOo) 8y} JO siaquisw 0} papiaold si
Buluiel) pue “ylomawels |0Jjuod 8y} uo suodal sancidde pue saaleoal quapuadapul si ‘diysiaquisu padsue(eq B Sey 99)IWW0D) SOUBUISAOS) pUB JIpNY S,|Iounod ay |

‘p8)BJ8|0] 10U SI pnel) Jey) SSsusleme d1|gnd B pue [12Unod 8y} UIYlIM 8inynd pned}

Je)unoo Buodis e paquie 0) paAlas aAeY ‘uonnoasold umo Jisyl Buibulig 1o 8o1j0d syl Yiim Buiyiom Jsyjie ‘suonnossold |nisseoons yym seseo ajioid ybiy |eienes
‘Apuanbal) pasn sI suolnoasold |njsseoons pue wes) pnell ay) jo Aloignd [eula)xe pue |eulsjul pue ‘spnelj [enusiod Aluspl pue sssuaieme asiel 0] Buisnoy se
yons sjuswipedsp A8y Ulm 3JoMm Wwes) pnelj sy ‘suolesiueblo J1ayjo pue JAd SYl UM A[SSO[D 3JI0M 0} panuiuod pue ‘suolebsaaul [njssaoons sasiolgnd [1I9uUnod
ay) ‘Jels Jo sdnoub uieyss o) pepiroid sem Buiuiel) sssusieme pneld ‘sjuswsBuelle s)| JO SS80NS 8y} SMAIASI PUB a1N)Nd pnelj J8junod Buol)s e sey [1I9unod) ay |

‘llouno) ayj jo yoeoudde ||BJBA0 8Yj 1IN0 sjes }I pue ‘sajdiound aonoeld poob y4d|D Yim aoueploooe ul patedald ‘gooz yoJely ul panosdde pue pasiaal sem Aoljod
uondnuIiod pue pnely J8JUnod 8y] ‘Ssausleme pnelj [elousb pue Buluiel) yeis 1o) swi) pue 3lom sAilejusAald pue aaljoeal Yyloq Jo} sjebpng sepnjoul Siyl 99)Iwwo)
Jipny 8y} Aq paalbe ue|d A)IAIlOE pnedy J8juncd [enuue ue S| alay] sjeuoijiodoid pue paseq ysil ‘padInosal S| YoM uodniiod pue pnedj Jajunod jo swwelboid ay |

"saljloud [enplAipul 03 payull ApIolidxa usaq Jou aABY SYSU [enplAIpul Jodal ay) ul saijuold ajel0diod 0) spewl S| 8duala)al swos ybnoyye pue

‘palepdn sysu 8y} pue ypm jjesp Buiag suoioe ysil 81ep JO JN0 Ul pa)nsal MalAal Jaquiawl 8y} 1By} SMOUS 60/8002 J0 Hodas Bulojuow |euly ay] “Alessadau se uodn
JUSWIWIOD puUE JBPISUOD 0} WY} Jo} 98I0 PNy 8y} 0} sysl ajelodiod Aey uo pajussald Buleq seyepdn ypm ‘ssao0.d Juswabeuew ¥sid SU} Ul POAJOAU] 8J0W ai1e
slogquialy ‘papuspe oym siaquisiy Ag paniadal |am sem Buiuiely ay) pue ‘aeak ayy ybnouy) s1eoijo pue sisquisw 0y Bujuiel) Jusweabeuew ysu sapiaold |1IDUN0D ay |
‘sdiyssauped Asy 0y alieuuonsanb jenuue ue ui

os|e pue siseq Josloid e uo palapIsuod S| sl diysisuped ‘senuold aje1odiod o1108ds JO JuswaAslyoe 8y} 0} SYSH a8y} Bulubije ‘Sysi uinjumop d1Woucds sy} abeuew
pue Ajjusapl 0} Jybnos AjAijoe sey [I9unoD 8y) ‘Slewi|d WU JUdLINd 8y} U] "uoia|dwod Josfoid |nisseaons 0} sialieq |elualod sy} J8pISUOD PUB SUOISIDSP
108l04d &xew djay 0} ysu pasn Yyjog aaey |4d d1sem ay) pue 108014 Wooady ulwpy 8y 18910 Juswabeuew ysu 8y} Ag uey) Jayjel sjuswpedsp ulylim palsalep
pue pabeuew ‘paumo ale sysiy ‘Aouaiols Buinoidwi pue Ayjlunuoddo Bujess jo Aem e se pue ‘Alaaldp joaloid [njsseoons alow 10} Ja|qeus Ue Se poojsiepun

SI ysiy "sessao0ld Juswainooid pue Bupew uoisiosp ‘Aaljod |je 0] paxyull pue ‘quswabeuew j08(oid Jouiw pue Jolew [je ul papnjoul Buiaqg ‘1ouno) ay} JO saliAljoe

Aep 03 Aep ay} ulylm pappaquis alow 8q 0} S8NUUOD pue ‘saonoeld Bupom uIyjim pappagquid siysu ‘sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew ysi poob sey [19uno) ay |

suoiIsn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy
S9A Jow uoudId WAA

¢ 21008

(10.3u09 Jeusajul pue Juswabeuew ysul) ¥'Z JOIM



Page 66

‘sjabue) wisl-1abu0| Joaw o0} padojanap Buieq ase sbuipjing s,|IoUN0D

ay} 0} sjuswanolduwl panunuod pue uodsuedy ‘Bunybi| Jeaas o) Bunelas syosfoid JaylQ ‘piepuelS SawoH Juadad 8y} 0} payull 3203s Buisnoy ay} Jo uoliensul pue
swa)sAs Bunesy o) sjuswaroidwi ybnolyy paisnep Buieq aie sBuiaes Jayund ‘010z 10 pus 8yl Ag seuuo) 0oz ueyl aiow o) Buines ay) asealoul |Im sajedionue
[1ouno) 8y} yoiym ssaiboid ul aie syosfoud Jeyjo 1osloid yoes Jo joeduil ay) ssasse Aj9jeinooe 0} ajgeun siIng ‘uoiensul pasoiduw pue sBuipjing jo laquinu

e Ul SI9[I0g SSewolq Jo uone|elsul ay) Yodag 003 }ing asodind e jo Buiuado ayy ybnoiy) gooz BuLINp peaAes aiem UOGJED JO SBUUO) 00F 1BY) SSIRWIISS [IoUno) 8y |

‘Joedw! 418y} 9)el)ISUOWSP Aj|n} JoUuBD |1I9UN0Y BY}
Ing ‘suoissiwa aonpal 0} syosfoid Bunuswa|dwi uo spew usaq sey ssasboid Aue3 -Buisnoy jo 1adsal ul senssi Buipuny wus) J8buo| Bunosjal ‘0zoz Aq uso Jad Gz
Aq 3o0)s Buisnoy s} wolj SUOISSIWS 9onpal 0) swie )| “Buisnoy Buipnjoxe €10z Aq 1ua9 Jad Gz AQ SuoISSIWS UOgJeD S)l 8onpal 0] Jabie) e 18s sey |1Iouno) ay |

‘a|ge|ieAe jJou aiam sbBuipeas ajeindoe aisym sbuipjing oy buneal

S9]EeW)SS SWOS papn|oul suljaseq [eulblio ay) pue ‘ejep auljd@seq ay} Jo Aoeindoe ay} AJLISA 0} panuijuod sey |IDuUNo a8y} ‘denemoH “(Jusd Jad g) Bunybi 1081

pue (Juad 1ad G) podsuel; ‘(Juso Jad gz) sbuipjing Jayio ‘(Juso Jad gg) o03s Buisnoy sy wouy Ajuiew Buisue ‘ssuuo) 00g8‘ /G SB SUOISSIWS ZOD [BNUUE S,|Iouno) ay)
pajewnsa siy| ‘ssaiboud ainsesw pue sjabie} 19s 0} pasn sey I YoIym UoiBWIOoUI /0/900Z UO paseq SuoIssiwa zOD Si 40 ainbiy auljaseq e paje|nojed |1ounod ay |

‘joedW S)I 81RISUOWSP
Alnj Jouueo J1oUNO) 8y) ybnoyye ‘swweibold juswabeuepy uogie e uo payleque sey pue AbBe)eils Aljigeule)sng |ejusWiUoIIAUT pasnooj-Ajjeulsiul ue padojenap
sey 1| ‘1oedwi [elusWUOIIAUS S}l @oNnpaJ 0} yoeoidde oibejesis e padojonsp Sey pue SaWNSU0D }I S82.N0sal [einjeu ay) Jo Bulpuelsiepun ue sey |1ounod ay |

suoisn|2uod pue sbuipuly L3y
SOA JoWw UoBIID NHA

r4 2100g

(s924nosad |eanjeu jo asn) |°¢ JOIM

‘uonesiueblio ay) ssoloe sawoojno pue sjoedw aAlisod S1aAlep 1l Jey) ainsus 0] padojsasp aq 0] spasu
Juswebeuew jesse 0) yoroidde s1ouno) ay| ‘palsAliep aAey Aay) sjuswaaoidwi ay) ainsesw Aj91einaoe o) pue sjosfoid sy Jo 10edwi ay) 8je)suowsp 0} 01/600Z
ul BuINUUOD SI YJOM JBUNNS “JoedW [BJUBLUUOIIAUS S} PUB S82IN0S8l [BNjeu Jo uondwnsuod s)i 8onpal 0) sjosfoid Jo Jaquinu e uo payiequis Sey [Iouno) ay |

suolIsn|auod pue sbuipuiy Aoy

rA 9109s awaY |



Page 67

"saljloud pue spasu |Bo0] U0 pasnooy Ajaeajo ale yoaiym sueid uoljoe aney sdiNy Bale ybnoyye sueid uonejuswajduwi

1snqgous Aq pauuid-1apun Jou ale SJIAlY 92IA18S pue a)elodiod) '1sngol Ajjualsisuod jou ale jJuswsabeuew jasse Joj sue|d uonejuswa|dw) "yoeoidde 8)e10diod S,|1I0uUN0D
8y} 8pISIN0 |aAd] 82INISS e Je ade|d Bupe) Juswebeuew jasse Jo sajdwexs os|e ale alay| ‘Aem |[eawsdald e ul padojaasp Bulaq aie pue ‘maj) ale 9say) ‘JoASMOH
*A)1e20| 8y} Ul sjasse Buibeuew ul Junodoe ojul usye) ale 5|doad |BJ0| JO SpPasU 8y} aiNsud 0} AJI0 8y} Jo sued awos Joj padojaasp usaq aAeY SdIAY Baly “sanuoLd
o16e)el)s spiemo} ssalboid sbeuew o} AjBAi30aye pash Jjou ate asay) ybnoyje ‘Buiuueld aoines ypm syull apiaoid yoiym aoeid ul sdi\y 991AI8S sWos aJe alay |

‘Ajjusysisuod paldde ale ss|diound ainsus

0} 80e|d Ul JOoU 8Je $81NJONJS pue Juswabeuew }9SSe JO [04JU0D J08lIp UBY) JBy)el adouanjjul uo saljal dnoub ay) ‘Jeneamoy “Buipuny [eyided 1oy spiq Buispuoud ul sjol

e sey pue ‘yuswabeueuw jasse anoidwi 0} sapiunuoddo BuiAinuspl pue uonewloul Buueys 1o wnioy |njasn e sapiroid | “suonesiuebiio Jjsuped woll saanejuasaidal
Aq peajuswalddns Ajpuadal ‘[IoUN0D 8y} SSOIOB WU SI9d10 padusaliadxe ‘ejelidoidde jo abuel e sasuidwoo dnolb Jaoiyo ay) “sejdiound aonoeld poob uo paseq

pue painjonJls [|9m si ue|d 8yl ‘) Bunuswajdwi jo yse) sy} yum pabieys siaoiyo jo dnoib ajesodiod e pue (dNY) ueld Juswabeuely 19ssy aielodiod e si alay |
‘uonesiueblio ay) ssoltoe pajdde Apjusisisuod jou siIng ‘yoedwi sAlisod swos pey sey yoiym ‘Juswabeuew jasse o} yoeoidde oibsjel)s e padojaasp sey |1ounod ay |

suoisn|a2uod pue sbuipuly L3y

SaA Jow uou=Ud NAA
(4 9109g

(juswabeuew jasse o163jea3s) Z'c JO M

'sainooud )1 s8d1AIes 8y} ybnouyy Julidjoo) uogies s j1ounod ay) Bulonpal jo ssuepodwi ay) asiseydws 0) pamainal Buleq ale sjuswabuelie uonenjeas

Joapua] "joedwl [BlUBWIUCIIAUS MO| B 8ABY Jey] sjonpoud jo asn ay) sajowold pue ABajes)s juswainooid a|qeuleisns e sey |1Iouno) ay] "600g Ul S81el0}oalip

|le ssoloe yoeoidde siyj aonpoujul 0} suejd pue ABsjens diwouod3 yelp ay) pue Absjens ajesodiod syl uo syuswssasse joedwl Ajjigeuieisns Jno paules

sey |Iouno) 8y] "uond8)0ld |[EJUSWIUOIIAUT PUB S82IAIBS pooylnoqybiaN Se yons seale swos Ul padueApe |[am si ssa00.d ay) ybnoyye ‘e1s|dwod joA jou si siy |
‘wd)sAs juswabeuepy [BJUSWUOIIAUT UB JO UOIIONPOJIUI BY} ybnouy) sysu [ejuswuoliaus buibeuew o) yoeoidde spim-uonesiuebio ue spiemo} Buyiom si |1Iounod ay |
'sess920.d Juswabeuew

aouewJoad paysi|gelsa Ojul }jIng SI 8dueWIONSd |BJUSWUOIIAUS JO Sjuswdld Jo Buuojuow ay| 186png uogied |enuue ue asodui [[IM YdIym JusjiuwLIoD)
uoIdNPayY UuogJieD ay) JO uUondNPOoIUI 8y} 10} aledaid 0) allysHIOA UoIOY uoqied ybnoay) swayos Buipely [enuia e ul Bunedionied os|e si 1ouno) ay| -bBuipuny jeynded
spiq asijiond 0) ssa00.d 8y} Jo Ued Se paIsapIsSuod S SUOISSIWS UOGJED UO UOIIBWIOJUI PUB UOKONPa] UOGJIED JOPISU0d Jsnw sBuip|ing ui Juswisaaul [eudeo Joj spig
‘ueld uononpal

uogJed 8y} Jo AISA|IBP 88SISA0 0] SIO||IoUNOI pUB S182140 Joluas Buisudwod pieog uogled e yym Buoje pajeald usaqg aaey sjsod mau om] syosfosd Bunybi yeans
pue Buipjing Joj papiwgns Buiaq aie Buipuny [eula)xa 10} spiq pue ‘sjosloid Jaypny ul pajseaulal 8q 0} ale sbuines |eioueul Bunnsay "sjosloid uononpas uogied puny
0} 60/800Z Ul 000‘0SZ3 10 uonoadipal sy} ul Buynsal ‘1punod ay) 4o} Ajuoud e abueyd ajewld spew ue|d 8)eiodiod) 8y} JO M3IASI Jusdal Yy “S9|dIYaA ysem o} Jodag
093 ay} Je a|dwexs Jo} ‘pasn-ai Buiaq Jojem Jo sajdwexs os|e ale 818y S8dIAep UOIIBAISSUOD Jalem aaey sBuip|ing [1Iounoco mau pue palojiuow s abesn Jajem ||y

(panuiuo9) (sasinosal jeanjeu jo asn) L'¢ JOIM



Page 68

‘yoeousdde

o16sjeis aiow e dojaasp o) Bupjiom ale sisuped pue [1ouno) ay) Ing ‘siauped yym sbuipjing Jo asn paleys Jo sajdwexs awos ale aiay] "Ajunwiwod [Ba0o| ay)

JO Jj8uaq ay) Jo} syasse Buueys 1oy saniunuoddo BuiAuapl ul sisuped Buibebus si 1ouno) ayy ‘dnoub 1saiyo sjelodiod ayy ybnoiy] ‘Buiuueld Juswebeuew jasse
eale Jo Jed se ‘palopisuod Buiaq ale siayjo pue joedwi aalisod e pey aaey yoiym sdnoib Ajylunwiwiod oy pallsjsuel) Buiaqg syasse [10uUno9) Jo sajdwexa ale aiay |
‘Sjijousq

Aunwwod Buuaniep si yoiym sdnolb Allunwiwiod yyum ydom o} Aoijod paysijgelse ue si a1ay| -asijelialew 0 1oA ale sbulnes asay] Jey) Ueawl SAOW 8y} Ul sAejap Inq
‘wg3 Aq Bopjoeqg ay) eanpal 0] pajoadxs SI UOIBPOWLIOIOR 3210 MBU 0} 8AoW pauueld ay] "edoueusjuiew Bopoeq Jo [aAs] Buimolb ayy ssalppe o} Buijieyl si 1oUN0D
8y ‘spaau aininj pue juauno Bunssw ul Asuow 1o} anjea apinoid sjesse Jayaym abus|ieyd 0y yoeosdde juajsisuod ou s| alay) pue pasilioud Ajusisisuod ale

Aay) jey) ainsus 03 g|qissoduwl SI ) ‘SadIAIes 0) panjoaap Ajeblie| ale sjabpng aoueusjuiew pue Jiedal se ‘1anamMOoH "ase(q }asse S} 0] sjuawanoidwi ybnouy) seoinles
Buinosdwi s1 1DUN0D ay) moy Jo sajdwexs ale aiay) pue asodind 1o} Jij ulewal S}asse S}l aINsus 0} swie ydiym Abajel)s aoueusajuiew pue Jiedal e sey [1I9UnoD ay |
"aske( Josse ay} Jo aouewiopad ay) JO MaIA papunol e apinold 0) Jayiabo) Jybnolq Jou aie pue s10jedipul paje|aI-adIAaSs Se uaas ale Aay) ‘1sIXa

SJ0)JeOIpUl JueAd|al JO 8buel e ybnoy)y "diAY 91e10diod ay) ul pauiejuod sanuoud pue saAaalqo ay) jsuiebe ssaiboid Jojuow Ajsunnol 0y sjabie) pue siojedlpul
|BO0] JO }JoMmawel) ou sI 818y} Ing ‘@oi3oeld poob Ayjuspl 0} pasn si yoiym siojedipul Juswabeuew }osse |euoljeu Jo s e jsuiebe 1no pauled si bupewyousq [enuuy
"9)0|dwo9 JaA jou S| SIY} Ing ‘9seq ejep }8sse mau e Jo Juswdojaaap sy ybnouy) oljojuod jesse s,|1ouno) ay) buipiebal uoiewsojur ui sdeb ay)

ssalppe 0} uaye) buleq ale sda)g juswabeuew jasse ul Asuow 1o} anjeA ajesjsuowap 0} AJijIge S,[Iounod ayj saulwlapun siy| “saiold a1e10dioo Jo Juswansiyoe
8y} 0} 8)NqUIU0I S}9SSE Moy JO Buipueisiapun [N} B JO YOB| B pUB S$82JN0Sal [BloUBUL pajiwl] AQ pauleljsuod s| Juswabeuew Jasse 1o} suoiique Jo AlsAlep ay L

(penunuo9) (Juswabeuew jasse o16ajes}s) Z'c JOIM



Page 69

ajeq

sjuswwo)

paalby | Ajjiqisuodsay

€

€
YblH=¢
PON =2
MO = |
Kuoug

“Jom Asuouwl
1O} 8N|BA puB SJUBLISSOSSE S82JN0Sal JO 9sh au}
wouy Buisuie sueid uonoe juswsajdwi pue aonpoid 2y

‘010z aunp ul panoidde ase Aay)

210J8( SjusaWa}L]S |BIOUBUIL B} Ul SI0.LIS |elialew

Ajnuapi 0} paubisap si Jey) sseooid soueinsse
Ajienb 1snqous pue ybnouoy) e uswasdwy |y

SUOHEPUAWIWOI3Y 60/800Z 1937 IPNY [enuuy

uoIEPUBILIOIDY

‘ou
abed



Page 70

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and
rescue services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services
and make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local
people.

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.

© Audit Commission 2009
For further information on the work of the Commission please contact:
Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ

Tel: 0844 798 1212 Fax: 0844 798 2945 Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946
www.audit-commission.gov.uk




Page 71 Agenda ltem 6

YORK Agenda Item

Audit & Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Director of Resources

Response to Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009
(including Improvement Plan 2009/10 Update)

Summary

1. To provide an initial response to the findings highlighted in the 2009
Comprehensive Area Assessment reports. The response includes the
delivery of the 2009/10 milestones contained within the council’s
Improvement Plan as approved by Executive on 21 July 2009.

Background
Response to the Area Assessment Report

2. The council is delighted with the findings of the Comprehensive Area
Assessment reports which have highlighted a number of areas of high
and excellent performance which has contributed to the award of a
green flag and no red flags and places the city of York in a strong
position nationally (see agenda item 10). The council and its partners
have been recognised as working well in delivering the priorities set
down by the citizens of York.

3. In addition to excellent partnership performance, the council itself has
also achieved a‘performing well’ status in managing the performance of
services, a clear audit opinion on the council’s financial statements and
a clear value for money opinion.

4. Whilst the majority of the Audit Commission’s reports are accurate and
have been discussed and agreed with the council and its partners, the
following matters have been raised with the Area Assessment Lead,
which present an inaccurate picture of the performance within the city.
These have been challenged previously and are of significant public
interest.They appear on page Page 4 and 11 of Annex A (detailed
report) to the CAA Report:



Page 72

e ‘Adults are not as physically active as they should be and this is
contributing to increased obesity’. The council had previously
provided conclusive evidence previously that this analysis is
inaccurate. The Audit Commission have confirmed that the Area
Assessment reports need amending to reflect the error, but this may
not take place until a week after publication.

e ‘Binge drinking is also increasing and has resulted in an increase
Alcohol related hospital admissions’and ‘the number of alcohol
related hospital admissions is increasing......the number is expected
to rise further’ .This is a priority area for York (NP1 39). Whilst it is
accepted that overall rates increased on the previous year, at the
end of 2008/09 York was still well below the unitary, regional and
national average and is currently moving against the regional trend,
with the last three quarters flattening out / reducing.

Graph: York's rate of alcohol-related admissions per 100,000

population
450
400 -
350 - ——
300 \/
250

07/08 Q1 07/08 Q2 07/08 Q3 07/08 Q4 08/09Q1 08/09Q2 08/09 Q3 08/09 Q4

—&— National Average —#— Unitary Average —&— Regional Average =—#— York

e The report also contains negative statements regarding the city’s
mental health services, when the national in-patient survey puts the
city in the top 20 per cent of mental health trusts nationally for
quality of patient care.

The Audit Commission’s response on the above two points is that
Oneplace is an on-going assessment, and it makes sense for them to
look at the issues early in their programme, so they can update the
Oneplace content as soon as is possible if it is appropriate to do so
(the content will be updated quarterly. The lack of an early response
on this will mean that an inaccurate view may be formed of the city
until the reports are amended



6.

Page 73

Despite this the process is recognised to have identified areas for
further review, such as the need for improved sports facilities, and is a
judgement made of the city, not just the council. The detailed findings
of the assessment have been fed back to the city’s Local Strategic
Partnership (Without Walls or WoW) Partnership Board, via the WoW
Executive Delivery Board. The Board is being asked to take overall
responsibility for ensuring improvements are made across the city.
WoW fully respects the importance of this approach to delivering the
improvements complementing current arrangements within the
partnership and the council and a report will be brought back to
Executive in the New Year.

The response to CAA will fit within the wider WoW improvement
agenda that includes:

e The outcomes of the successful WoW annual conference in
September 2009, where a wide selection of partners identified
future actions regarding challenges facing the city;

e Monitoring progress against the strategic aims and actions under
each of the seven themes within the Sustainable Community
Strategy;

e Ensuring the WoW partnership is fit for purpose to deliver the
SCS, LAA and respond to the challenges of CAA.

These activities will identify improvements for WoW and its
partnerships and partners to work on. A coordinated approach to
identifying and agreeing these improvements will be developed to
ensure that no improvements ‘fall between the cracks’, and repetition of
effort is avoided. These improvements will incorporate issues identified
in the Area Assessment and are likely to include:

e Sustaining the proactive response to the recession (e.g.

Improving Adult Skills, Working age people claiming out of work

benefits);

Embedding the Fairness and Inclusion Strategy across the City;

Tackling Climate Change;

Developing a new Transport Strategy for the City;

Sharing the learning from the successful Kingsway West project

and rolling the pilot out to other areas in the city;

Increasing Adult participation in physical activity;

¢ Implementing the strategy to make York a ‘Volunteering City’.

e Encouraging a more collaborative approach to the Commissioning
of services between partners.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 74

Response to the Organisational Assessment Report

The council welcomes the exceptional service performance and
improvements highlighted in the ‘Managing Performance’ aspect of the
report, particularly relating to children’s and adults’ services. The Audit
Commission has highlighted areas for improvement in the Use of
Resources Assessment, which was reported in detail to the Audit &
Governance Committee on 21 September 2009. The assessment
primarily covered the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 — the
response to this is partially covered in paragraphs 11 to 20 below through
the reported delivery of Improvement Plan actions, with a further plan for
new areas developed as outlined in paragraph 21 below.

In response to governance and Use of Resources self assessments in July
2009, the Executive agreed the milestones and activity contained within
the 2009/10 Improvement Plan, which covered nine major areas for
corporate improvement arising from those assessments. Members
requested that future updates on progress be reported back to the
Executive; these are outlined below and progress against milestones
summarised in Annex A.

Improvement Plan Progress To Date

Progress is summarised under each theme of the Improvement Plan and
overall progress monitored by Executive against targets set within the
Corporate Strategy.

HR: This area for improvement followed up on work done in 2008/09, and
the key areas of progress for this year include:

a. the launch of e-recruitment, the ability both for applicants to apply
for jobs online, and for managers to manage the recruitment
process online. The e-recruitment project went live for three
directorates, Chief Executives, Resources and City Strategy in
November 2009, and will be rolled out to the other three in due
course.

b. Pay and Grading has reached the stage of notifying all appeal
outcomes to staff, after which there will be further follow-up actions
but the full process is expected to be complete by the end of the
financial year.

c. Workforce Planning is concentrating on the development of a
Workforce Planning Strategy, and consultation on a preliminary
draft is currently being carried out with Directorate Management
Teams and the Joint Consultative Committee.

Fairness & Inclusion (formerly Equalities): The new national Equality
Framework has introduced a new standard of equalities that CYC is
currently working towards. This is a far more exacting standard, and there



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 75

is considerable work under way to secure the initial level of “Developing”
within the framework, with plans to progress quickly onto the next level of
“Achieving” by 2011. Further work has commenced across the council to
be discussed with partners, to strengthen arrangements for social inclusion
and equality of access to services. Finally, additional training on human
rights is to be arranged.

Health & Safety: Work has been continuing from last year to promote a
culture of safe working practices across the council, and a regular
newsletter has been successfully launched. The analysis of training needs
for all staff has been rolled into the replacement HR system, known as the
Delphi Replacement Project, which will cover all training needs for staff.
The Health & Safety (H&S) team are developing courses at present, which
will be delivered through the training and development centre. Audits of
Health and Safety practice are ongoing, and the H&S team are introducing
a web-based risk assessment system to ensure that risks are reviewed
and adequate control measures are put in place.

Member Training: Substantial progress has been made in working
towards the IDeA Charter Status for Member Training and Development. A
steering group was established in May 2009, and this year's Member
Development Programme has set out a wide variety of events in which
members can participate. A Member handbook will be developed in the
near future, and the initial external assessment of Member Development is
expected to take place in Spring 2010.

Project and Programme Management: The aim of this workstream is to
introduce a standardised project and programme management
methodology across the council. York’s project management approach is
currently being used to deliver the More for York programme, which is
council-wide in its impact, however, the majority of milestones within this
workstream, such as agreeing standard templates and a gateway review
process, are still to be achieved. This, however, does not reflect that
project management as an approach is fully embedded in the council; it is
the future corporate framework for the council’s Business Model that is yet
to be developed.

Code of Conduct Awareness: A fraud survey is currently being
conducted amongst officers to gain further insight into code of conduct
issues and levels of management awareness. Online fraud awareness
training is being developed and will be available shortly. Training on the
officer code of conduct is planned for later in the year. Current audit work
is also looking at whistleblowing procedures, which picks up an item raised
in the staff survey, and will inform future training programmes.

Partnership Governance: The current governance arrangement for
partnerships and the Compact with the voluntary sector have been
reviewed. The York Compact Group have agreed to adopt a set of dispute
resolution procedures similar to those currently in use in Derby. Current
governance arrangements for significant partnerships will be analysed



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 76

against the council’s own best practice partnership guidelines, and training
on partnership governance will be delivered by the end of the financial
year.

Internal Communications: The new intranet, christened ‘colin’ (council
on-line information network), is under development and due for a phased
launch from January onwards. Once the launch is under way, there will be
an audit of internal publications, and new publications likely from April
onwards. A communications audit will also examine the role and practice
of team briefings, to understand existing cascades and barriers to good
communication, which is to be completed by the end of the financial year.

Risk Management: Risk reporting has been successfully integrated into
the new performance management framework, and the key corporate risks
examined and the risk register refreshed. The Risk Management Policy
and Strategy have both been revised and the council is on target to deliver
the revised Corporate Risk Monitor, reporting on risk management activity,
by the end of December this year.

Further Developments

An analysis has been undertaken to identify new areas to be built into a
supplementary action plan which are necessary, as a result of the Use of
Resources Assessment and with a view to moving the council to
'Performing Well’ in Use of Resources - lead officers have been identified
to implement those actions. This plan is being monitored by the CAA
Steering Group chaired by the Director of Resources and progress will
monitored by the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Audit Commission are already reviewing improvements since the last
Organisational Assessment, and must have a draft opinion on Use of
Resources 2009/10 by the end of March 2010, much earlier than in
previous years.

Corporate and partnership planning processes are under way to develop
the actions and milestones necessary to deliver outcomes for York’s
residents in 2010/11 onwards, and full cognisance will be taken of those
areas in the Area Assessment where the Audit Commission want to focus
their attention in 2010.

Consultation

24. In November 2009 the Directors responsible for each improvement
workstream were consulted, and they have provided the information that is
summarised in this report.

Options

25.  No other options are presented as this report is an update report as

requested by Executive in July 2009.



Page 77

Analysis

26. No analysis of options required.

Corporate Priorities

27. The successful delivery of the CAA improvements and Improvement Plan
contributes to the achievement of all community and council priorities, and
is a key aim of the “Effective Organisation” priority contained within the
Corporate Strategy.

Implications

28.
(a) Financial There are no financial implications

(b) Human Resources (HR) There are HR implications relating to
the HR workstream.

(c) Equalities There will be Equalities implications if the Equalities
milestones are not delivered.

(d) Legal There are no immediate legal implications with this
report but each area of key activity is likely to generate the
need for detailed advice.

(e) Crime and Disorder There are no implications for Crime and
Disorder.

(f) Information Technology (IT) There are IT implications
contained within the Internal Communications workstream,
relating to the new intranet.

(9) Property There are no property implications.

(h) Other No other known implications.

Risk Management

29. Failure to achieve improvement could affect the next Comprehensive Area
Assessment outcomes, which is a key corporate risk on the corporate risk
register.

Recommendations

30. Audit & Governance Members are asked to comment upon the response

to the CAA reports, note progress and planned improvements to date and
related monitoring and reporting arrangements.



Page 78

Reason

To ensure that members are aware of the council’s response to inspection
and audit outcomes, recognise the achievements and also action taken or
planned for areas for improvement identified in the report.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Helena Nowell

Improvement Programme lan Floyd

Manager Director of Resources

Performance & Business

Assurance, Resources Report Approved | Date | 7 December
01904 551746 2009
Pauline Stuchfield Chief Officer's name

Assistant Director of Resources | Title

(Customer service &

Governance) Report Approved | ick Date | Insert Date

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Implication ie Financial Implication ie Legal

Name Alison Lowton

Title Interim Head of Legal Services

Tel No. 01904 551004

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All | tick
v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes
Annex A — Progress against Improvement Plan Milestones.

Background Papers:

Executive Report 21 July 2009 on the 2009/10 Improvement Plan




Improvement Plan Update 2009/10 Annex A
KEY Symbol
Completed \/
On track to complete by end of
year ﬂ
Started but not on track =
Not started, milestone dates
missed X
Not started, milestone dates not
reached yet NS
Key actions towards improvement Key 2009/10 milestones Lead Status

HR

Develop and implement a Workforce
Development Plan

Plan completed by 30 September
2009 -
C33Plan implemented by 31 March
2010

lan Floyd/ Angela Wilkinson

Pay and Grading Implementation

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Angela Wilkinson

< (<2

HR Transformation Programme Phase 1 to be
delivered: this includes e-recruitment, Delphi
replacement and the creation of an HR
Business Centre

Phase 1 completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Angela Wilkinson

Page 1 of 4

6/, obed



Key actions towards improvement

Key 2009/10 milestones

Lead

Status

Equalities

Meet all requirements of the 5eveloping level
of the Equality Framework

Completed by 31 March 2010

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Facilitate the development of a joint approach
to equality in access to services amongst
LSP partners

Completed by 31 March 2010

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Review the procurement strategy in the light of
equalities duties

Completed by 31 March 2010

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Deliver training on Equalities and human
rights, particularly to members

Completed by 31 December 2009

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Health & Safety

Carry out a H&S training needs assessment
within each directorate

Completed by 30 September 2009

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Deliver the H&S Training Plan to key
managers

Completed by 31 March 2010

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

= (X [ |= |=

Achieve 2009/10 workplan goals for assessing
levels of legal compliance for Health & Safety
within each service area in line with key
performance indicators set out in the CYC
Safety Management System

Completed by 31 March 2010

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Ensure all new H&S risks entered onto the
corporate risk system have been reviewed by
the H&S team to ensure appropriate control
measures are in place

Ongoing from June 2009

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Launch Health & Safety newsletter

Completed by 30 September 2009

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Page 2 of 4

08 abed



Kex actions towards imErovement

Key 2009/10 milestones

Lead

Status

Develop and agree Member Development

Completed by 30 September 2009

Code of Conduct

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

& 2 Policy Bill McCarthy/ Quentin Baker
o =
£ = |Agree annual programme 2009/10 Completed by 30 September 2009 |Bjj| McCarthy/ Quentin Baker \/
= = |Agree implementation plan re achieving Completed by 30 September 2009
charter status Bill McCarthy/ Quentin Baker =
Agree corporate adoption of common
principles of project and programme
(0} management (via report to CMT and
E Executive) Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter =
O +—
o) QC_, Develop a range of Project Management
O E templates and an assessment matrix to
% % identify the appropriate level of Project
c g Management control Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter X
..(E ‘2‘5 Develop agreed gateway process for project
_&’_)\ review Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter X
(@)
o Analyse training requirements for
project/programme management Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter X
Develop training programme Completed by 31 December 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter NS
=8 Review whistle-blowing and other conduct
8 S @ |procedures Completed by 30 September 2009 lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield ﬂ
T o
T C o
8 8 % Deliver training programme on the Officer

Page 3 of 4

18 abed



Partnership
Governance

[Key actions towards improvement

Key 2009/10 milestones

Lead

Review current governance arrangements for
partnerships and the current framework for the
Compact

Completed by 30 September 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Develop gap analysis between current
compliance levels and the partnership
guidelines

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Deliver training and awareness on good
partnership governance, including member
training

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Internal
Communications

Launch of the new intranet

Completed by 30 September 2009

Pete Dwyer/ Matt Beer

Relaunch of News&Jobs and News in Depth

Completed by 31 December 2009

Pete Dwyer/ Matt Beer

Develop a cascade system for team briefings

Completed by 31 March 2010

Pete Dwyer/ Matt Beer

Risk Management

Integrate risk reporting into the new
Performance Management Framework

Completed by 30 June 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Fundamental refresh of strategic risk register
in line with the new Corporate Strategy

Completed by 30 September 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Work with lead ofticers to address risks
highlighted from partnership risk survey of
significant partnerships

Completed by 30 September 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Page 4 of 4

28 abed



Page 83 Agenda ltem 7

YORK

LJZQ‘ CITY OF
S COouUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 21% December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director (Property Services)
Asset Management Report 2008/09 — Audit Commission

Summary

1 The purpose of this report is to allow consideration of the Asset
Management Report produced by the Audit Commission (see Annex) as
part of the 2008/09 audit. The report reviews the Council’s
arrangements for:

e The extent of the Council's strategic approach to asset management
e How assets are managed to deliver value for money
e Partnership and community involvement in asset management.

2 The Audit Commission have assessed the asset management
arrangements under the Use of Resources assessment as meeting
minimum requirements.

Background

3 The Audit Commission developed an audit approach, that integrated
the key elements of:
e the relevant 2008/09 use of resources KLOE;
« the Audit Commission's national report, 'Hot Property: Getting the
best from local authority assets'; and
o the CLG report, 'Building on Strong Foundations'.

4 In summary the Audit Commission report that the council has
developed a strategic approach to asset management, which has had
some positive impact, but is not consistently applied across the
organisation.

5 Delivery of ambitions for asset management is constrained by limited
financial resources and a lack of a full understanding of how assets
contribute to corporate priorities. This undermines the Council’s ability
to demonstrate value for money in asset management.

6 It is improving the quality of information on its asset base as a step
towards addressing its weak performance management of assets.
Tight financial constraints on service-based budgets undermine
corporate prioritisation and backlog maintenance is not being reduced.



Page 84

There are examples of asset transfer to local communities which have
provided benefits. The Council is developing a more strategic
approach to sharing assets with partners, to build on examples already
in place.

As a result of discussions resulting from this review, an action plan has
been agreed with the Audit Commission and this can been found at
Appendix 1 within the report.

In response to this report and to the Audit & Governance Committee’s
request for further information relating to the national ‘Room for
Improvement’ report (21 September 2009), a separate report is
contained in this Committee’s agenda papers.

Consultation

10

Corporate officers have contributed to this report where appropriate.

Options

11

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Analysis

12

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Corporate Priorities

13

Links can be made to a number of the council’s priorities:

Thriving City - the council's non-operational (commercial) portfolio
provides opportunities for a number of businesses to provide
employment, especially for start-up and small businesses.
Sustainable City - new development and refurbishment of Council
properties such as schools and the new HQ all have high sustainable
standards and the service and area asset management planning
process gives an opportunity to relocate from unsustainable existing
buildings - those with high energy costs and outstanding repairs etc.
Learning City - provision of fit-for-purpose schools, library learning
centres etc. will help with the access to the education and training.
Inclusive City - again construction of new buildings and refurbishment
of key existing buildings will ensure access for all, especially for those
with disabilities - buildings which cannot be adapted or made
accessible will be closed.

City of Culture - service and are asset management plans look at
sporting and cultural provision and audit existing facilities against the
service vision and priorities. Completing these plans is vital in bidding
for external money as it complements a lot of the work needed for the
bids.

Healthy City - again review of the location and suitability of appropriate
buildings and assets can highlight the priorities needed to respond to
the objectives.



Page 85

Effective Organisation - Proper Asset Management Planning will

ensure the Council occupies property and land assets which are *fit-for-

purpose' and sustainable which will improve the effectiveness of
service delivery and make best use of limited revenue and capital
budgets.

Implications

14

The implications are:

Financial — implementing the action plan contained in the audit
report will have resourcing implications both in terms of staffing
and also capital and revenue needed to deliver the outcomes - i.e.
funds to put buildings in a decent state of repair, make them
accessible, carry out refurbishments and/or sell and buy develop
new buildings. These actions of course will be subject of separate
reports, bids etc. and will be commented on and detailed more in
the new Corporate Asset Management Plan which will be brought
to members in the Autumn.

Human Resources (HR) — there are no HR implications to this
report.

Equalities - there are no equalities implications to this report.
Legal — there are no legal implications to this report.

Crime and Disorder — there are no crime and disorder
implications to this report.

Information Technology (IT) - there are no IT implications to this
report.

Property —implications are fully outlined in the report.

Risk Management

15.

Failure to provide adequate arrangements for effective property
management could present risks that range from basic and safety
hazards to significantly impacting on the ability to deliver services
effectively. Failure to implement the proposed action plan at Annex 1
may result in property and land assets continuing to deteriorate, both in
terms of condition, performance, suitability and so the 'fit-for-purpose'
and sustainable goals will not be achieved which will affect the
effectiveness of service delivery and put pressure on revenue and
capital budgets as well as the Use of Resources/Organisational
Assessment score under the KLOE 3.1.



Page 86

Recommendation

16 Members are asked to:

a. Consider the content of the Asset Management Report;

Reason

To enable Members to consider the effectiveness of the council’s
asset managment activity, and in particular the areas for

improvement identified within the report.

b. Note the agreed Action Plan presented as Appendix 1 to the Audit

Commission Report.

Reason

To enable Members to comment on the proposed improvement

arrangements.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Phillip Callow Neil Hindhaugh

Head of Asset & Property AD Property Services
Management

Tel: 01904 553360

© Report Approved
Pauline Stuchfield
AD Resources (Customer Service & v
Governance)
Tel: 01904 551706

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: Not applicable

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

None

Annexes

Annex — Asset Management Report 2008/09

Date 7 December
2009

All




Page 87

Asset
Management

City of York Council
Audit 2008/09

&
%%
O



Page 88

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited
body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to

non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the
audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to:

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or
any third party.



Page 89

Effectively and efficiently managing the council's assets is an important task for a
variety of reasons. These range from the more simplistic, cost savings perspective -
ensuring that the assets are maintained at a level that reduces the overall lifetime
costs, to the more complex perspective of contributing effectively to service delivery,
in particular the land, buildings and infrastructure that are’integral to supporting the
delivery of council services.

There have been several recent publications focusing’on asset management,
including the Communities and Local Government, Building on Strong Foundations,
and RICS 2008 Public Sector Asset Management Guidelines. This.increasing focus
on this area demonstrates the importance of the topic, and this is also highlighted by
the inclusion of asset management within the Audit Commission's 2008/09 Use of
Resources Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE).

At City of York Council we have assessed the asset management arrangements
under previous use of resources assessments as-only meeting minimum standards.
These assessments-are consistent with the conclusions from other elements of our
work, where we have found weaknesses with the asset register and recording of
asset information, and have found improvements required in the management of the
capital programme.

Although there has been a large of amount research and published papers on these
areas, there is no single 'off the shelf' audit approach to apply.

We have therefore produced a bespoke audit approach, that integrates the key
elements of:

the relevant 2008/09 use of resources KLOE;

the Audit Commission's national report, 'Hot Property: Getting the best from local
authority assets'; and

the CLG report, 'Building on Strong Foundations'.

The approach is structured around three key issues:
The extent of the Council's strategic approach to asset management
How assets are managed to deliver value for money

Partnership and community involvement in asset management



Page 90

We have obtained an understanding of the current arrangements from discussions
with key officers: from property services, members of the Corporate Asset
Management Group, corporate finance officers, within the wider Resources
directorate and finance managers, and from reviewing the documentary evidence.

The Council has developed a strategic approach to asset management, which has
had some positive impact, but is not consistently applied across the organisation.
The approach is centred around a corporate Asset Management Plan and a
corporate Asset Management Group of officers charged with the task of
implementing it. The corporate Asset Management Plan’is well structured and based
on good practice principles. The corporate Asset Management Group comprises a
range of appropriate, experienced officers from across the Council, recently
supplemented by representatives from partner organisations. This group meets
monthly with extended meetings to include partners on a quarterly basis. It provides
a useful forum for sharing information and-identifying opportunities to.improve asset
management, and also has a role in prioritising bids for capital funding.

However, the group relies on influence rather than direct control of asset
management across the Council,-and existing structures in place across the Council
to ensure the principles of good asset management are not applied consistently.
There are some service Asset Management-Plans in-place which provide links with
service planning, although these have not been developed for all services and are
not used to manage progress towards strategic priorities. Similarly, area Asset
Management Plans have been developed for some parts of the city to ensure the
needs of local people are taken into account in taking a co-ordinated approach to
managing assets in the locality. However, these are few, and are being developed in
a piecemeal way as opportunities-arise. There are also examples of asset
management taking place at a service level in departments such as Learning,
Culture-and Children's Services which employs its own team to manage its extensive
asset portfolio. This team is engaged in the corporate approach through membership
ofthe‘corporate Asset Management Group and regular meetings with corporate
Property Services managers. However, the delegation of asset-related budgets to
schools means this team can only play an advisory and influencing role on many
issues rather than directly control the management of the department's assets.

Implementation plans for asset management are not consistently robust. Corporate
and service AMPs-are not under-pinned by robust implementation plans although
area AMPs have action plans which are clearly focused on local needs and
priorities. Successful delivery is often dependent on funding and other external
issues.

The delivery of the Council's ambitions for asset management is constrained by
limited financial resources and a lack of a full understanding of how assets
contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. The CRAM process enables
prioritisation of capital resources, but revenue resources are not consistently
prioritised to maximise their impact, although there are examples of how social and
environmental outcomes have been improved.



Page 91

The Council does not have performance management systems in place to effectively
demonstrate value for money in asset management. Steps are being taken to
address the gaps in information regarding the Council's asset portfolio through the
development of a new asset data base. This will provide a more robust and
comprehensive basis for effectively managing assets, but is not yet complete.

Performance indicators are not routinely used to monitor progress against the
corporate Asset Management Plan. Annual benchmarking is carried out against a
set of national asset management indicators which is used to identify good practice,
but there is no framework of local indicators and targets to monitor progress against
the objectives and priorities contained in the corporate Asset'Management Plan.
Although a range of relevant indicators exist, such as library usage or housing
standards, they are seen as service-related indicators and are not brought together
to provide a rounded view of the overall performance of the asset base.

The Council is failing to address the growing level of backlog maintenance. There is
a repair and maintenance strategy which is managed by the corporate landlord, and
aims to ensure the effective use of the Council's resources. It sets a number of
objectives designed to ensure that all the'Council's assets are fit for purpose by
2017. However, as repair and maintenance budgets are largely devolved to
services, it is impossible to ensure that they are consistently prioritised in line with
the corporate Asset Management-Plan. This makes.it difficult to demonstrate value
for money. Anticipated reductions-in the backlog of £5 million arising from the move
to new office accommodation have failed to materialise as the planned move has
been delayed.

There are examples of howthe Councilis improving services through improvements
to its asset base. Service Asset Management Plans provide some challenge to the
existing asset base; but there is no consistent approach to challenge whether assets
are required, fit for purpose, and provide value for money in meeting current and
future needs.

The Council has an established policy to work with community groups which is
delivering community benefits. There are examples of assets being transferred to
community groups which have had a positive impact and others are being
considered, particularly in relation to those areas covered by an area Asset
Management Plan. The Council is also developing its approach to working with
partners to improve the effectiveness of the asset base. There are examples of
shared use of buildings, but the Council recognises the need to adopt a more
strategic approach. The engagement of partners as part of the corporate Asset
Management Group provides a meaningful step towards this and the development of
the Local Development Framework is providing a catalyst for strengthening this
approach.



Page 92

The Council has developed a strategic approach to asset management, which has
had some positive impact, but is not consistently applied across the organisation.
The approach is centred around a corporate Asset Management Plan (AMP) and a
corporate Asset Management Group (AMG) of officers charged with the task of
implementing it.

The corporate AMP provides a sound basis for the effective management of the
Council's assets, although systems are not in place to effectively. measure progress
against it. It is:

based on best practice principles;

sets out a clear framework for engaging elected members and senior managers,
both corporate and service based, in decisions regarding the Council's asset
portfolio;

recognises the need to improve the quality and range of data regarding assets,
making clear links with corporate priorities;

identifies a number of priorities and'key outputs and a range of performance
indicators to be used-to measure progress; and

includes targets for some elements of asset management, eg reducing the backlog
of maintenance, although they do not cover all aspects of performance.

The plan makes clear links between-corporate priorities and the priorities and key
outputs for asset management. Itincludes a list of key projects which underpin the
delivery of a number of corporate priorities, eg review of secondary school provision,
provision of learning centres, and new Council offices. However, it is not specific
about how it will eontribute to cross-cutting outcomes such as improved health or
reducing the impacts of climate change and, as it is not based on a full
understanding of the performance of the asset base, it is difficult to measure its
impact.

The corporate AMP . sets out a strategic approach, including the roles and remits of
elected members-and officers. Asset management is structured around the
corporate AMG; which also acts as the Council's capital monitoring group
(CAPMOG) which is responsible for prioritising bids for capital funding and
monitoring progress. An Assistant Director who acts as the Council's corporate
landlord heads the group, which comprises a range of appropriate, experienced
officers from across the Council. The group has recently been supplemented by
representatives from partners such as North Yorkshire Police, North Yorkshire Fire
and Rescue Service and North Yorkshire and York Primary Care Trust. It provides a
useful forum for sharing information, commenting on asset-related reports and
identifying opportunities to improve asset management. However, the group relies



Page 93

on influence rather than direct control of asset management across the Council. The
Corporate Landlord, in consultation with others, has a role in suggesting and
appraising options for the management of assets, but has limited decision making
powers. The Executive member for Corporate Services, currently the Leader of the
Council, acts as Property Champion and influences policy. Ward members are
actively engaged in the development of area AMPs and issues affecting assets
within their wards.

Structures are not in place across the Council to ensure the principles of good asset
management are applied consistently. There are AMPs for some services, such as
libraries, which has directed action to improve the quality of the asset base, but is
not used effectively to manage progress towards strategic priorities. Progress has
been made in delivering the libraries service AMP but it'is not formally reported and
it is unclear how it has been reviewed to take account of changing priorities since it
was prepared in 2005. It puts forward proposals for developing or replacing existing
library buildings to achieve the Council's vision for a three tier libraries service, but
the action plan and time table cover only the short term and make no reference to
funding implications, roles and responsibilities ‘or success measures and targets.
Monitoring of progress against asset management plans‘is limited by a lack of
resources.

References to asset management within service plans are variable. The Children’s
Services Plan makes specific reference to the Building Schools for the Future (BSF)
programme and integrated children’s centres; which are priorities for the
directorate’s Planning and Resources Service. The Older People and Physical
Disability Services Plan makes general references to-the development of older
people's accommodation through an'older people's housing strategy and an
accommodation strategy. However, the Waste Services Plan makes no reference to
asset management or the need to develop a new residual waste treatment facility.

There are examples.of how asset management planning is co-ordinated across
service boundaries. The development of Explore learning centres and Children's
Centres have provided opportunities to bring services together which are providing
benefits for local people. However, there are no clearly established processes in
place to ensure this co-ordination is achieved in all aspects of asset management
planning. This creates\a risk of opportunities to integrate services not being taken full
advantage of.

Implementation plans/for asset management are not consistently robust. The
corporate AMP.does not include an implementation plan to ensure that it is
deliverable and the libraries service AMP does not include any clear deadlines,
funding implications, responsibilities, or success measures. Area AMPs, such as the
one for Tang Hall, are under-pinned by more detailed action plans which seek to
make efficient and effective use of local assets to improve outcomes for the local
community.



Page 94

The Council should review its approach to asset management to ensure asset
management strategies are:

Clearly aligned with corporate priorities and community outcomes;
Based on a full understanding of the asset portfolio and its current performance;

Underpinned by implementation plans which include specific actions, deadlines,
funding implications, responsibilities and success measures to enable progress
to be monitored and managed;

Making best use of supporting strategies for individual services and local areas
where these are appropriate.

Service planning guidance should be reviewed to ensure a clear and
consistent approach to considering asset management issues as
part of the service planning process.

The delivery of the Council's ambitions for asset management is constrained by
limited financial resources and a limited understanding of how assets contribute to
corporate priorities. There is general-alignment between the corporate AMP and the
Council's financial plans, although resources have to be prioritised. This is largely
achieved in respect of capital resources, but there is less corporate prioritisation of
departmental revenue budgets. The Council has approved a repair and maintenance
strategy, but it is not clear how realistic it is, or how it will be implemented. It includes
objectives for improving the quality of assets, making better use of resources,
disposing of surplus assets' and ensuring all assets are sustainable. However, the
strategy does not include an implementation plan, which is essential in view of the
need to prioritise to.ensure available funding is used to maximum effect.

The-ability to-prioritise funding is further constrained by a lack of a full understanding
of’how assets contribute to the delivery of corporate priorities. The Council analyses
how assets will contribute to corporate priorities when considering new
developments and projects, but does not have a full analysis in respect of existing
assets. This is an important issue if the Council is to achieve ambitions such as
addressing climate change.

The Council should review its financial planning processes to ensure
that devolved budgets relating to asset management are prioritised in a
consistent way to make best use of resources in improving value for
money from the Council's asset portfolio.

However, there are examples of how the asset base has been developed to deliver
improved outcomes for local communities. The Tang Hall area AMP has been
developed in partnership with local communities to identify how the asset base can
be used to best effect to deliver sustainable social, environmental and economic



Page 95

outcomes. Significant progress has been made, which has resulted in improved
outcomes. Improved housing is delivering environmental benefits and helping to
sustain the local community, whilst at the same time relocating single people and
couples from larger houses, thereby making better use of the housing stock. Building
improvements have enabled the transformation of the local school into an integrated
young people's centre and a disused building has been brought back into use as a
venue for youth services. There are also plans to upgrade the local library as a
community learning hub for the East of the city.

The Council does not have systems in place to effectively demonstrate value for
money in asset management.

Steps are being taken to address the gaps in information regarding the Council's
asset portfolio through the development of a new asset data base. This will provide a
more robust and comprehensive basis for effectively managing assets, but is not yet
complete. Currently, separate asset registers are held-according to function such as
IT, vehicles and land and buildings and a new T system to support asset
management has been introduced. When complete, the new system will contain
easily accessible information on all aspects of its property, including ownership,
physical details, valuation, costs, assessments of condition and fitness for purpose
and estimates of cost of work required.-Checks against terrier records, deeds and
land registration records have been introduced toidentify inaccuracies and
omissions.

Property reviews have been undertaken<as part of the development of the new asset
data base, ensuring’information is up to date. Reviews are also carried out as part of
the development of area and service AMPs. Capital valuations are carried out in
accordance with-CIPFA requirements, but there is no comprehensive programme of
property reviews usedto ensure information is continually kept up to date to enable
the Council to manage assets more effectively.

The Council should consider the development of a programme of property reviews
to ensure information relating to the asset portfolio is kept up to date to enable the
Council to manage assets more effectively. These reviews should take account of
service, community and corporate issues to ensure all implications are recognised.

Performance indicators are not routinely used to monitor progress against the
corporate AMP. The plan includes a range of indicators used to measure
performance, including comparisons with benchmarks. However, there are few
targets, making it difficult to assess whether performance is satisfactory. Although
there are some targets in place, they do not cover all aspects of performance, are
not focused on outcomes and impact, and are not effectively used to challenge and
manage performance.

Performance indicators are prepared annually for benchmarking purposes and used
to identify good practice but are not used to regularly monitor performance. Some



Page 96

service-based indicators exist, such as library usage and housing standards, but
they are not brought together as a means of measuring the overall performance of
the asset base. The corporate AMP refers to an intention to publish an annual report
to summarise performance against asset management priorities and targets,
although no such report has been produced to date.

The Council is failing to address the growing level of backlog maintenance. The new
asset data base will provide a more comprehensive, detailed and up to date position
and a fully costed plan is being developed. The repair and maintenance strategy,
managed by the corporate landlord, aims to ensure the effective use of the Council's
resources. It sets a number of objectives designed to ensurethat all the Council's
assets are fit for purpose by 2017. However, as repair and’'maintenance budgets are
largely devolved to services, it is impossible to ensure that they are consistently
prioritised in line with the corporate Asset Management Plan. This makes it difficult
to demonstrate value for money. Anticipated reductions in the backlog of £5 million
arising from the move to new office accommodation have been delayed.

The Council should review the current process for developing capital and revenue
repair and maintenance budgets to ensure an appropriate balance between
corporate and devolved budgets as a means of addressing the increasing level of
backlog maintenance.

There are examples of how the Council is-improving services through improvements
to its asset base. There is a specific focus‘onreducing health, safety and security
risks and improving access to services, eg-compliance with DDA requirements.
Major investment in integrated children’s centres and new schools is upgrading and
modernising facilities, improving access to services and contributing to
improvements_in educational attainment.

The capital programme’is directly linked to community priorities which include
protecting the city’s heritage and, more recently, responding to the effects of climate
change. The Eco Depot is-a clear example of how environmental impacts are being
mitigated. The implementation of the Tang Hall Area AMP is upgrading and
modernising facilities such asthe local school and library, and having a positive
impact.on the environment through improving the quality of the built environment
and developing new housing developments which incorporate energy efficiency
measures and make use of sustainable materials. The Danesgate Skills Centre
includes a nature reserve which is maintained through input from a local 'Friends of'

group.

However, there is no consistent approach to challenge whether assets are required,
fit for purpose, and provide value for money in meeting current and future needs.
Some mechanisms are in place but are not routinely applied across the entire asset
base. The corporate AMP refers to the role of Property Services in challenging the
asset base and this is applied, for example, in the development of area AMPs and
service AMPs. The AMG also considers options for the use of assets no longer
required by services. These include options for the use of the former Lowfields
School site and land at the rear of Acomb library. The commercial property strategy
sets out criteria for holding non-operational property and identifies properties



Page 97

suitable for potential disposal. However, this process is largely financially driven, and
it is not clear to what extent financial benefits are balanced with the impact on
outcomes for local people.

The Council should develop a performance management framework to
measure the effectiveness of its asset portfolio in providing value for
money. This should include:

A comprehensive suite of indicators to enable progress against
corporate priorities to be measured and managed. This should
incorporate existing service-based indicators which are relevant to
asset management;

Meaningful targets against each indicator to allow monitoring of
progress and impact;

Mechanisms to identify and challenge under-performance;
A process to challenge whether assets are fit for purpose;

Regular reporting of the performance of the asset portfolio and the
extent to which it has contributed to the achievement of improved
outcomes for local people.

The Council has an established policy to work with-community groups which is
delivering community benefits, There are’examples of assets being transferred to
community groups which have had a positive impact and others are being
considered, particularly in relation to those areas covered by an area Asset
Management Plan.

The Council-has adopted a strategic approach to working with the voluntary sector
and community groups regarding the transfer of assets for community use. The
approach enables assets to be transferred on long leases to community groups
provided criteria regarding access and management of the asset are satisfied. This
builds-on the success of individual projects, such as the Oaken Grove Community
Centre in Haxby, where the building is now well used and provides a focal point for
the local community.

The St Clement's Hall refurbishment project is a good example of how the Council
has worked with"a local community group and accessed external funding to bring a
listed building back into community use in a way which provides good value for
money. The implementation of the Tang Hall area AMP also includes proposals for
considering the transfer of the community hall into local community ownership,
subject to compliance with the Council's policy. Both initiatives relied upon close
engagement with local communities which has influenced plans for how assets are
to be used and developed in the future.

The Council is also developing its approach to working with partners to improve the
effectiveness of the asset base. There are examples of assets being jointly used



Page 98

with partners, including police and health presence in some schools and the St
Clement's Hall refurbishment project includes a proposal for the local community
police to have a base in the building. However this is not yet part of a long-term
strategic approach to improve asset utilisation or access to services. Partners have
begun to attend meetings of the Corporate Asset Management Group and are keen
to pursue opportunities for joint working, but this is at an early stage.



Page 99

MBIAB
[enuuy

oLoc
Bundg

oLoz deg
dNV
ajelodion
MaU Jo
uondopy

0l0c uer
aANoaxg

‘ONVYD
0} podau
[emui

ajeq

sue|d 821n18s 0)Ul pas) awwelboid
dINY ©2IAI8S Y1 JO SBW092IN0 8y} ainsu]

plojpue ejelodio)

Aq panoidde si yoiym juswabeuew josse

uo UoI}0as B aAey sueld 92IAI8S ||e 8INSuUd 0}
Buiuueld adinlas JO mainal 91el0diod ojul paa4
uonenyIs Jua.lind JO MaIAI N0 AlieD

aAlnoaxg Aq panoidde

dINY 81elodio) Jeak g mau ul sebueyd spnjou|

SSOUBAIJOBY0 MIINDY
s109(o.d Jolew

pue s,dINY 92IAI9S pue ealy Jualind uo [el]

sabueyo pasodoid uo siogquauw [1IoUN0YD

pue sisuped [eulaixe ‘OINvYD ybnoiy ynsuon
sjuiod |y Junoooe ojul Bue)
sjooloid [enpiAlpul pue s, dNY 99IAI8S
pue ealy |le ul suejd uonejuswa|dwii
pieog jassy [9A9] — ybiy e Buiysiiqeisa

Buipnjoul Juswabeuew

19sse BuliaAl|ap 10} 81N10NJIS MaU JBPISUOD

play uonewJoyul

‘ssauaAoays syl pue yoeoudde Bunsixe
8y} JO Jipne pue MalAal ||} B axeuapun

sjuswwo)

INdV Auadoid
siabeuep

90INIBS

1IND

pJojpueT]

SOA ajelodio)

slaquis [1DUN0YD

‘OINVD ‘piojpueT]
SOA ajelodio)

paaiby  Ayjqisuodsay

'ssao0.4d Buiuueld

90IAJIBS 8U) Jo Jed se sanssi jJuswabeuew
1osse Buriepisuoo 0] yoeoudde

JUSJSISUOD pUB JB3|d B 8INSUS 0} PaMaIAal
aq pjnoys aouepinb Buluue|d aoineS 2y

‘ojelidoidde aie asay) aloym

Seale |ed0| pue Sa2IAISS [BNPIAIPUI 1O}
salboiens Buioddns Jo asn js8q Bupjepy
{pabeuew pue pasojuow a9

0} ssaJbo.d a|qeus 0} sainseaw $S829NS
pue sanjjigisuodsad ‘suonesidwi Buipuny
‘saul|pesp ‘suoljoe aivads apnjoul yoiym
sue|d uoneyuswadwi Ag pauuidiapun

‘aouewloped

Jua.LIND s}l pue oljopiod Jesse
8y} Jo Buipuejsiapun ||n} e UO pasegq

‘S8W0921N0 AJuUNWWoo pue

sanjuoLd ayelodiod yym paubije Ales|n

:aJe salbajel)s Juswabeuew

19sse ainsus 0} Juswabeuew jasse

¢ 0] yoeolidde s} MaIABS PINOYS [1DUNOY BY |

ybiH=¢
PaN =2
MO = |
Ayiongd

2<]

8

8

‘ou

uolepudaWWoddy abed



Page 100

010z 1des

olLoc
Bundg

(AN
Jswwng

010¢
Jawwng

olLoc
Bundg

ajeq

SSOUBAII0BYS pue

sawo2)no je Bunjoo| ABsjeng aoueusiuiel
pue Jieday Buisixs Jo malAal ayeuapun

oY pue uswabeuepy

saljIoe uo 108foud IO A JO} BIOJ O} YUl
dAVY

a)jetodio) Jeak g mau ul swwelbold apnjou|
Juauno

uonew.oyul 8y} deay 0} pue awwelboid

siy} 1no Auieo 03 a|qejieae si Buipuny ainsuj
aseqgejep ajelodiod e ybnouyy

9]qISSa20e ABM JUS]SISUOD B Ul UOI}BULIOUI
SIY} JO uone||09 1o} ssaoo.d juswa|dw|
sjasse ay) abeuew AjpAinosye

0} paiinbai uonewloUl JO M3IASI N0 Alie)
SWo)SAS uonewloju| pue juswabeuely
Aeq-o03-Aeq uo 108(oid YIOA IO} BIO\ O} YUl
(sswoo1no N4

0] payul[) S821JO [IDUN0D MBU 8y} O} SAOW 8y}
uo AJaaljap |} yim uononpoJjul paseyd aneH
ssao0ud }96pnq [1IoUN0D

Z1/11.0Z @Y} Ojul SBW02IN0 8y} 8)etodiodu|
s1ebpnq

[endes pue anuanal Auadoud jo uoneooje
pue asn ayj 0} yoeoidde pajepl|osuod

pue ajelodiod aiow e o) Aoijod e aonpoid
SSOUBAIJOBYD

S}l pue uoisiAoid Jualind JO MalAal 1no Aue)
juswabeue

Salj|I0e4 uo 109[01d HIOA 40} BIOIA O} YUl

sjuswuwo)

‘s9oINIOS

Apadoid ‘ONVD

pue pieogq

19SSy ‘pJojpuer]

SOA ajelodion

NV S8dIAI8S
Ayedoid ‘ONVD
pue pJeog jossy

pJojpueT]
SOA ajelodion

siabeuew

aoueulH

ONWVD

pue pleog }ossy
pJojpueT

SOA ajelodio)

paaiby Ajjgisuodsay

L
g
4
ybiH=¢
PaN =2
MO =1
Ayioud

e se s}obpnq paAjoAsp pue ajelodiod
usamjaq aoue|eq ajelidoidde ue ainsus 0}
s1eb6png @oueualUieW pue Jiedal snuaAal

pue |eydeo Buidojonsp 1o} sses0id

JUS.LIND BY) MBIABI PINOYS [IoUnNo) 8yl Gy 0l

‘pasiubooal ate

suoneoldwi e ainsua 0} sanss| 8)eJ0diod
pue Ajunwwod ‘991AISS JO JUNOJJE a)e)
pINoys smainal asay] “A[SA1joays aiow
sjosse abeuew 0} |IoUN0Y 8y} 9|qeusd

0] a)jep 0} dn 1day s| oljojod Josse ay)

0} Bunjejal uoljew.lIoUl 8INSUS 0} SMBIAS
Apadoud jo swwesboud e jo Juswdojarsp

oy} JOpISUOD P|NoyYs [1DUN0D dYL v 6

‘oljojjiod josse s,|1ouno) ay) Wolj

Ksuow 1o} anjeA Buinoidwi Ul S824n0sal
JO @sn }s8q ayew 0} Aem Jus)SISU0D

e ul pasiuoud ale Juswabeuew
19sse 0) buneal syabpnq pasjorsp
1ey) ainsusa 0] sassaosoud Buiuueld

[BIDUBUL S}l MBIASI PINOYS [IDUNOD 8Y| €Y g

‘ou
uonepuUsWWO29Y abed



Page 101

|[e WoJ} SUOI}o. pue SaWOodIN0
0102 sajesodiodu] yoiym ssaoold e asinaQ
Jswwnsg Buiodas aouewlopad

UOISJaA |eulj 8onpoud 0} 8SIAaI/MBIABI pue

saladoud pajos|es uo wsiueydsw siyy e |

SBWO02)N0 JO }nsal

e se sabueyo ajeniul 0} pJojpue] ajelodio)

ay} 0} Ajlloyine saAlb pue sjuswalinbal

SJop|oyde]s S1esaW Jey] Wsiueyosw e asina(g

$96s5920.d Jua.ind jsuiebe Jipne

pue sjasse asodind-10j-}1; pue Buiwiopad

0L0Z 404 BLISJLO JISY} UO SISP|OYSHE)S UM }NSU0D
Jawwng abusjieyn

sjablie) wia)

Buo| pue poys [njbuiuesw YIMm BLIBJIO SS82INS

uo Buissnoo} souewIopad }J9sse ainseaw

AlaAnoaya yoiym s,|d JO 8}INs Mau aonpold

saloud

ajelodion 03 syul| pue 1pedwl ‘eoueAs|al

010z 10} 1ipne pue pajos||0d AjJuaiind s |d ||e MaIASY
Buudg SJOJEOIpU| SOUBWIONSd
sjuawalinbal

92Inosal pue ue|d uopejusws|du

LLOZ Suleluod yoiym Abaielis mau ay) Uo aAlNdaXg
Bundg pue pJeog jassy wolj [eaoidde uieiqo
ABajen g aoueusjuiely pue Jieday

0102 pasinal e Buionpolad ul smaia aoueuly/ebs)
Jswwng pue €3 WOoJ} SUOIBPUSWILIODS] SpN|ou|

o)eq sjusawWwWwo)

aoueul
‘INdV S@2Inosay
‘ONVO

pue pieog

19SSy ‘plojpueT]

SOA ajelodio)

8AIINo8X]

paaiby Ajjgisuodsay

g
ybiH=¢
PaN =2
MO =1
Ayioud

‘g|doad |eoQ)
10} S8W02IN0 paroiduwl JO JUSWSASBIYOE
8y) 0} painguiuod sey )l yaiym
0] Jus}xa 8y} pue oljojiod }osse ay}
Jo aouewuopad ay} jo Buiiodal sejnbay
‘osodind Joj Jj aie
sjosse Jayloym abua|ieyo 0} ssasoid y
‘eouew.opad-lapun
abusjjeys pue Ajjuspi 0} swsiUeyIs\
oedwil
pue ssaiboud jo BuLiojluow mojje 0}
Jojeoipul yoea jsuiebe syabie) [(njbuiuesiy
‘Juswabeuew jasse
0] JUBAS|BJ BJB YdIYM SI0}edIpul paseq
-901A19s Bunsixa ajesodiodoul pjnoys siy |
‘pabeuew pue painsesw aq o) sanLoLd
alelod.od jsuiebe ssalbouid s|jgeus
0] SJ0JedIpul JO 8)INS dAISUayaIdwo9
:apn[oul pjnoys
siy] "Asuow Joy anjea Buipinoid ui oljoyuod
19SSE S} JO SSBUBAI}0BYS 8y} ainseaw
0] yJomawel} Juswabeuew asuewlopad
e dojoasp pjnoys [puno) 8yl 9" LI

‘@oueudUIRW Boppoeq Jo
[oA8] Buisealoul ay) Buissaippe Jo sueaw

‘ou
uonepuUsWWO29Y abed



Page 102

Buniodal Jo adA} pue Aouanbauy Buipnjoul
dINY @ielodio) Jeahk g mau ul apnjoul

0102 pue yJomawel Juswabeuey souewiouad
Jswwng MaU 0} |eAcsdde pleog 18ssy uielqo
uodal

sIy} @onpoud 0} sjuswalinbal 82I1nosal Ajjuap|
sjuswalinbal sjeaw JI 89S

0} NV Buipnjoul ‘siapjoysyels Yim }nsuod
S.Id

yym podal aouewlopad ajbuls e oyl syosfoid
[EBNPIAIPUI PUB SNV BaJy/a2IAIag/a1el0di0)

o)eq sjusawWwWwo)

ybiH=¢
PaN =2
MO =1

paaiby Ajjgisuodsay Ajuond

‘ou
uonepuUsWWO29Y abed



Page 103 Agenda Item 8

YORK

L“"';\g CITY OF
& COUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 21° December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director (Property Services)

Asset Management — the way forward

Summary
1 This report responds to:

a. the Audit Commission report on CYC performance in asset management
issued December 2009 (included in an earlier item on this agenda), and

b. the ‘Room for Improvement — Strategic asset management in local
government’, a national report issued by the Audit Commission in June 2008.

2 This report also outlines the objectives of the council’s approved Property Blueprint
included in the More for York programme.

Background

3 The five year Corporate Asset Management Plan was approved and adopted by the
Executive on 27" March 2007. Executive Members can find a copy of this report on
the Council’s website at
www.york.gov.uk/business/Commercial_prop/Asset _management

4 In March 2009 the Audit Commission also carried out an audit of the Council’s
approach to Asset Management. This was an extensive and in depth audit which
looked at all aspects of the Asset Management Planning Process in response to the
focus on this topic in the 2009 CAA inspection as part of the assessment for the Use
of Resources.

5 The Audit Commission have published a national report under the heading of ‘Room
for Improvement’.

6 The report is the third national report on the subject and follows, Property: A
Management Overview in 1988 and Hot Property: Getting the Best from Local
Authority Assets in 2000.

7 At 315 March 2008, English councils owned property valued in their accounts at £250
billion. The market value of those assets is probably higher, even though that value
has probably declined in the recession. The report encourages councils to understand
how a more strategic approach to asset management could secure better value for
taxpayers’ money. Strategic in this context means being based on a plan or thought-
through analysis of the whole of the council’s obligations, ambitions and budget.



Page 104

8 Expectations about how property is managed is higher than ever: Councils should
make savings and deliver improved services by changing how they use property, and
when and how they invest in it.

Information

9 The Audit Commission developed an audit approach, that integrated the key
elements of:

e the relevant 2008/09 use of resources KLOE;

o the Audit Commission's national report, 'Hot Property: Getting the best from local
authority assets'; and

o the CLG report, 'Building on Strong Foundations'.

10 In summary the Audit Commission reported that the council has developed a strategic
approach to asset management, which has had some positive impact, but is not
consistently applied across the organisation.

11 The agreed action plan responding to the Audit Commission is appended to the Audit
Commission report earlier on this agenda.

12 Since that audit, the commission have published a national report under the heading
of ‘Room for Improvement’.

13 The following outlines the summary and recommendations of that report and
highlights how the City of York Council has previously and is now planning to respond
to those issues:

14 The summary:

a. Councils have made only modest progress on good property
management since 2000

CYC response -

1. Successful adoption of a number of Corporate AMP’s — latest one
is for the period 2007-2012. A new one is proposed for 2010-2014
and will be completed in the summer of 2010.

2. Development of a strategic approach to asset management which
has had some positive impact (as acknowledged by the Audit
Commission). To be further developed as part of the More for
York programme to provide a more collaborative approach for the
council.

3. Expansion of the Corporate Asset Management Group to include
representation from partner organisations such as the Police and
Fire Services. Other partners have expressed an interest in
joining the group from the local PCT and Probation Services.

4. Implementation of a new corporate property database
(Technology Forge). Collection and recording of data on all land
and property assets including tenure, occupation, running costs,
value, condition and suitability. A specific project within the More



Page 105

for York programme will focus upon a more collaborative and
coordinated approach to the management of property information.

Completion of Service and Area Asset Management Plans — eg.
Library Service AMP and Tang Hall Area AMP

Approval of Repair and Maintenance Strategy and repair and
maintenance programme implemented although with very limited
resources.

Rationalisation of the office accommodation portfolio into a new
HQ building to be opened in 2012.

Adoption of a Community Asset Transfer Policy which has
resulted in a number of successful schemes and also attracted
external funding (for example, St Clements Hall) and is delivering
community benefits (as recognised by the Audit Commission)

Delivery of a challenging capital receipt requirement although this
has been hindered by the current economic circumstances

10.Approval of a Commercial Property Portfolio Strategy. A further

11.

review is being undertaken as part of the More for York
programme.

Production of a complete set of National and Commercial
Property performance Indicators which have been used to
highlight priority areas for future work (for example bidding for
funds to reduce the Repair Backlog) and used for benchmarking
with other similar authorities again highlighting examples of good
practice and areas for concern

b. Council property is big business

CYC response — Value of the CYC estate 2000-2009 with breakdown and
including stock changes

Value/Breakdown 2000 2001 2002 2006 2009
of Assets by

Service Area £m £m £m £m £m
Council Houses 217 236 292 393 420
LCCS/Education 75 75 119 121 163
LCCS/Leisure 39 39 44 49 (inc. above)
Neighbourhoods 3 3 3 10 6
City Strategy 7 10 10 33 24
HASS/Housing 18 12 7 13 35
HASS/Social Serv 11 11 19 21 (inc.above)
Resources 31 36 42 46 72
Total 401 422 536 686 722

c. Councils have used the proceeds of rationalisation to invest in recent

years

CYC response — value of sales 2000-2009, where the money has gone -
especially in regard to office investment



Page 106

Year Net receipts

£m
2000/1 £1.7
2001/2 £4.9
2002/3 £3.9
2003/4 £4.0
2004/5 £3.1
2005/6 £2.1
2006/7 £18.4
2007/8 £5.5
2008/9 £2.1

Receipts used to fund the capital programme including

e Contribution to school building/refurbishment programme

e New HQ

e Contribution to community transfer schemes

¢ Dealing with repair and backlog maintenance, asbestos and other compliance
issues

d. Central government has not set clear expectations or offered incentives
to use assets more frugally

CYC response — carried out our own service and area reviews, community asset
transfer policy (Oaken Grove Community Centre, Beckfield Lane changing rooms,
St Clements Hall), lack of investment in reducing maintenance backlog

e. Few councils are well placed to deal with tougher times

CYC response — info on property increasing all the time through condition surveys,
energy info, database development, suitability surveys in place. There is a need to
plan for further rationalisation of property through greater provision of integrated
services from a lesser number of service points.

f. Recession offers opportunities as well as challenges

CYC response — moratorium on sales, lack of revenue/capital for
repairs/refurbishment and investment, More for York provides opportunity and
support to write new Corporate Asset Management Plan. Need to consider the
opportunities to acquire property for future needs and as part of regeneration
within York.

15 The Recommendations — What councils should do
a. Improve the knowledge of their portfolios and their partners portfolios

CYC response — implement the technology forge database development plan
(resourcing needed), gather information through the extended CAMG, include
relevant information in the new Corporate Asset Management Plan and all reports
to members to enable informed decisions to be made

b. Identify areas for improvement and other councils to learn from

CYC response — ensure regular production of all relevant PI's and their reporting.
Continue with benchmarking through Institute of Public Finance (IPF) and
Association of Chief Estates Surveyors (ACES) network, explore further value for



Page 107

money indicators from National Audit Office (NAO) and Audit Commission (AC) to
incorporate relevant ones within reports

c. Review property holdings and reduce them where possible by:
1. Disposal of surplus/under-utilised property

CYC response — continue with Service and Area AMP programmes —
link to school re-organisation programme

2. Reconfiguring services

CYC response — New HQ project, land behind Acomb Explore,
school and other service reviews leading to integrated service
provision, including those provided by external partners.

3. Consider tenure other than ownership

CYC response — Community asset transfers, Museum Trust,
consider other trusts for leisure facilities etc.

d. Motivate service managers to use property more economically

CYC response — Property comments in service plans, Service Asset Management
Plans, Integrated service provision and Office of the future project

e. Develop the capacity needed to bring about change by
1. Recruiting appropriately skilled staff

CYC response — work with partner organisations and framework
partners

2. Commission reviews from private sector professionals

CYC response — framework partners, Bruton Knowles carrying out
Strays Service AMP

3. Making best use of external support

CYC response — sharing information and best practice in the
benchmarking groups and with partner organisations.

f. Collate with local partners by
1. LSP
CYC response — This needs to be developed
2. Sharing with partners
CYC response — Acomb Explore, Derwent/Westfield Schools

3. Sharing property data



Page 108

CYC response — need to develop what we have and to examine our
approach to common systems.

g.- Seek opportunities presented by the recession to

1. Acquire properties

CYC response - need the resources to do this or the capacity to
borrow.

2. Employ high calibre staff

CYC response - recruitment freeze, but More for York will include
examining the procurement and provision of specialist support
frameworks.

More for York - The Property Blueprint

16 The blue print for Property does not just look at the Property Service but at the way we
manage land and property assets across the whole council irrespective of use and at
the opportunities for working closely with partners and other public-private sector
organisations.

17 The blueprint has five distinct projects within it and are as follows:

a.
b.

C.

d.

e.

Strategic Asset Management
Day to Day Property Management and Information

Change - enabling, commissioning and delivery of professional and technical
services

Commercial Portfolio

Facilities Management

18 The objectives of the Strategic Asset Management project include:

a.

b.

Member/Officer Champions and Asset Board

Central control, prioritisation and allocation of resources
Collaborative and informed decision making
Responsive to proven and established property need
Collaborative implementation

‘Less is more’ — efficient and fit for purpose assets
Reduced asset running costs

Generate capital receipts

More focussed investment



Page 109

j- A value for money, compliant and fit for purpose asset base.

19 The objectives of the Day to Day Property Management and Information project
include:

a. Single point of access

b. Comprehensive up to date data and information on all aspects of land and
property assets

c. Sufficient information to support decision making
d. Comprehensive advisory service

e. Evidence of compliance

f. Evidence of meeting statutory and legal obligations

g. An efficient system for the collection, collation, storage and management of
data and information in all relevant formats

h. Reduced risk
i. All assets registered — Land Registry
j- Possible links with PCT, Police and Fire services and other local authorities
k. Appropriate levels of investment in processes and ICT
20 The objectives of the Commercial Portfolio project include:
a. Clarity of portfolio content
b. Clarity of portfolio objectives
c. Clarity of targets for financial, social and economic benefits
d. Collaborative and informed decision making through the Asset Board
e. A portfolio that is more efficient and has reduced unit costs
f. Generation of targeted capital receipts
g. More focussed investment in
1. Existing properties
2. Acquisition of new and appropriate properties

h. A value for money, compliant and fit for purpose commercial portfolio asset
base.

21 The other two projects support the principles of these three but do not contribute
directly to those issues raised in the Audit Commission report and the ‘Room for
Improvement’ national report.



Page 110

22 To summarise, the council’s response to the Audit Commission report, through its
action plan, and the intentions outlined in the Property Blueprint will contribute
enormously to satisfying the recommendations outlined in the ‘Room for Improvement’
report. Implementation of Audit Commission recommendations will be monitored
through the Audit Committee; the MoreforYork blueprint will be monitored through the
MoreForYork Programme Board, CMT and Executive.

Options
23 Not relevant for the purpose of the report
Analysis
24 Not relevant for the purpose of the report
Consultation
25 Corporate officers have contributed to this report where appropriate and relevant
Corporate Priorities

26 Links can be made to a number of the council’s priorities, particularly Effective
Organisation - Proper Asset Management Planning will ensure the Council occupies
and uses property and land assets which are 'fit-for-purpose' and sustainable which
will improve the effectiveness of service delivery and make best use of limited revenue
and capital budgets.

Implications
27 The following information is provided:
Financial

28 There are no financial implications, though it should be noted that to fully resource
asset management planning to the level of expectation outlined in the Audit
Commission reports would require further investment by the council.

Human Resources (HR)

29 There are no HR implications.
Legal

30 There are no Legal implications.
Crime and Disorder (C & D)

31 There are no C & D implications.
Information Technology (IT)

32 There are no IT implications.
Property

33 Property implications are discussed within the report



Page 111

Risk Management

34 Failure to provide adequate arrangements for effective property management could
present risks that range from basic and safety hazards to significantly impacting on
the ability to deliver services effectively.

Recommendation

35 That Members note the council’s response to the Audit Commission’s review of asset
management, to ‘Room for Improvement’ and as part of More for York, and the
associated monitoring arrangements

Reason: To receive assurances on the effective management of the council’s
property assets as part of the system of internal control.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Neil Hindhaugh Neil Hindhaugh
Head of Property Services Head of Property Services
Tel: (01904) 553312 Tel: (01904) 553312
Report Approved v Date

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Name Philip Callow

Head of Asset and Property Management
Property Services

Tel No. (01904) 553360

Wards Affected:

For further information please contact the author of the report



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113 Agenda ltem 9

COUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 21 September 2009

Report of the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service & Governance)
Data Quality Policy — Progress Report

Summary

The following report outlines the progress made towards implementing and
embedding a data quality policy across the council and gives feedback from the Audit
Commission on City of York Council’s Data Quality Arrangements under Use of
Resources Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) 2.2 as part of the Organisational
Assessment.

Background

Over the past few years there has been increasing emphasis placed on councils to
have robust, clear and effective data quality (DQ) policies in place to ensure data
quality is considered when key decisions are made and to help drive performance
improvement.

York’s overall management arrangements for ensuring data quality were assessed by
the Audit Commission as ‘performing adequately’ under the new Use of Resources
inspection in 2008-09. Actions have taken place and are planned in order to move
York up to a ‘performing well’ score.

The Audit Commission view data quality as crucial, given that much of what we
decide to improve, and how well we say we are performing, is dependent on the
foundations of accurate data and information. This affects all aspects of performance
management including the Comprehensive Area Assessment, achieving the
corporate priorities, the Local Area Agreement, etc.

Audit Commission Inspection 2008-09 — Feedback

The following summarised feedback was given to the council as part of the 2008-09
Audit Commission Inspection (including spot checks) of data quality under the 2.2
KLOE:

e There is a robust corporate framework to oversee data quality (DQ). The profile of
DQ issues has been raised through the nomination of a Chief Officer as DQ
champion and the inclusion of DQ as a key project within the council's
Improvement Plan. A policy has been adopted which sets out standards for
accuracy, validity, timeliness and accessibility of data.

e The policy provides guidance and toolkits to support improvements in data
collection and is translated into action through a council-wide Performance Officer
Group (POG), which champions DQ within services and provides an ongoing
challenge to the accuracy of data.



Page 114

e The council has a good track record of producing and using relevant and reliable
data. Work is progressing to address weaknesses in some partnership data, as
well as dealing with issues in respect of some of the new National Indicator set.

e The Performance Officer Group provides a mechanism for gathering feedback
from decision makers to ensure reports remain relevant. Data management
systems are effectively managed and controlled to minimise the risk of data loss
or corruption.

e The range of indicators used to manage performance has been reviewed to
ensure alignment with the Local Area Agreement and the corporate priorities of
the council. There are clear links between the performance management process
and business planning and the council has a track record of using performance
information to target under-performance, improve value for money and identify
actions to improve.

Audit Commission Spot Check Conclusion

e In 2008/09 spot-checks were made to national indicators: NI 130 (Social care
clients receiving self directed support), NI 135 (Carers needs assessed and
reviewed), and one local (LAA) indicator LAA 8.10 (GCSE results in deprived
areas). The systems were found to be sound, and there are no improvements that
need to made to the systems of collection.

Internal Audit Inspection

As well has the Audit Commission Inspection, our data quality arrangements were
also reviewed by Internal Audit (Veritau). All indicators were risk assessed to provide
a short list of 24 indicators to be inspected. They found all of these indicators to have
at least moderate assurance except 1 indicator, Improved Local Biodiversity (NI 197),
which was given limited assurance. Actions have been put in place to improve the
system of collection for this indicator, which involve better procedures for recording
site visits.

Progress made with implementing the Data Quality Policy

The data quality policy has been expanded this year to build on the feedback given by
the Audit Commission and Internal Audit. One of the areas has been to review all
national indicators against a self assessment matrix to give an indication of data
quality issues across the council and partners. We have now assessed nearly 167
(90%) of the national indicator set, which builds on the 50 indicators assessed in the
last Data Quality Audit and Governance Report.

Average Initial Data Quality Scores for Local Area Agreement (LAA) indicators and
National Indicators (5 being good).

Accuracy Validity Timeliness | Accessibility
LAA Indicators 4.0 4.1 2.9 3.6
Average
National Indicator 4.1 4.4 3.7 4.0
Average
LAA 37 (74%) | 42 (84%) | 21(42%) | 32 (64%)
Scoring 4-5 (of 50)
National Indicators o o o o
Scoring 4-5 (of 167) 129 (77%) | 152 (91%) | 117 (70%) | 116 (69%)




10

11

12

Page 115

Reliance on External Data or Local Partner.

Reliance on: External Data Local Partner
LAA Indicators (of 35) 33 (66%) 17 (34%)
National Indicator (of 167) 69 (41%) 40 (24%)

LAA indicators have more of a reliance on local partners due to the nature of the
agreement and this can impact on the timeliness of the data available. Partners
naturally have to wait to release an indicator until it has been verified or has been
released by the national agencies. We have made good progress this year with
partners with regular data transfers being set up with the PCT, the Health
Observatory and the Safer York Partnership. However there is still more work to be
done to achieve a level of constancy in data quality.

We have also aligned the process of reporting information to the With Out Walls
Executive Delivery Board picking up commentary on indicators to report progress
where indicator information is not available.

Below is a summary of some of the key DQ issues raised in the self assessments:

Accuracy:
e Some survey data is voluntary therefore low participation can distort figures.

e Data sharing happens between partners but can be limited due to national
constraints.

e Data has to be “cleaned up” due to complicated collection arrangements and
counting rules.

e Assumptions or human judgement that rely on different people cause fluctuation.

e Seasonal variation can cause the indicator to change throughout the year, such as
school term dates or winter weather.

Validity
e Counting rules not being released or being too complicated.
¢ Limited knowledge within service about indicators and how they are calculated.

Timeliness

e Information that relates to surveys or those only supplied on an annual basis.

e Many figures are not released until finalised and verified which can cause delays
to directorate and corporate performance reporting.

e Data can be up to 2 years out of date due to the way indicators are calculated.

e Limited trend data due to new indicators or limited supply from external source.

Accessibility:

e External data supplied by partners or government agencies either does not come
with enough detail or is difficult to obtain.

e Information which is available on request limits access or causes delay.

e Licences on software products either not provided or too expensive.

o Websites with limited access or with regional data rather than York.

External and Local partners:

e A high proportion of indicators rely on external information.

e Over a third of information comes through partners and the relationship with
partners is to be continuously improved.

e Problems with the national data hub cause delays with the availability of data.




13

14

15

16

17

Page 116

Place Survey Indicators

e Although the place survey results are seen as accurate, they suffer from having a
small sample size and therefore analysis of ward level data can not be done as its
not statistically viable.

e Other authorities have invested resources to increase the sample size and have
improved customer insight data as a result.

Actions Summary

There have been many indicators scoring 1-3 on the self assessment forms
especially under the timeliness (30%) and accessibility (31%) criteria (see para 8). To
target future improvements there have been a number of actions identified within the
assessments. Below is an example of some of the actions raised:

More manual and spot checks.

Better designed reports within systems to gather the relevant information.
Increasing sample sizes or asking similar questions within other surveys.
Improved training and limit the use of manual calculation.

Improve relationship with partners.

Use more estimated data throughout the year.

Next Steps

Many areas of the council’'s data quality work were assessed as improving well and
an action plan has been developed to move York’s overall score from ‘performing
adequately’ to ‘performing wel’l. Many areas of the council’'s data quality work were
assessed as performing well already and we only just missed out on the next level.
We have now reviewed all of national indicators, aligned our corporate strategy to the
Sustainable Community Strategy and are continuously improving our links with
partners. We have also developed a council wide performance management
framework which is being aligned to the partnership including setting out a shared
data quality standard with the 2 main partners (Police and PCT).

In our drive to further embed the data quality policy within the council, the
appointment of a ‘data quality champion’ at Elected Member level would strengthen
our current arrangements. This has also been recognised as best practice in other
authorities and is likely therefore to be commended by the Audit Commission.
Therefore the committee may wish to request that the Executive Member for
Resources takes on this role in line with his portfolio responsibilities.

Over the past 18 months we have used benchmarking data through the PWC
benchmarking club. We will continue to build on this work as it is an excellent source
of information helping the council to quickly see where an indicator may have been
calculated incorrectly or where we are not performing as we should.

Corporate Priorities

Since the achievement of all corporate priorities are assessed through key
performance indicators then in order to produce reliable, accurate, timely and
accessible data, it is vital the Data Quality Policy is followed fully. Data Quality is
critical to an effective performance management framework and therefore contributes
to an Effective Organisation.



18

19

20

21

Page 117
Implications
Below are the implications of this report:

(a) Financial — there may be some financial implications due to actions required to
solve data quality problems identified through use of toolkits.

(b) Human Resources (HR) — there are no implications

(c) Equalities — there are no implications

(d) Legal — there are no implications

(e) Crime and Disorder — there are no implications

(

f) Information Technology (IT) — there may be some IT implications depending on
the results of systems integrity checks.

(9) Property — there are no property implications.
(h) Other — none.

N N N N

Risk Management

The Audit Commission has identified that the risk of not addressing weaknesses in
data quality is that:
e information could be misleading
decisions may be flawed
resources may be wasted
poor services may not be improved
and policy may be ill-founded.

Comprehensive Area Assessment is a key strategic risk for the authority which is
being monitored by the Audit & Governance Committee. As a key part of the
council’'s Use of Resources assessment, poor data quality could impact on achieving
an overall score of 3.

Recommendations

Audit & Governance Members are asked to:

(a) consider and comment on the progress made to date on improving data quality,
including positive audit results which show the improvements having an impact.

(b) consider a request to the Executive Member for Resources takes on the role of
Member Champion in line with his portfolio.

Reason:
To ensure continual improvement is made to the council’s data quality arrangements,

which will also help to improve the reported results in the Use of Resources
Assessment as part of the Organisational Assessment in CAA.



Page 118

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Nigel Batey Pauline Stuchfield

Senior Performance Assistant Director of Resources (Customer
Management Officer Service and Governance)

Tel: 01904 552047 Report Approved ‘ ~ ‘ Date ‘ 5th Dec 2009

Report Approved | tick | Date | Insert Date

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All |

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes
None




Page 113 Agenda ltem 10

Audit & Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director (Customer Service & Governance)
Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter Three 2009/10

Summary

1. The purpose of this paper is to present to Audit & Governance
Committee (A&G) the revised risks associated with the refreshed Key
Corporate Risks (KCRs) as at the third quarter for 2009/10.

Background

2. The KCRs are reported to both Audit & Governance Committee (A&G)
and CMT on a quarterly basis as part of the council’s overall
governance arrangements. The KCRs were reviewed at a session of
the Corporate Leadership Group (CLG) in June 2009 and approved by
A&G and CMT in September 2009.

Quarter Three Monitor

3. The position of the revised KCRs at the end of the third quarter of
2009/10 are set out at Annex A of this report. The monitor is complete
in terms of accurately reflecting the information recorded in the
council’s risk register (Magique) however, there is an on-going
requirement for risk owners to ensure their risks are accurate, complete
and up-to-date.

4. This is the first set of risks associated with the revised KCRs to be
brought to A&G and they will continue to be developed over the coming
months setting out clearly all the current controls and future actions to
be taken to mitigate them. The headline risks are set out below and full
descriptions along with details of the controls and actions currently
identified to mitigate them are set out within the monitor (Annex A):

KCR 0003 Waste Management Strategy Partnership

o Failure to secure planning consent
o Solution is unaffordable



Page 120

KCR 0010 Emergency Planning & Business Continuity

. Inability to respond to multiple incidents

KCR 0012 Effects of the Economic Downturn

o Increase in the value of employer’s contribution to LGPS

KCR 0016 Capital Programme

o Failure to obtain funding for Access York phase 2
o Failure to deliver York University Pool by 2011
o Failure to achieve planning approval (Admin Accom)

KCR 0018 Impact of an Ageing Population
° Increasing social care support costs

5. More detailed information can be provided by the appropriate risk
owner from the relevant directorate, if it is required in relation to any of
the risks contained within the monitor. A&G after considering the risks
may wish to call in a lead officer to A&G committee in April 2010 to
provide more detail and assurance around how a specific risk is being
managed.

Development Issues

6. The More For York - KCR 0017 - is not included in this quarter’s
monitor as this area is continuing to be developed in line with the More
for York blueprints. Risks associated with the blueprints will be
reported in future monitoring reports as they are developed.

Directorate High & Critical Risks

7. In terms of High and Critical directorate risks that A&G may wish to
consider outside of the KCRs there have been no risks raised from
Directorate Management Teams this quarter.

Options

8. Not applicable.

Corporate Strategy

9. The effective consideration and management of risk within all of the
council’s business processes will contribute to achieving an ‘Effective

Organisation’ and aid the successful delivery of each theme within the
Corporate Strategy.



Page 121

Implications
(a) Financial - There are no implications
(b) Human Resources (HR) - There are no implications
(c) Equalities - There are no implications
(d) Legal - There are no implications
(e) Crime and Disorder - There are no implications
(f) Information Technology (IT) - There are no implications
(g) Property - There are no implications
Risk Management
10.  In compliance with the council’s Risk Management strategy, there are
no risks directly associated with the recommendations of this report.
The activity resulting from this report will contribute to improving the
council’s internal control environment and avoid criticism within the
Organisational Assessment under CAA.
Recommendations

11. Audit & Governance Committee are asked to:

a) Consider, comment and agree on the risks set out at Annex A
and paragraph 4 of this report;

Reason
To provide assurance that risks to the council are continuously
reviewed and updated.

b) suggest a further detailed risk report for A&G in April as set out
at paragraph 5 if required.
Reason

To provide assurance that key risks are being appropriately
managed by the organisation



Page 122

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Claire Rogers Pauline Stuchfield

Risk Management Officer Assistant Director of Customer Service &
Phone No. 01904 551156 Governance

David Walker Report Approved | v Date 9/12/09

Head of Financial Procedures
Phone No. 01904 552261

Specialist Implications Officer(s) Not applicable

Wards Affected Not applicable

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter three 2009/10.
Public Annex

Annex A — Key Corporate Risk Monitor

Exempt Annex

Annex B — Key Corporate Risk Monitor



: : Page 123
City of York Council Annex A

Key Corporate Risk Monitor 2009/10

KCR 0003 Waste management strategy partnership

Corporate Lead Bill Woolley

Financial penalties of failing to manage satisfactory partnership solution to waste agenda. Partnership solution with
NYCC introduces risks to the programme from CYC perspective (control, breakdown of effective working, governance
etc). Project risks of the partnership have been identified and are being managed by NYCC as the lead body

Waste Management Strategy Partnership

City Strategy
Project delays
Risk Owner: Bill Woolley High 20
Cause Failure to communicate to stakeholders Consequence This could result in judicial review,
regarding the benefits and requirement for a objections of planning permission,
treatment site. protests, public enquiry and significant
Failure to secure and/or demonstrate delays to the project and increase costs.

adequate consultation.

Stakeholder issues arise to do with planning
and design, due to negative perception of
treatment plants and technologies.

Controls Owner
Communication Strategy Bill Woolley
Public Consultation Bill Woolley
Communication Plan Bill Woolley
Work with bidders and NYCC planners Bill Woolley
Project programme includes time for planning debate Bill Woolley
Work to ensure the site is deliverable Bill Woolley
Early feasibility study to be carried out to identify possible areas of concern Bill Woolley
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Work with planning department 31/08/2010
Consultation to be completed as statutory consultation on planning 31/08/2010

Page 1 of 13



Page 124

Failure to secure planning consent

Risk Owner: Bill Woolley

e

Consequence This could result in non-delivery of project.

Cause Failure to secure planning consent on any
of the selected sites. If there is not enough
preparation to ensure the site is the most
appropriate and all the required testing has
been complete. Environmental Impact

assessments etc.

Controls Owner
Identification of suitable alternative sites Bill Woolley
Environment Impact Assessment Bill Woolley

Participants working closely with planning department re design and site plan Patrick Looker
Council engagement with statutory consultees

Engagement with Government Office

Requirement of bidders to demonstrate how they plan to ensure planning succe

Post preferred bidder to work closely with participant through planning - commu

Patrick Looker
Patrick Looker
Patrick Looker
Patrick Looker

Potential challenge of the procurement process

Risk Owner: Bill Woolley

The Council could be sued and incur costs
and therefore may not be able to award
the contract.

Cause If the losing bidder deems the evaluation Consequence

has been inappropriate

Owner
Bill Woolley

Controls
Auditable trails of documentation

Solution is unaffordable

Risk Owner: Bill Woolley

The cost of this facility highly significant
but lower than the penalties. The
Government has contributed £65m

Cause The Government have imposed penalties Consequence
designed to reduce the amount of BMW

going to landfill and these penalties are

prohibitive and the Council cannot achieve
the reduction in BMW to landfill without a
disposal facility.

Controls
Highlighted as a budget requirement as part of the MTFS.
Ths Council has signed up to closing the affordability gap

through PFI credits towards these costs,
however, the likely net impact is still highly
significant to the Council. Should the
Council fail to set the monies aside to deal
with it.

Owner
Bill Woolley
Bill Woolley

Page 2 of 13



Page 125

KCR 0008 Comprehensive Area Assessment & Use of Resources

Corporate Lead lan Floyd

The new Comprehensive Area Assessment, to be introduced from April 2009, encompasses a joint risk assessment
undertaken by all local services inspectorates and will provide an independent assessment of the prospects for local
areas and the quality of life for people living there. It will look at the likelihood of local and national priority outcomes
being achieved by focusing on those identified in the Sustainable Community Strategy and related documents.

Resources

Lack of understanding of what it is, why it is important and implications of failure

Risk Owner:  Pauline Stuchfield High 19
Cause Lack of communication and engagement, Consequence Poor Organisational Assessment Score
as well as a lack of understanding of what is and Red Flags in CAA
required
Controls Owner
Communications plan in place Pauline Stuchfield
Monitoring and development of communciations plan Pauline Stuchfield

Inability to influence our partners performance

Risk Owner: Pauline Stuchfield High 18
Cause Inability to engage with our partners and Consequence Poor performance of our partners results
secure wider involvement for the wider in a our score being lowered
assessment.
Controls Owner
P & BA Partnerships working together Pauline Stuchfield
PBA-AD Resources to attend LSP delivery Board Pauline Stuchfield
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Develop partnership working 31/03/2010

Lack of buy-in from elected members

Risk Owner: Pauline Stuchfield High 18
Cause A lack of communication and engagement, Consequence Poor Organisational Assessment Score
as well as a lack of understanding of what is and Red Flags in CAA
required
Controls Owner
Regular reports to Executive and Audit & Governance Committee Pauline Stuchfield
Communication plan Pauline Stuchfield

Page 3 of 13



Page 126

Lack of evidence of good practice

Risk Owner: Pauline Stuchfield Medium 14
Cause Lack of corporate working 'as a team' and Consequence Poor Organisational Assessment Score

lack of resources and Red Flags in CAA
Controls Owner

P & BA repository of evidence, Business Planning Steering Group and POG grc Pauline Stuchfield

Actions Target Date Revised Date

Identify required outcomes from activities and projects at start as 31/03/2010
part of business planning

Page 4 of 13



Page 127

KCR 0010 Emergency Planning & Business Continuity

Corporate Lead Bill Woolley

Business Continuity : - The Council has a statutory duty to have plans in place to ensure the delivery of it's critical
services continues throughout any disruption to itself or the community. Emergency Planning: - The Council, as a
Category 1 responder to critical incidents, has a duty to maintain both generic and specific plans to respond to the major
risks facing it's community.

Corporate

Inability to respond to multiple incidents

Risk Owner: Damon Copperthwaite _ 23

Cause The council's Business Continuity Plans Consequence If more than one major incident was to
currently only deal with single separate occur at one time then the council may not
incidents. be as able to cope under such

circumstances.

Actions Target Date Revised Date

Review departmental business coninuity plans 31/03/2011

Inability to respond to and assist in the recovery of city of York after a major incident

Risk Owner: Damon Copperthwaite High 18

Cause Under the Civil Contingencies Act, as a Consequence Emergency services may not be
local authority, it is the role of City of York completely co-ordinated which could
Council to support the emergency services hinder the promptness of their response,
in the case of a major emergency and to the speed of recovery of the city, and
provide aid and assistance and advice to vulnerable people within the city may be
the general public. put at risk.

Controls Owner

Emergency Plans for the city Damon Copperthwaite

Emergency manuals Damon Copperthwaite

Exercising of the plans Damon Copperthwaite

Officers on-call Damon Copperthwaite

Inability to deliver critical services

Risk Owner: Damon Copperthwaite Medium 12
Cause If the council does not have appropriate Consequence This could result in reputational damage.
business continuity plans in place It could prevent vulnerable people from
throughout the organisation. receiving the care and accessing the
services they need.
Controls Owner
75% of departmental BCPs in place Damon Copperthwaite
Directorate BCPs in place Damon Copperthwaite
Corporate BCP in place Damon Copperthwaite
Corporate exercise Damon Copperthwaite
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Review all BCPs 31/03/2011

Page 5 of 13



Page 128

KCR 0012 Effects of the Economic Downturn

Corporate Lead Bill Woolley

The council has a duty to enhance the economic well-being of the City. A number of short term measures have been
agreed by the Council to respond to the current economic situation. These will be monitored and any scope for further
action considered. In addition, the Council will need to consider the effect of the economic situation on increasing
demand for specific services and declining income in some areas.

Resources
Corporate Finance
Increase in the value of employer's contribution to LGPS due to effects of economic downturn

Risk Owner: Louise Dixon _ 21

Cause A fall in investment returns due to the Consequence At a rough estimate, a 1% increase in the
volatility of the market due to the credit contribution rate is upwards of £700k p.a.
crunch. This could take effect from 1st April so there could be some substantial costs
2011. to meet at a time when government

funding and council tax income are both
under pressure. The Fund’s actuary has
estimated that an increase of 1-2% per
annum may be required over the 3 year
period from 2011/12, although the
government may ‘relax” current valuation
methodology to lessen the impact.

Actions Target Date Revised Date

Decision to be made for budget setting to 2010-11 to make a 01/12/2009
provision in advance

City Strategy
City Development and Transport

Reduced levels of tourism due to less in investment of national & regional transport
infrastructure

Risk Owner: Damon Copperthwaite High 20

Cause The financial impact of the economic Consequence This could mean that potential tourists
downturn will almost certainly result in a cannot as easily access the city and may
reduction in investment in regional and choose to visit other areas, affecting the
national air services, rail network and long future economic prosperity of the city.

distance buses.

Controls Owner
Lobbying for sustainable levels of investment and funding Damon Copperthwaite
Review policy setting Damon Copperthwaite

Page 6 of 13



Page 129

KCR 0015 Fairness & Inclusion

Corporate Lead Bill Hodson

A new, draft Fairness and Inclusion Strategy and Single Equality Scheme for 2009/12 has been approved by the
Equalities Leadership Group. This replaces the previous Equalities Strategy (Pride In Our Communities) and Corporate
Equality Scheme and also updates the approach in line with the new statutory requirements from April 2009. Both
documents have been produced following extensive consultation and engagement with groups and people from the
equality strands.

Corporate

Failure to comply with Equalities legislation and best practice

Risk Owner:  Paul Murphy High 20
Cause If we fail to pass our own audits of Consequence Financial costs associated with a tribunal
communicating with customers, due to a cases. Reputational damage linked to
lack of understanding of Equalities CAA ratings and press coverage.

legisalation and a lack of following
established best practice.

If we are not seen to be on the front foot for
anti-discrimination policies for both staff and

customers.
Controls Owner
EIA - customer communications Paul Murphy
Mystery shopping inspector Paul Murphy
Equality & Leadership Group Paul Murphy
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Implement actions from recommendations of corporate 30/06/2010

communications EIA

Page 7 of 13



Page 130

Be vulnerable to claims of unfairness and inequality and have difficulties recruiting and
retaining staff

Risk Owner:  Paul Murphy _ 20

Cause If we do not carried out EIA's for all relevant Consequence The Council could be taken to court by
areas of the business and/or fail to take all either individuals (employees or service
required actions determined necessary from users) or by organisations that represent
those assessments. them. Also we would fail to meet the

requirements of the Equality Framework
for Local Government and therefore fail to
pass key inspections like UoR and CAA.
We would fail to meet our own Equality
and Inclusion objectives.

Possible court action and/or adverse
publicity in local or national media.
Reputational as a poor equal opportunities

employer.

Controls Owner

Corporate-wide EIA's completed Paul Murphy

Staff Equallities Groups (covering the six strands) Paul Murphy

Directorate Equalities Leads Paul Murphy

Social Inclusion Working Group Evie Chandler

Annual programme to complete EIA's Evie Chandler

Equalities Leadership Group (ELG) Evie Chandler
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Deliver project plan 30/04/2011

Page 8 of 13



Page 131

KCR 0016 Capital Programme

Corporate Lead Bill Woolley

The Capital Programme delivers a number of capital schemes that directly contribute to the achievement of the
Corporate Strategy. All capital schemes are included into the Capital Programme via the annual capital budget process
which allocates resources to the projects that facilitate with service delivery and contribute toward the Corporate
Strategy. Currently the Capital Programme contains 85 projects over a 5 year period with a budget of over £206m.

City Strategy
City Development and Transport
Transport Capital Programme

Failure to obtain funding for Access York Phase 1

Risk Owner:  Tony Clarke High 19
Cause |If the DfT or CYC funding was not available Consequence Project would not proceed

Controls Owner

Regional Funding Allocation confirmed available. Tony Clarke

Follow DfT procedures to obtain main funding. Tony Clarke

Follow CYC CRAM procedures for local contribution. Tony Clarke
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Identify CYC funding through CRAM process 31/03/2009 31/03/2010

Resolve DFT queries on Business Case 31/01/2010

Learning, Culture and Children's Services

Failure to deliver LCCS school modernisation strategy

Risk Owner: Pete Dwyer Medium 13

Cause Late delivery or failure of significant capital Consequence Late delivery of large scale capital projects
projects include: New Manor School, may lead to reputational damage, financial
Joseph Rowntree, Rawcliffe and Clifton loss and difficulties with school admissions
Primary schools and English Martyrs and and accommodating children.

Our Lady's primary school merger, and
Knavesmire Children's Centre, Further
projects subject to DCSF funding.

Controls Owner
Extensive project management Maggie Tansley
Regular reporting to Members Kevin Hall

Learning, Culture and Children's Services

Lifelong Learning and Culture

Page 9 of 13



Page 132

Failure to deliver York University Pool by 2011

Risk Owner: Charlie Croft _ 21

Cause The University has not set a start date for Consequence Delivery of the University Pool is
the construction of the pool and have not dependent on York University instigating
yet been able to identify the required £10m the building works. This has so far not
funding. happened and therefore it is looking

unlikely that it will be complete by 2011.
This means that the council will not meet
its target to fill the gap in swimming pool

provision.
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Strategy meeting with Sport England to consider other delivery 10/12/2009
models
Work with the University to try to identify other funding sources. 31/03/2011

Administration & Accommodation Review
City Strategy
Failure to achieve planning approval

Risk Owner: lan Asher _ 23

Cause Developer solution fails to take into Consequence Delays and consequent costs incurred (
consideration the local planning conditions lease extensions, re-negotiations) on the
for the site they have selected. (massing, project if permission is refused.
height, access, materials etc.) Developer terminates agreement.

Recommencement or abolition of the
Sufficient strength of feeling from third party procurement process.
objections.
Controls Owner
Staged design development, meetings and approvals Maria Wood
Development of a realistic design brief lan Asher
Planning policy lan Asher

Actions Target Date Revised Date

Regular pre planning consultation and meetings with developers 08/05/2009 30/12/2009

Awareness and adherence to planning policy 02/08/2009 30/12/2009

Page 10 of 13



Page 133

Developers unable to meet the requirements of the development brief.

Risk Owner: lan Asher _ 18

Cause Developers are unable to comply with the Consequence Reduction in scope.- size and/or quality.
brief as outlined in the design brief, within Less effective building due to increase in
the budget. staff density resulting in negative feedback

and staff dis-satisfaction.
Abort procurement process.
Reputational damage to CYC.

Controls Owner

Realistic development brief lan Asher

Professional advice to ensure specification is acheivable. lan Asher
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Seek Clarifications on tender submission 16/11/2009 30/12/2009

Page 11 of 13



Page 134

KCR 0018 Impact of an Ageing Population

Corporate Lead Bill Hodson

the key issues.

This is a long term piece of work which has been initiated by a scoping report to CMT. The next stage is to set up
agreed actions for 10/11 and beyond following a workshop with senior managers across the council and an appraisal of

Corporate

Inability to understand and respond to the demands of an Ageing Population

Risk Owner: Graham Terry

Cause If the Ageing Population Review fails to be Consequence
given the necessary priority corporately,
including required resources for it to be
carried out and is not completed by the 31
March 2010 deadline.

Controls

Corporate working group to arrange and oversee review
Actions

Attain resources required to complete review

CLG awareness raising session

Conduct Corporate Review of impact of an ageing population

Increasing social care support costs

Risk Owner: Bill Hodson

Cause If we do not involve older people in the Consequence
design and delivery of services such as
health, social care, housing and other
services and deliver the changes required
to manage demand and create efficiencies/
savings.

Actions

Deliver two major projects within More For York Programme

High 20

We may not understand the extent and
scale of the changes required to be made
to our services to meet the ageing
populations changing demands. This
could lead to reputational damage and
affect our CAA rating, especially if older
people become disengaged with the
council and broader social issues.

Owner

Graham Terry

Target Date Revised Date
31/12/2009

31/01/2010

31/03/2010

High 20

The rising demographic for social care
support preditions show that the costs
could increase to £12m by 2020. This
could happen if the council does not
respond and change the way it delivers its
services. We will loose the opportunity to
have an inclusive design that supports
older people's quality of life in the city.

Target Date Revised Date
31/03/2010

Page 12 of 13



Page 135

KCR 0019 Safeguarding

Corporate Lead Pete Dwyer

Ensuring that our children and young people in the city are safe and protected has to be a key priority for any authority.
This involves not simply ensuring effective interventions into family life but the creation of protective arenas of safety
which for example include safe recruitment practice. The individual, organisational and reputational implications of
ineffective safeguarding practice are acute

Corporate

Child or young person is injured or killed where safeguarding services should or have already
been involved

Risk Owner:  Eoin Rush _ 22

Cause Consequence

Controls Owner
Review and monitoring of referral arrangements Eoin Rush
Safeguarding Children Board Eoin Rush

Inability to retain and support experienced safeguarding practitioners in front line social care
teams

Risk Owner:  Eoin Rush High 18
Cause This can result because the job is becoming Consequence This can result in inexperienced/agency
less attractive. staff being used who don't have the same
level of experience or expertise, or level of
commitment.
Controls Owner
Workforce development programme Eoin Rush

Schools and other childcare settings do not provide arenas of safety

Risk Owner: Eoin Rush High 18
Cause If the Safeguarding Board does not provide Consequence Children and young people may be put at
adequate and sufficient support and advice risk and are not identified and brought to
to these institutions. the attention of social care teams.
Controls Owner
Advice and support provided by the Safeguarding Children Board Eoin Rush
Actions Target Date Revised Date
Create dedicated post to provide support and advice about 31/01/2010

safeguarding issues

Page 13 of 13



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 137

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 139 Agenda ltem 11

Audit and Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director for Resources (Customer Service and Governance)

Audit and Counter Fraud Mid-Term Monitor

Summary

1 This report provides details of the progress made in delivering the
internal audit and counter fraud work plan for 2009/10. Members are
also asked to consider and approve revised Terms of Reference for
Internal Audit.

Background

2 The work of Internal Audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 (as amended) and the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government. In accordance with the Code of
Practice, the 2009/10 Audit and Fraud Plan was approved by the Audit
and Governance Committee on 29 June 2009. The Plan included a
programme of audit reviews and details of planned counter fraud
activities. The total number of planned audit days was 1,420. The
counter fraud activity plan was based on the resources available to the
Fraud Team. The total number of days allocated to counter fraud
activities in 2009/10 was 1,282.

3 It was also recognised that changes might need to be made to the Audit
Plan through the year as a result of new or changed priorities and/or as
new risks were identified. To reflect the new contractual relationship
between the council and Veritau, all proposed variations to the agreed
Audit Plan arising as the result of emerging issues and/or requests from
management are subject to a Change Control process. Where the
variation exceeds 5 days then the change must be authorised by the
Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service and Governance)
who is the client manager for the service. All agreed variations will then
be communicated to the Audit and Governance Committee for
information.

4 The Counter Fraud Activity Plan included details of:

° planned activities, including fraud detection and investigation;
. fraud awareness and training;

. proactive fraud work;



10

Page 140

o joint working with other counter fraud agencies;

. resource allocation.

2009/10 Internal Audit Plan — Progress to Date

Two of the priorities for Veritau are to deliver at least 90% of the Audit
Plan and to ensure that the service continues to operate to recognised
professional standards (as determined by the Code of Practice). These
are the minimum requirements necessary to achieve a good score for
internal control as part of the Use of Resources assessment process.

Internal Audit successfully delivered 94.2% of the 2008/09 Audit Plan.
18% of the 2009/10 Audit Plan had been completed by 30 November
2009. This figure is however based on reports issued and does not take
into account further audit fieldwork which is either complete or in
progress. Based on the current work programme it is anticipated that
the 90% target will be achieved. Details of the audits completed and the
reports issued since the last progress report to this Committee (on 29
June 2009) are given in Annex 1.

As noted in paragraph 3 above, it has been necessary to make a
number of variations to the Audit Plan to accommodate a shortfall in
resources and changes in priorities. Details of the Audit Plan variations
approved by the client manager to date are given in Annex 2.

2009/10 Counter Fraud Activity Plan — Progress to Date

Counter fraud work has been undertaken in accordance with the
approved Plan. Annex 3 provides details of the investigations completed
and provides a summary of the work undertaken. As in previous years,
the majority of the work undertaken relates to the identification and
investigation of suspected fraudulent housing and council tax benefit
claims. However, the team also works jointly with Internal Audit on
internal fraud investigations.

Breaches of Financial Regulations

There have been no significant breaches of the council’s financial
regulations identified during the course of internal audit work in 2009/10
to date. However, a number of relatively minor breaches have been
noted. Details of these breaches are summarised in annex 4.

Developments in Service Delivery - Internal Audit

A number of changes have been made to audit working practices to
ensure consistency in service delivery to both York and North Yorkshire
County Council. These changes are summarised below:



11

12

Page 141

(a) Staff at North Yorkshire have migrated to the Galileo.net working
papers application hosted by CYC. All internal audit staff in Veritau
are therefore now using a single combined database. The
application supports the audit planning process, enables auditors
to document the results of their work and report their findings, and
allows audit recommendations to be tracked. As well as ensuring
consistency the system also improves the availability and quality of
performance and other management information associated with
the delivery of the service.

(b) A revised risk assessment methodology has been adopted for
audit planning purposes. The new methodology is intended to
ensure greater consistency in the assessment of risks across the
council’s systems, services and activities.

(c) A new audit report has been adopted. The new format is designed
to be clear and concise, allowing managers to easily see any
significant issues or key risks which have been identified during the
audit. The new reporting process also places an emphasis on
reaching agreement with management on the measures necessary
to address any control weaknesses found.

(d) New wording has been adopted for the audit opinions and
recommendations. The new wording is designed to reflect the role
of internal audit, which is to provide assurance to management and
those charged with governance. The amended wording is also
intended to ensure greater consistency and be less susceptible to
misinterpretation. Details of the new audit opinions and
recommendations are given in Annex 1.

(e) A revised Customer Satisfaction Survey has been developed to
enable more accurate feedback to be obtained from audit
customers.

Developments in Service Delivery — Counter Fraud

A number of service developments are taking place in respect to counter
fraud. Veritau has recently conducted an exercise using an on-line
survey to assess fraud awareness across the two councils.
Approximately 300 managers in each council were invited to participate
in the exercise. The results of the survey are currently being analysed
but they should help to identify any gaps in the existing counter fraud
arrangements. The outcomes will be reported to a future meeting of this
Committee and will feed into the drafting of the Annual Governance
Statement for 2009/10.

Veritau has also recently purchased a fraud awareness e-learning
application. Once configured, the application will provide:

(@) an efficient and cost effective method of raising awareness of the
risks of fraud and corruption across different staff groups within
both councils.



13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 142

(b) good evidence of proactive counter fraud measures for the Use of
Resources assessment.

Planning has started for the Audit Commission’s next National Fraud
Initiative (NFI) data matching exercise. The intention is to streamline the
process across both councils so as to minimise unnecessary duplication
of effort.

Planning work is also starting on a proactive counter fraud exercise
designed to identify social housing related fraud. The exercise is party
of a wider national exercise being promoted by DCLG. The intention is
to use data interrogation software to support the exercise.

Veritau has recently been awarded the contract to provide benefit fraud
investigation services to Ryedale District Council. The contract provides
the opportunity to build greater resilience and capacity in the existing
counter fraud team, and to deliver efficiencies through economies of
scale and reduced duplication.

Internal Audit Terms of Reference

The CIPFA Code of Practice recommends that the purpose, authority
and responsibility of Internal Audit should be formally defined in terms of
reference which are consistent with the Code. The existing Terms of
Reference (ToR) for Internal Audit were formally approved by this
Committee in April 2007. A number of changes are now required to the
ToR. In particular, the new organisational arrangements for Internal
Audit, following the transfer of audit and counter fraud services to
Veritau Limited on 1 April 2009, need to be recognised. The opportunity
has also been taken to make a number of other relatively minor
amendments to reflect changes in current working practices. The
revised ToR for Internal Audit are attached at annex 5. The revised ToR
have substantially changed and so tracked changes are not shown.

Consultation

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Options

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Analysis

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Corporate Priorities

This report contributes to the council’s overall aims and priorities by
helping to ensure probity, integrity and honesty in everything we do. In

doing so it contributes to the corporate objective of making the council
an Effective Organisation.



21

22

23

Page 143

Implications

There are no implications to this report in relation to:

Finance

Human Resources (HR)
Equalities

Legal

Crime and Disorder
Information Technology (IT)

Property

Risk Management Assessment

The council will fail to properly comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Internal Audit in Local Government if the results of audit work are not
reported to those charged with governance and the Terms of Reference
for Internal Audit are not kept up to date. This in turn would adversely
impact on the council’s Use of Resources assessment score.

Recommendation

Members are asked to:

(@)

(b)

Note the results of the audit and fraud work undertaken to date in
2009/10.

Reason

To enable Members to consider the implications of audit and fraud
findings.

Note the variations to the 2009/10 Audit Plan, approved to date by
the Internal Audit Client Manager (see annex 2).

Reason

To enable Members to consider the delivery of the Internal Audit
Plan.

Consider and approve the updated Internal Audit Terms of
Reference (see annex 5)

Reason

To enable ensure that the council complies with the CIPFA Code of
Practice.



Page 144

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Max Thomas Pauline Stutchfield

Head of Internal Audit Assistant Director (Customer Service and Governance)
Veritau Limited Telephone: 01904 551706

01904 552940

Report Approved Date 7 December 2009

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: Not applicable

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

e 2009/10 Internal Audit Plan
e 2009/10 Counter Fraud Activity Plan

Annexes

Annex 1 — 2009/10 Audits Completed and Reports Issued
Annex 2 — Variations to the 2009/10 Audit Plan

Annex 3 — Counter Fraud Activity

Annex 4 — Summary of Breaches of Financial Regulations
Annex 5 — Terms of Reference for Internal Audit

All




ANNEX 1

2009/10 AUDITS COMPLETED AND REPORTS ISSUED

(A) The following categories of opinion were used for those audit reports issued before 31 July 2009:

Opinion

High Standard
Good
Acceptable

Weak
Not Acceptable

Assessment of Internal Control

Few or no weaknesses

Some weaknesses, but mostly insignificant
A number of weaknesses

A number of weaknesses, some significant.

Major control weaknesses

(B) The following categories of opinion have been used for those audit reports issued after 1 August 2009:

Opinion

High Assurance

Substantial

Moderate

Level of Assurance

Overall, very good management of risk with no significant weaknesses identified. An effective control
environment appears to be in operation.

Overall, good management of risk with few significant weaknesses identified. An effective control
environment is in operation but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified.

Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified. An acceptable
control environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made.

Gt | ebed



Limited

No Assurance

Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major
improvements required before an effective control environment will be in operation.

Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed. A number
of key areas require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse.

(C) Recommendations are made where weaknesses in control have been identified. For recommendations made before 31 July
2009, the following categories have been used:

Priority
1 (High)

2 (Medium)

Definition

Action considered necessary to ensure that the council is not exposed to high or catastrophic risks. For
example significant financial loss, death or injury of council staff or customers, damage to reputation,
disruption to a service or continuity of operations.

Actions may be considered a high priority if the impact of a potential risk is high, even though its likelihood
may be low.

Recommendations that address breaches of legislation or council policies and procedures may also be rated
as a high priority.

Action considered necessary to avoid exposure or reduce exposure to significant risks. For example financial
or other loss.

This will include areas where there are no controls to mitigate significant risks or where amendments are
required to ensure that controls are effective and mitigate the risks to an acceptable level.

ot | ebed



3 (Low)

Action considered necessary to improve controls that are already in place and reasonably effective, although
further improvements are required in order to mitigate risks to an acceptable level.

Recommendations that may result in efficiencies or better value for money will also be included in this

category.

(D) Forrecommendations made after 1 August 2009, the following categories have been used:

Priority
1 (High)

2 (Medium)

Long Definition

Action considered both critical and mandatory to
protect the organisation from exposure to high or
catastrophic risks. For example, death or injury of
staff or customers, significant financial loss or major
disruption to service continuity.

These are fundamental matters relating to factors
critical to the success of the area under review or

which may impact upon the organisation as a whole.

Failure to implement such recommendations may
result in material loss or error or have an adverse
impact upon the organisation’s reputation.

Such recommendations may require the input at
Corporate Director/Assistant Director level and may
result in significant and immediate action to address
the issues raised.

Short Definition — for use in Audit Reports

A fundamental system weakness, which presents
unacceptable risk to the system objectives and
requires urgent attention by management.

Action considered necessary to improve or implement A significant system weakness, whose impact or

system controls so as to ensure an effective control

frequency presents risks to the system objectives,

Ly | 8ebed



Priority

3 (Low)

Long Definition Short Definition — for use in Audit Reports

environment exists to minimise exposure to significant and which needs to be addressed by management.
risks such as financial or other loss.

Such recommendations may require the input at
Head of Service or senior management level and may
result in significantly revised or new controls.

Action considered prudent to improve existing system The system objectives are not exposed to significant
controls to provide an effective control environment in  risk, but the issue merits attention by management.
order to minimise exposure to significant risks such

as financial or other loss.

Such recommendations are usually matters that can
be implemented through line management action and
may result in efficiencies.

(E) Draft Reports Issued

9 draft reports have been issued since 1 June 2009 which have so far not been finalised. The reports are currently with
management for consideration and comments. Once the reports have been finalised, details of the key findings and issues will be
reported to this Committee. The draft reports are categorised as follows:

Opinion

Number

“High Assurance”

2

“Substantial Assurance”

3
“Moderate Assurance” 2
0

“Limited Assurance”

gt | ebed



“No Assurance”

“‘Not given”

(F) Final Reports Issued

The table below shows audit reports finalised since 1 June 2009. In all cases the recommendations made have been accepted by
management, and will be subject to follow up by Internal Audit.

61| abed

Description Date Final Opinion Recommendations Work done / significant weaknesses /
Report issues identified
Issued Total number | Number which are
a ‘high’ priority
Main Accounting 3/9/09 Good 3 0 A risk based audit of the council’s main
System accounting systems. No significant
weaknesses identified.
Recommendations were made to improwv:
the controls for processing changes to
user access levels and the ongoing
monitoring of user access.
Stores and Purchasing 10/11/09 | Acceptable 10 0 The audit reviewed the arrangements

introduced by Neighbourhood Services
since September 2007 as a result of the
new contract with Jewson Limited for the
provision of building materials. A number
of recommendations were made to
improve the controls for checking and
processing delivery notes, returned
goods, invoices and van stocks.




Description

Date Final
Report
Issued

Opinion

Recommendations

Total number

Number which are
a ‘high’ priority

Work done / significant weaknesses /
issues identified

Performance Indicators
and Data Quality

25/11/09

N/A

0

A review of the systems for collecting
performance data. The audit reviewed 24
individual performance indicators to
ensure that information was complete and
accurate. One of the indicators needed to
be amended as a result of the audit. A
number of other changes were
recommended to improve the systems
being used to collect and collate the
relevant data.

Homelessness Spend to
Save Scheme

20/11/09

Limited
Assurance

A review of the systems for authorising
grants and loans to people facing the risk
of being made homeless. The audit was
requested by the directorate.

Improvements were recommended to
authorisation procedures and the
arrangements for determining the funding
available as grants or loans under the
existing system.

High Priority Recommendation
The existing application and authorisation

0G| ebed




Description

Date Final
Report
Issued

Opinion

Recommendations

Total number

Number which are
a ‘high’ priority

Work done / significant weaknesses /
issues identified

documentation for loans and grants
should be made clearer so as to reduce
potential ambiguity. Legal advice should
also be obtained to ensure that the council
can instigate recovery action if necessary.
Management response — agreed and to
be implemented.

Adults Independent

Living

8/10/09

Weak

A review of the arrangements for
monitoring payments made to customers
in receipt of Direct Payments.
Recommendations were made to update
and review standard documentation.
Monitoring by Locality teams also needec
to be improved so as to ensure that
customers are managing the financial
aspects of their care plans properly.

High Priority Recommendation

Standard deadlines needed to be set for
the return of Financial Record forms
(DP2) by customers. Checks should also
be performed to ensure that all DP2 forms
are returned, and that any omissions are
followed up. Management response —

1G| ebed




Description

Date Final
Report
Issued

Opinion

Recommendations

Total number

Number which are
a ‘high’ priority

Work done / significant weaknesses /
issues identified

agreed and to be implemented

Archbishop of York’s CE
Junior School

1/10/09

Substantial
Assurance

A school establishment audit. A number
of recommendations were made to
improve controls in respect of declarations
of interest, the review of policies and the
school’s publication scheme, ordering
procedures and the arrangements for
administering the school fund.
Improvements also needed to be made it
respect of income collection from school
lettings.

Hob Moor Federation
Primary School

26/11/09

Substantial
Assurance

12

A school establishment audit. A number
of recommendations were made to
improve controls in respect of declarations
of interest and the receipt of gifts and
hospitality, the review and update of
policies and the scheme of delegation,
and the arrangements for administering
the school fund. Improvements also
needed to be made in respect of the
administration of school lettings, and with
the maintenance of inventory records.

2G| ebed




Description

Date Final
Report
Issued

Opinion

Recommendations

Total number

Number which are
a ‘high’ priority

Work done / significant weaknesses /
issues identified

York High School

2/6/09

Good

2

0

A school establishment audit.
Improvements were recommended in
respect of declarations of interest and in
the administration of school meals.

Mental Health Services

5/6/09

Good

A risk based audit of the service.
Recommendations were made to improve
the processing of contracts, managemen*
information and the maintenance of
inventory records.

High Priority Recommendation

The administration of crises loans neede:
to be improved to ensure that such loans
are correctly accounted for.

Management response — agreed and
implemented.

£G| abed

Grove House EPH

3/6/09

Good

An establishment audit. A
recommendation was made to address
minor issues in respect of the inventory
records.

Oliver House EPH

3/6/09

Good

An establishment audit. A




Description

Date Final
Report
Issued

Opinion

Recommendations

Total number

Number which are
a ‘high’ priority

Work done / significant weaknesses /
issues identified

recommendation was made to address
minor issues in respect of the inventory
records.

Morrell House EMI

3/6/09

Good

An establishment audit. A
recommendation was made to address
minor issues in respect of the inventory
records.

Oakhaven EPH

3/6/09

Good

An establishment audit.
Recommendations were made to addres
minor issues in respect of the inventory
and for administering death records.

G| ebed

Osbalwick Primary
School

9/7/09

Good

A school establishment audit. A number
of recommendations were made to
improve controls in respect of declarations
of interest, ordering procedures and the
arrangements for administering the school
fund. Improvements also needed to be
made in respect of the inventory records.

Contract Audit —
Peasholme Hostel

24/11/09

Acceptable

A review of the arrangements to let and
manage the contract for the construction
of the new hostel. Recommendations




Description

Date Final
Report
Issued

Opinion

Recommendations

Total number

Number which are
a ‘high’ priority

Work done / significant weaknesses /
issues identified

were made about the future financial
vetting and risk assessment of potential
contractors. Improvements were also
recommended in respect of contract
variations.

Contract Audit — Moor
Lane Roundabout

12/10/09

Good

A review of the arrangements to let and
manage the contract for the construction
of the new roundabout. A
recommendation was made to address
minor issues in respect of document
retention

Contract Audit — Gas
Maintenance

5/10/09

Good

A review of the arrangements to let and
manage the heating renewal and
replacement contract. Recommendations
were made about document retention, the
agreement of additional schedule of rates
items and the checking of invoiced costs.

GG abed

(G) Other Work Completed since 1 June 2009

. Ongoing support and advice to departments across the council on control issues, and support in relation to specific
projects eg new financial management system and void cleaning



Review of progress made by management to implement previously agreed audit recommendations — see separate
report on this agenda

Review of progress made by service departments to address Audit Commission recommendations

Chargeable work including grant claim audits (Scambusters Grant)

Four internal investigations in respect of potential probity issues. Two of these investigations are ongoing whilst the
other two have resulted in management taking action to improve processes.

9G| ebed



ANNEX 2
VARIATIONS TO THE 2009/10 AUDIT PLAN

Additions to the Plan are considered where;

Specific requests are received from the S151 Officer which are necessary for him to discharge his statutory responsibilities.
New or previously unidentified risks result in changes to the Strategic Audit Plan priorities

Significant changes in legislation, systems or service delivery arrangements occur which have an impact on audit priorities
Requests are received from customers to audit specific services, systems or activities usually as a result of weaknesses in
controls or processes being identified by management

o Urgent or otherwise unplanned work arises as a result of investigations into fraud and other wrongdoing identifying potential
control risks

Additions to the Audit Plan are only be made if the proposed work is considered to be of a higher priority than work already
planned, the change can be accommodated within the existing resource constraints and the change has been agreed by the Head
of Internal Audit.

Audits are deleted from the Plan or delayed until later years where;

o specific requests are received from the S151 Officer or the audit customer and the grounds for such a request are considered
to be reasonable

o the initial reason for inclusion in the Audit Plan no longer exists

. it is necessary to vary the plan to balance overall resources.

To reflect the new contractual relationship between the council and Veritau, all proposed variations to the agreed Audit Plan arising
as the result of emerging issues and/or requests from directorates will be subject to a Change Control process. Where the variation
exceeds 5 days then the change must be authorised by the Assistant Director (Customer Service and Governance) as the client
Manager for internal audit. Any significant variations will then be communicated to the Audit and Governance Committee for
information.

/S| abed



2009/10 Audit Plan Variations

The following variations to the Plan have been approved by the Assistant Director (Customer Service and Governance):

Audit Days Justification For Change

Deletions from the

Audit Plan

Waste PFI project -10 CYC can gain assurance from the joint audit review work being undertaken by the North
Yorkshire team.

Building Repairs and -15 To be deferred to 2010/11. The delay is necessary due to the ongoing review of the

Maintenance housing repairs partnership. There are still 15 days in the Audit Plan under HASS to

(Neighbourhood provide advice and challenge to the review.

Services)

Highways Regulations -15 To be deferred to 2010/11, in order to balance the audit plan to available resources..

Project Management -15 To be deferred to 2010/11. The council's capacity to support this audit is limited due to the
number of major projects currently underway, including the More for York programme, the
Accommodation project and FMS replacement project.

Adult and Community -12 To be deferred to 2010/11, in order to balance the audit plan to available resources..

Education

Risk Management -10 To be deferred to 2010/11, in order to balance the audit plan to available resources..

Total

-77

8G| ebed



COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY 2009/10

(A) The table below shows the total numbers of investigations completed, sanctions applied, fraudulent overpayments identified

ANNEX 3

by the counter fraud team to date. The table also shows performance against agreed targets (as at 30/11/09):

2009/10 Actual to 2009/10 Target 2008/09 Actual
date
Number of Benefit Fraud referrals received (excluding HBMS). 268 450 referrals to be 433
The target is designed to promote fraud awareness and encourage people to received
report suspected fraud.
% of referrals which are investigated (excluding HBMS). The target 53% 60% of referrals 50.5%
is designed to measure the quality of referrals received and the capacity of the investigated
counter fraud team to investigate cases.
% of investigations completed which result in a positive outcome 38% 25% of those Note 1
(benefit stopped or amended, sanction or prosecution). The target is cases which are
designed to measure the effectiveness of counter fraud activity investigated to
result in a positive
outcome
Value of fraudulent overpayments identified. The target is designed to £250k £300k of £304k
measure the effectiveness of counter fraud activity overpayments to
be identified
Number of investigations completed 203 N/A 317
Number of sanctions / prosecutions 29 N/A 55

Note 1 - these are new performance targets for 2009/10. The corresponding data for 2008/09 is not available for this indicator.

6G| ebed



(B) The relevant caseload figures for the period are:

As at 1/4/09 As at 30/11/09

Awaiting allocation

52 50

Under investigation

201 147

(C) Other counter fraud activity completed during 2009/10 to date:

Activity

Work Completed or in Progress

Fraud Awareness

Work has included:

e the continuing provision of fraud awareness training to housing and council tax benefit staff
e ongoing publication of successful prosecutions through the local press

As in previous years a targeted benefit fraud publicity campaign will be undertaken in February
and March.

Advice and Guidance

Ongoing advice and guidance is provided on the design and implementation of measures to
prevent and detect fraud and other financial irregularities. Feedback is given to relevant staff on
all cases investigated. This feedback is intended to encourage more referrals and also includes
recommendations to change or improve systems and procedures so as to prevent or detect fraud
in the future, where necessary.

Data Matching

Audit Commission National Fraud Initiative (NFI): Work is continuing to investigate cases
identified in the last NFI exercise. We have recently provided the Audit Commission with council
tax and housing data to assist in further specific NFI exercises to identify people suspected of
falsely claiming single person discounts or who may have either abandoned or sublet their

091 8bed



Activity

Work Completed or in Progress

properties.

Housing Benefit Matching Service (HBMS): The counter fraud team has continued to investigate
potential benefit fraud cases identified by the DWP through the HBMS data match process. The
council has received 463 HBMS referrals to date this year off which 35 have been passed for
investigation.

Joint  Working  with
Agencies

Other

The service has continued to work closely with the DWP in the investigation of benefit fraud — a
total of 17 joint council and DWP cases have resulted in a prosecution or sanction to date. A
further 56 cases are currently the subject of a joint investigation. The team has also continued to
develop its relationships with other council departments and external agencies. This includes
information sharing and support on joint cases with Housing and Trading Standards, and
involvement with police led search and arrest operations.

Financial Investigations

All investigations are monitored to assess their suitability for financial investigation and asset
recovery. Two financial investigations are currently ongoing.

Proactive Work

The counter fraud team has scheduled a proactive data matching exercise in the new year
targeting claimants who have not declared seasonal work.

Other

The counter fraud team will be participating in the government’s national initiative to target
housing related fraud. The initiative will also involve joint working with other social landlords in
the area.

19| abed



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163

ANNEX 4

SUMMARY OF BREACHES OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS IDENTIFIED
DURING INTERNAL AUDIT WORK COMPLETED IN THE PERIOD

Description of Breach Instances
Debts written off without proper authorisation 1
Inventory records not properly maintained or incomplete 8
Inadequate checks of invoices prior to payment 1
VAT not correctly accounted for on income or expenditure 5
Waiver not obtained prior to selecting a quotation which 1
was not the lowest

Purchase orders not completed by staff when ordering 3
goods and services

Receipts not issued for income received 1
Income not banked promptly 2
Cheques pre-signed by authorised cheque signatory 1




Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165

ANNEX 5
Internal Audit
YORK Terms of Reference

Updated December 2009
Introduction

There is a statutory duty on the council to maintain an adequate and
effective system of internal audit, in accordance with proper practices.
Currently, proper practice is represented by the Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006 (the
Code).

The Code defines internal audit as:

“an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion
to the organisation on the control environment’, by evaluating its
effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively
examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control
environment as a contribution to the proper economic, efficient and
effective use of resources”

These terms of reference define how internal audit at council will be
provided further to the requirements of the Code. The terms of reference
will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Head of Internal Audit. Any
recommendations for change will be made to the Audit and Governance
Committee for approval.

The terms of reference should be read in the context of the wider legal and
policy framework setting out the requirements for the council to maintain
an effective system of internal audit, including the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 (as amended), the Code of Practice, and the council’s
constitution and financial regulations.

' The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk management, and internal

control.



Page 166

Responsibilities and Objectives

The overall objective of internal audit is to provide an independent and
objective opinion on the control environment operating at the council. In
doing this, its responsibilities include (but are not limited to):

(i) providing assurance to Members, chief officers and the general
public on the effective operation of governance arrangements and
the internal control environment operating at the council

(i) objectively examining, evaluating and reporting on the probity,
legality and value for money of the council’s arrangements for
service delivery

(i)  reviewing the council’s financial arrangements to ensure that proper
accounting controls, systems and procedures are maintained and,
where necessary, for making recommendations for improvement

(iv)  helping to secure the effective operation of proper controls to
minimise the risk of loss, the inefficient use of resources and the
potential for fraud and other wrong doing

(v) acting as a means of deterring all fraudulent activity, corruption and
other wrong doing including money laundering, conducting
investigations into matters referred to it for investigation by
management or officers and members of the public and reporting its
findings to directors and Members as appropriate for action

(vi) advising the council on relevant counter fraud and corruption
policies and measures, for example the counter fraud and
corruption policy.

The service will be provided in accordance with proper practice, and to
appropriate standards, as defined by the Code of Practice, council policy,
and any other relevant legal or professional standards or guidance.

Organisational Independence

It is the responsibility of directors and service managers to maintain
effective systems of internal control and governance. Auditors will have no
responsibility for the implementation or operation of systems of control and
will remain sufficiently independent of the activities audited to enable them
to exercise objective professional judgement.



Page 167

8 Audit advice and recommendations will be given without prejudice to the
rights of Internal Audit to review and make further recommendations on
relevant policies, procedures, controls and operations at a later date.

Accountability, Reporting Lines, and Relationships

9 Internal audit services are provided under contract to the council by
Veritau Limited. The company is a separate legal entity. Staff undertaking
internal audit work are employed by Veritau or are seconded to the
company from the council. The Assistant Director of Resources (Customer
Service and Governance) acts as client officer for the contract, and is
responsible for overall monitoring of the service and liaison with the
company on all audit related matters.

10 In its role in providing an independent assurance function, Veritau has
direct access to Members and senior officers and can report uncensored
to them as considered necessary. Such reports may be made to:

e the Council, Executive, or any Committee (including the Audit &
Governance Committee)

e the Chief Executive

e the Director of Resources (s151 officer)

e the Monitoring Officer

e other Directors, Assistant Directors and senior managers.

11 The Director of Resources (as s151 officer) has a statutory responsibility
for ensuring that the council has an effective system of internal audit in
place. In recognition of this, a formal protocol has been drawn up setting
out the relationship between internal audit and the Director of Resources.
This is included at Appendix 1

10 The Head of Internal Audit will report independently to the Audit and
Governance Committee® on proposed allocations of audit resources, any
significant risks and control issues identified through audit work, and will
provide his/her opinion on the council’s control environment to the
Committee on an annual basis. [If necessary, the Head of Internal Audit
and the Audit and Governance Committee may meet privately in
accordance with the terms of the Privacy and Confidentiality policy.

% The committee is charged with overall responsibility for governance for the Council.



Page 168

11 The Audit and Governance Committee will oversee (but not direct) the
work of Internal Audit. This includes commenting on the scope of internal
audit work and approving the annual audit plan. The Committee will also
protect and promote the independence and rights of Internal Audit to
enable it to conduct its work and report on its findings without fear or
favour®.

Scope

12 The scope of internal audit work will encompass the council’s entire
control environment, comprising its systems of governance, risk
management, and control.

13 The scope of audit work also extends to services provided through
partnership arrangements, irrespective of what legal standing or particular
form these may take. The Head of Internal Audit, in consultation with all
relevant parties and taking account of audit risk assessment processes,
will determine what work will be carried out by Veritau, and what reliance
may be placed on the work of other auditors, to inform his/her overall
opinion on the council’s control environment.

Annual Report

14 On an annual basis the Head of Internal Audit will provide a written report
to the Audit and Governance Committee. The report will contribute to the
council’s overall review of the effectiveness of its systems of internal
control and to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. The
annual report will set out the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s control environment, along
with:

(i) any qualifications to his/her opinion, together with the reasons for
those qualifications

(i) a summary of audit work from which his/her opinion is derived,
including any reliance placed on the work of other assurance
bodies

(i)  any particular control weakness judged to be relevant to the
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement

(iv)  an overall summary of internal audit performance

® The relationship between Internal Audit and the Audit and Governance Committee is set out in
more detail in Appendix 2.



15

16

17

18

19

Page 169

(v) a comment on compliance with the Code of Practice for Internal
Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom.

Fraud and Consultancy Services

The primary role of Internal Audit is to independently report on the
council’s control environment. However, the service is also required to
undertake fraud investigation and other consultancy work as a contribution
to the opinion that Internal Audit provides on the control environment, and
to best utilise the professional skills of auditors who are able to carry out
such reviews in a systematic and disciplined way.

The prevention and detection of fraud and corruption is the responsibility
of directors and service managers. However, all instances of suspected
fraud and corruption must be notified to the Head of Internal Audit, who
will decide on the course of action to be taken in consultation with relevant
service managers and/or other advisors (for example Human Resources).
Where appropriate, cases of suspected fraud or corruption will be
investigated by Veritau.

Where appropriate, Veritau may carry out other consultancy related work
for example specific studies to assess the economy, efficiency, and
effectiveness of elements of service provision. The scope of such work will
be determined in conjunction with service managers. Such work will only
be carried out where there are sufficient resources and skills within
Veritau and where the work to be done does not compromise the
assurance role or the independence of the service provided.

Resourcing

As part of the annual planning process, the Head of Internal Audit will
review the resources available to Internal Audit, to ensure that they are
sufficient to meet the requirements on the service to provide an opinion on
the council’s control environment. Where resources are judged to be
insufficient, recommendations to address the shortfall will be made to the
Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service and Governance) and
to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Rights of Access

To enable it to fulfil its responsibilities, the council gives staff employed by
Veritau the authority to:

(i) enter all council premises or land, at any reasonable time



20

Page 170

(i) have access to all data, records, documents, correspondence, or
other information - in whatever form - relating to the activities of the
council

(iii)  have access to any assets of the council and to require any
employee of the council to produce any assets under their control

(iv)  be able to require from any employee or Member of the council any
necessary information or explanation necessary for the puposes of
audit.

Directors and service managers are responsible for ensuring that the
rights of Veritau staff to access premises, records, and personnel are
preserved, including where services are provided through partnership
arrangements, contracts or other means.



Page 171

Appendix 1 - City of York Council Internal Audit Terms of Reference
Protocol for the Relationship Between the Director of Resources (the s151

Officer) and Internal Audit

In recognition of the statutory duties of the council’s Director of Resources
(DOR) as s151 officer and guidance from CIPFA, the following protocol
has been adopted at York to form the basis for a sound and effective
working relationship between the DOR and Internal Audit.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Head of Internal Audit (HIA) will seek to maintain a positive and
effective working relationship with the council’s designated DOR.

Internal Audit will review the effectiveness of the council’s systems
of control, governance, and risk management and report its findings
to the DOR.

The DOR will be asked to comment on those elements of Internal
Audit’'s programme of work that relate to the discharge of his/her
statutory duties. In devising the annual audit plan and in carrying
out internal audit work, the HIA will give full regard to the comments
of the DOR.

The HIA will notify the DOR of any matter that in the HIA’s
professional judgement may have implications for the DOR in
discharging his/her s151 responsibilities.

The DOR will notify the HIA of any concerns that he/she may have
about control, governance, or suspected fraud and corruption and
may require Internal Audit to undertake further investigation or
review.

The HIA will be responsible for ensuring that internal audit is
provided in accordance with the standards set out in the CIPFA
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the
United Kingdom.

If the HIA identifies any shortfall in resources which may jeopardise
his/her ability to provide an opinion on the council’'s control
environment, then he/she will be entitled to make representations to
the DOR.

The DOR will protect and promote the independence and rights of
Internal Audit to enable it to conduct its work effectively and to
report on its findings without fear or favour.



Page 172

Appendix 2 - City of York Council Internal Audit Terms of Reference—
Protocol for the Relationship Between the Audit and Governance
Committee and Internal Audit

Because of the shared interests of the Audit and Governance Committee
and Internal Audit it is essential that there is an effective working
relationship between them. In view of this, this protocol sets out the
responsibilities of the Committee in relation to internal audit, and the
responsibilities of Veritau Limited (the council’s internal audit provider).

The Audit and Governance Committee will seek to:

(i) raise awareness of key aspects of good governance across the
organisation, including the role of internal audit and risk
management

(i) ensure that adequate resources are provided by the council so as
to ensure that Internal Audit can satisfactorily discharge its
responsibilities

(iif)  protect and promote the independence and rights of Internal Audit
to conduct its work properly and to report on its findings without fear
or favour.

Specific responsibilities in respect of internal audit include the following.

(i) Consideration of the annual report and opinion of the Head of
Internal Audit (HIA) on the council’s control environment.

(i) Consideration of other specific reports detailing the outcomes of
internal audit work.

(i)  Consideration of reports dealing with the performance of Veritau as
internal audit provider.

(iv)  Consideration of reports on the implementation of agreed
recommendations or those outstanding recommendations
escalated to the Committee in accordance with the approved
Escalation Policy.

(v)  Approval (but not direction) of the annual Internal Audit Plan.

In relation to the Audit and Governance Committee, the HIA will:

(i) attend its meetings and contribute to the agenda

(i) ensure that overall Internal Audit objectives, workplans, and
performance are communicated to, and understood by, the
Committee



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Page 173

provide an annual summary of Internal Audit work, and an opinion
on the council's control environment, including details of
unmitigated risks or other issues that need to be considered by the
committee

establish whether anything arising from the work of the Committee
requires consideration of the need to change the audit plan or vice
versa

highlight any shortfall in the resources available to Internal Audit
and to make recommendations to address these to the committee

report any significant risks or control issues identified through audit
work which the HIA feels necessary to specifically report to the
Committee.

The Head of Internal Audit will have direct access to the chair of the Audit
and Governance Committee and may meet privately with the chair or the
Committee as necessary, in accordance with the terms of the Privacy and
Confidentiality Policy.



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 175 Agenda ltem 12

COUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service and Governance)

Follow Up of Audit Recommendations

Summary

1. This report sets out the progress made by departments in implementing those
agreed audit recommendations which were due to have been implemented by
31 October 2009.

Background

2. In June 2006, the Audit and Governance Committee approved the process to
be followed in reviewing and reporting on progress made by service
departments in implementing agreed internal audit recommendations. In
accordance with this process, reports are brought to this Committee every six
months summarising the progress which has been made by management,
together with details of any outstanding recommendations that require referral
to the Committee for further action. This report is based on follow up work
undertaken by Veritau. All recommendations are reviewed once their agreed
implementation date has passed. The review is carried out using a combination
of questionnaires completed by departments, risk assessments, and by further
detailed examination by Internal Audit where appropriate.

3. At the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 31 March 2009, it was
also agreed that Internal Audit would review the progress made by
management to implement recommendations raised by the external auditor.
The results of this review would be included as part of this regular follow up
report.

Consultation

4. Details of the findings of follow up work have been discussed with the relevant
service managers and chief officers.

Follow Up of Internal Audit Recommendations

5. A total of 157 recommendations were followed up as part of this review. A
summary of the priority of these recommendations is included in figure 1,
below.



Page 176

Figure 1: Recommendations followed up as part of the current review
Priority of No. of Recommendations
Recommendations Followed Up
1 (High) 16
2 (Medium) 37
3 (Low) 104
Total 157

Figure 2 below provides an analysis of the recommendations which have been
followed up, by Directorate.

Figure 2: Recommendations followed up by Directorate

Recommendations | Executives | Strategy Services

No. of Recommendations Followed Up by Directorate
Priority of Chief City HASS LCCS Resources | Neighbourhood

1 (High) 0 8 7 0

1

2 (Medium)

9 14 12

0
3 (Low) 0 7 6 89
Total 0

A NN |O

0
0
24 27 101 1

10.

Of the 157 recommendations, 11 (7%) had been superseded (for example by
business developments or because of the cessation of service). Of the
remaining recommendations, 133 (84.7%) had been satisfactorily
implemented.

In one case (0.6%), the recommendation had not been implemented fully. This
issue is being followed up as part of the current audit of the service area.

In a further 12 cases (7.6%), the recommendation had not been implemented.
In each case an explanation for the delay in implementing the recommendation
was sought. The reasons given by management for the delays were
considered to be satisfactory for all the outstanding recommendations (e.g.
unexpected difficulties being encountered or implementation being dependent
on new systems). Revised implementation deadlines have now been agreed
in each case. These will be followed up again after the revised deadline, and if
necessary will proceed to the approved escalation procedure.

Follow Up of Audit Commission Recommendations
Grant Claim Certification report

The Audit Commission report on Grant Claim Certification was presented to
this Committee on 21 September 2009. Members raised concerns about the
delays in the submission of the Sure Start grant claim, the poor quality of some
working papers and sought assurance that the recommendations agreed in the
action plan had now been implemented by management.



Page 177

11. In response to this request, the following response was provided to Internal
Audit by the council’s Technical Finance Manager:

The delays in the submission of the Sure Start grant claim has been due to
the lack of clarity regarding the submission dates for the Sure Start grant over
the last few years, with differing deadlines being circulated by both the DCSF
and the AC at various times. LCCS have worked to the deadlines within the
Memorandum of Grant as confirmed by the DCSF. The due date for
submission of the claim in 2006/07 was 31 July and in 2007/08 was 30 June
(not 31 May). Therefore the 2006/07 claim was actually 26 days early (not 35
days late as stated by the Audit Commission) and the 2007/08 claim 82 days
late (not 112). For 2008/09, the submission date was brought forward to 31
May but LCCS were not aware of this in sufficient time and the claim was
submitted on 22 June (22 days late but earlier than the previous year's
deadline). The delay in previous years was as a result of the tight time
constraints during this period as a result of the work required for Closure of
Accounts, the very complex nature of the grant claim itself and the range of
services involved in the claim (including several CYC services, children's
centres and schools).

Members may wish to note that the additional work undertaken in 2007/08,
that delayed the submission of the claim, ultimately enabled an additional
£60k of expenditure to be claimed by the council that would otherwise have
had to be foregone. The timing of the 2007/08 Audit Commission report
which has highlighted this issue will be taken on board by LCCS who will
ensure that the standard of the working papers and the timeliness of the
return will be in the required parameters for the completion of the 2009/10
claim in May 2010.

The recommendations of the Audit Commission report for 2007/08 grant
claims was passed to Finance Managers when it was produced in June 2009.
However, due to the timing of the report, 6 out of the 10 grant claims for
2008/09 had already been received by the Audit Commission before the
report was available. Out of the 10 grant claims to be audited in 2008/09 8
were received by the audit commission on time, the sure start grant claim (as
mentioned above) was 22 days delayed and NNDR grant claim 6 days.

Finance Managers have confirmed that they are in agreement to the
recommendations the Audit Commission have made in Appendix 5 of their
report and will take these on board for 2009/10 completion. In addition
Appendix 4 - the pre-audit working paper checklist - has been highlighted to
Finance Managers for best practice use to ensure the quality of working
papers is adhered to by all personnel completing grant claim forms. In future
all grant claims will be sent to Corporate Finance to ensure returns are sent
to the Audit Commission in a timely manner.

12. There were no other specific recommendations made by the external auditor
which required follow up during the period under review.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 178

Conclusions

The follow up testing undertaken by Internal Audit confirms that in general,
good progress has been made by directorates to rectify the weaknesses in
control identified in previous audit reports. There are still some areas where
work is required to address the recommendations made. This is an ongoing
process and therefore progress in implementing these recommendations will
be monitored, and reported as required through the escalation procedure.
There are no specific issues that need to be brought to the attention of the
Audit and Governance Committee at this time.

Options

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Analysis

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Corporate Priorities

This report contributes to the council’s overall aims and priorities by helping to
ensure probity, integrity and honesty in everything we do. In doing so it
contributes to the corporate objective of making the council an Effective
Organisation.

Implications

The implications are:

¢ Financial — there are no financial implications to this report.

¢ Human Resources (HR) — there are no HR implications to this report.

e Equalities — there are no equalities implications to this report.

e Legal —there are no legal implications to this report.

e Crime and Disorder — there are no crime and disorder implications to this
report.

¢ Information Technology (IT) — there are no IT implications to this report.

e Property — there are no property implications to this report.

Risk Management

The council will fail to properly comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice for

Internal Audit in Local Government if it fails to follow up on audit
recommendations and report progress to the appropriate officers and



Page 179

Members. This in turn would adversely impact on the council's Use of
Resources assessment score.

Recommendations

19. Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are asked to:

consider the progress made by management in implementing agreed
internal audit recommendations as reported above (paragraphs 5 —9).

Reason

To enable Members to fulfil their role in assessing the adequacy of the
council’s internal control environment.

consider the progress made by management in implementing
recommendations arising from Audit Commission reports received in the
period (see paragraphs 10 - 12).

Reason

To enable Members to fulfil their role in assessing the adequacy of the
council’s internal control environment.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Max Thomas Pauline Stuchfield
Head of Internal Audit Assistant Director (Audit & Risk Management)
Veritau Limited Telephone: 01904 551706
01904 552940
Report Approved v Date 7 December 2009
Specialist Implications Officers
Not applicable
Wards Affected: Not applicable All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

None

Annexes

None



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 181 Agenda ltem 13

COUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service & Governance)
and the Interim Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services

Review of the Audit & Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference (Articles
& Functions)

Summary

1. This paper asks Audit & Governance members to consider changes to the
Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) as contained in the council's
Constitution (described as Articles and Functions) and shown in Annex A. If
agreed the changes will be forwarded to full Council for final approval. Council
has already approved the Committee’s recommendation for an independent
adviser as discussed at the meeting of this committee on 21 September 20009.
These changes brings the Committee’s operation in line with best practice set
down by CIPFA and the Audit Commission. The Articles & Functions are
contained in the annex to this report with the additions and deletions clearly
shown. Most of the recommended changes are minor, although there is one
major proposed change which is to remove amendment of the Constitution
from Audit and Governance Committee’s terms of reference.

Background

2. The Committee has specific responsibilities under the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003, (as amended) for producing a Statement on the System of
Internal Control within the Council. The Chartered Institute for Public Finance &
Accountancy (CIPFA) has produced best practice guidance on audit
committees to support this responsibility.

3. Under the Comprehensive Area Assessment, in the Organisational
Assessment (Use of Resources Key Lines of Enquiry), a * performing well’ local
authority will have an audit committee which:

‘is balanced in membership, objective, independent and knowledgeable. The
audit committee can demonstrate the positive impact of its work through
providing effective challenge across the organisation. This includes providing
assurance on the council’s arrangements for:

e riSk management;

e maintaining effective internal control; and



Page 182

e reporting on financial and other performance.

The audit committee can demonstrate it is effectively monitoring progress
against any actions to address significant internal control concerns. This
includes taking appropriate action to address issues highlighted in internal and
external audit reports and other inspectorate reports. The audit committee
ensures it is aware of the work undertaken by other committees, for example
the scrutiny committee, so it can take account of any significant internal control
issues.”

It is with these ‘Level 3’ requirements in mind that the Articles and Functions of
the Committee have been reviewed.

Recommended Changes

The amendment of paragraph 1.1 of Article 9 relates to the Council decision
made on 15 October 2009, to approve the appointment of an independent
advisor to the Committee. A person specification for this role is being
constructed and a recruitment plan will be discussed with the Chair in time for
the start of the 20010/11 municipal year.

Further minor amendments reflect that the Assistant Director of Resources
(Customer Service & Governance) no longer is the Chief Internal Auditor for
the council, in producing the Annual Internal Audit Plans, Reports and related
annual opinion. This is now delegated to the Head of Internal Audit who
manages the shared internal audit provider, Veritau Ltd.

Members are asked to consider a more significant change to the role and
responsibilities of the committee in terms of its responsibility to recommend
changes to the Constitution to Council as prescribed in paragraph 20. The
paragraph has previously been highlighted as unclear(at the meeting of the
Committee on 21 September 2009) and as a minimum should be clarified.

Audit Commission and CIPFA guidance referred to in paragraphs 2 and 3
above defines an audit committee’s role which is to assess the council’s
internal control system objectively and independently The responsibility in
relation to all changes to the Constitution, tends to add volume to the agenda
and experience suggests that considerable debate takes place, which can
detract the committee from its core business and its ‘independent’ status.

To bring the terms of reference in line with best and recommended practice,
the proposal therefore is that the constitutional elements of the Audit and
Governance Committee is transferred to the Staffing & Urgency Committee
which has senior member and proportionate representation. The Audit &
Governance Committee would retain responsibility for recommending to
Council amendments to Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules and
changes to the Policy Framework which relates to the Committee’s functions
such as Risk Management Policy & Strategy.



Page 183

10. Whether this proposal is approved or rejected:

the Audit & Governance Committee would still have a contribution to make
in respect of any proposed changes to a number of Codes, Protocols and
Procedures that affect corporate governance such as those contained in
paragraphs 12 and 16 in the annex (for example Financial Regulations,
Contract Procedure Rules, risk and fraud-related policies).

The chosen Committee would have the authority to:

‘consider proposals to change the council's constitution referred to it
by the Executive and officers and where it agrees that amendments to
the Constitution are required, to make recommendations to Council as
appropriate.’ This would be the replacement for paragraph 20 at Annex A.
The intention of this redrafting is to avoid a situation where an individual
member can make a recommendation direct to Council without there being
any consideration of the impact of the proposed change. Members are
under a duty to act on the advice of the s151 and Monitoring Officer and it
is important that in something as fundamental to the governance of the
Council as the Constitution that changes are not made without due
consideration of the impact

Consultation

11.

Options

The advice in this report is partly based on Audit Commission/CIPFA guidance
as well as officer experience elsewhere where such moves have contributed to
the effectiveness, focus and independence of the audit committee. A short
survey of audit committee roles and responsibilities was conducted through
professional networks and the results shown in Annex B.

12. Members can choose to recommend to full Council to accept/reject any of the

individual changes or proposals.

Analysis

13. Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Corporate Priorities

14. This report contributes to the overall effectiveness of the council’s governance
and assurance arrangements contributing to an ‘Effective Organisation’ and
seeks to further improve the system of internal control in line with professional
audit best practice

Implications

15.

(a) Financial - There are no implications



16.

17.

Page 184

(b) Human Resources (HR) - There are no implications

(c) Equalities - There are no implications

(d) Legal - Legal implications have been included in the report
(e) Crime and Disorder - There are no implications

(f) Information Technology (IT) - There are no implications

(g) Property - There are no implications

Risk Management

In having its Audit & Governance Committee continue to deal with
constitutional amendments, the council may not be seen to have in place
adequate independent scrutiny of its internal control environment and
governance arrangements. It will also fail to properly follow best practice
requirements, and its Use of Resources score in future CAA assessments
could be adversely affected.

Recommendations

(@)

That Members agree to recommend to Council the amendment to Article 9
in paragraphs 5 and 6 above and that the Interim Head of Civic Democratic
and Legal services is delegated to make the necessary drafting changes.

Reason
To ensure the Committee’s Articles and Functions properly and accurately
reflect its responsibilities, and those specifically delegated by Council.

That Members consider whether to recommend to Council that the
Constitution is amended to:

i) transfer responsibility for amending the Constitution from Audit and
Governance to Staffing and Urgency Committee.

i) For Audit and Governance to retain responsibility for proposing
amendments to Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules and and
changes to the Policy Framework which relates to the Committee’s
functions such as the Risk Management Policy & Strategy, and that the
Interim Head of Civic Democratic and Legal services is delegated to make
the necessary drafting changes.

Reason
To ensure that the function of the Committee reflects and meet best
practice and professional requirements.



Page 185

(c) that whether or not members agree to recommend this change, they
agree to amend the existing paragraph 20 of the current terms of
reference of Audit & Governance Committee to read: ‘consider
proposals to change the council's constitution referred to it by
the Executive and officers and where it agrees that amendments
to the Constitution are required, to make recommendations to
Council as appropriate.” If members agree to recommend the
change in responsibility, this change would transfer to the terms of
reference to the Staffing and Urgency Committee.

Reason
To remove the current ambiguity in the interpretation of this paragraph

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Pauline Stuchfield lan Floyd
Assistant Director (Customer Service Director of Resources
& Governance) Telephone: 01904 551100
Telephone: 01904 551706
Report Approved Date 11 December 2009
Alison Lowton
Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal \

Services
Telephone: 01904 551004

Specialist Implications Officers
Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services

Wards Affected: Not applicable All I:l

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:
Use of Resources 2009/10 — Auditors Guidance (Audit Commission)

Annexes
Annex A - Extract from Constitution Parts 2 and 3C (amended)
Annex B — Audit Committee Remit at Other Councils



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 187

Annex A

Pt 2 Articles of the Constitution(Extract)

ARTICLE 9 - THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

1

Composition

1.1 The Council will establish an Audit & Governance Committee

2

composed of seven Councillors on a proportionate basis. The Chair of
Audit & Governance Committee may not be an Executive or Shadow
Executive Member. The Committee will be supported by an
appropriately skilled and experienced external independent advisor in
a non-voting capacity.

General Role

2.1 The Audit & Governance Committee is charged with the overall

responsibility for governance and will seek to:

(a) ensure the probity, propriety and lawfulness of all activities and
transactions effected in the name of the Council;

(b) promote value for money in the use of resources;

(c) help to raise awareness of key aspects of good governance across
the organisation, including the role of audit, risk management and
effective procurement;

(d) ensure the Council has sufficiently invested in the internal and
external audit functions in accordance with legislative requirements
on the Council to do so;

(e) protect and promote the independence and rights of both the
internal and external audit functions to conduct their work and report on
their findings without fear or favour;

(f) liaise as necessary with the Standards Committee on any matter
that may be of common concern to both, principally in relation to any
matter arising in relation to ethics and/or conduct.



Page 188

Pt 3C Responsibility for Functions (Extract)
8.1 The functions of the Audit & Governance Committee are:
Audit

1. To consider the annual report and opinion of the Assistant

BirectorHead of Internal Audit {Customer-Service-&Governrance)
including a summary of internal ard-external-audit activity (actual

and proposed in the relevant accounting period) and the level of
assurance that can be given over the corporate governance
arrangements at the Council and to advise the Executive
accordingly.

2. To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as
scheduled in the forward plan for the Committee or otherwise
requested by Members.

3. To consider reports dealing with the management and performance
of the-lnternal-and-External Auditfunctions and the Internal Audit

provider.

4. To consider reports from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations
not implemented within agreed timescales.

5. To consider the action plan arising from the Annual Letter of the
External Auditor. With respect to the Annual Letter being first
considered and accepted by the Executive.

6. To consider all other relevant reports from the District-External |
Auditor as scheduled in the forward plan for the Committee as
agreed with the External Auditor or otherwise requested by
Members.

7. To comment on the scope and depth of External Audit work and
ensure it provides value for money.

8. To liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the
Council’s External Audit body.

9. To approve the Annual Plans of the Internal Audit Service-provider |
and the External Auditor.

10.To commission work from the Internal Audit Service-provider and |
External Audit with regard to the resources available and the
existing scope and breadth of their respective work programmes
and the forward plan for the Committee. Subject to budgetary
provision.



Page 189

11.To provide advice to the Council on issues arising out of a fraud
investigation and report any action which has or ought to be taken
by the Council.

Governance & Regulatory

12. To keep under review the Council’s contract procedure rules,
financial regulations, policy documents and other werking-protocels
and-codes-of conduct-and-behaviourrelated to the purpose of the
Committee (not otherwise reserved to the Standards Committee or
Staffing and Urgency Committee) and to recommend any changes
to Council.

13. To review any relevant issue referred to it by the Chief Executive,
S151 Officer, the Assistant Director (Customer Service &
Governance), the Monitoring Officer or any other Council body.

14. To consider any reports of the Assistant Director (Customer
Service & Governance) referred to the Committee for consideration
further to Article 13 of this Constitution.

15. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk
management and corporate governance across the Council.

16. To monitor the Council’s policies on counter fraud and ‘whistle

blowing’, the-Anti-Fraud-& Corruption-Strategy-and to consider any

issues referred to it in accordance with the Council’s whistle blowing
policy and procedures as set out in Part 5 of this Constitution.

17. To oversee the production of the Council’'s Annual Governance
Statement and to recommend its adoption to Full Council. With
respect to the Annual Governance Statement, the Leader’s, Chief
Executive’s, Monitoring Officer’s and Section 151 Officer’s
responsibilities for satisfying themselves with the content and
signing on behalf of the Council.

18. To consider the Council’'s arrangements for corporate governance
and make recommendations about all actions necessary for
compliance with best practice to Full Council.

19. To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other
relevant published regulations, controls, operational standards and
codes of practice.

- tution. Subi z i ¢ the Head-of Civie_L .
and-Legal-Services:




Page 190

Accounts

204. To review and approve the annual statement of accounts and
specifically to consider whether appropriate accounting policies
have been followed and whether there are any concerns arising
from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be
brought to the attention of the Council.

212. To consider the External Auditor’s report to those charged with
governance on issues arising from the audit of the accounts.



Page 191

Audit Committee Remit at other Councils Annex B

Gloucestershire
East Riding
Lincoln

Wakefield

Harrogate

Central Bedfordshire

Leicestershire

Warwickshire

Barnsley

Bradford

As per CIPFA (Guidance on Audit Committees)
As per CIPFA
As per CIPFA

As per CIPFA (but includes ability to recommend
amendments on Financial Regulations/Contract
Rules to Cabinet)

As per CIPFA Rules (but includes ability to
recommend amendments on Financial
Regulations/Contract Rules). Is part of Scrutiny
arrangements so could make recommendations on
constitution to General Purposes sub committee,
then on to full Council

As per CIPFA (but inc ability to recommend
amendments on Financial Regulations/Contract
Rules / risk management framework).

As per CIPFA (but inc ability to recommend
amendments on Financial Regulations/Contract
Rules). Have separate Constitution Committee

As per CIPFA plus is the Standards Committee
(inc ability to recommend amendments on
Financial Regulations/Contract Rules but nothing
else).

As per CIPFA (but inc ability to recommend
amendments on governance related policies etc
specifically related to the Committee).

Amendments can be recommended by Audit
Committee, Standards Committee or Cabinet.

“Maintain an overview of the Councils Corporate
Governance Framework, Constitution and the
partnership arrangements.”



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 193 Agenda Iltem 14

Audit & Governance 21 December 2009

Report of the Director of Resources

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Update

Summary

The purpose of this report is to update Members of the progress being made on
implementing the statutory required changes in financial reporting from UK General
Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) to International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

In accordance with the Local Authority Accounting Practice (LAAP) Bulletin 80 —
Implementation of IFRS - Local Authorities are advised to discuss the implications of IFRS
with those responsible for governance arrangements and update them throughout the
implementation process.

Building on last years closure of accounts process, it is essential that a structured transition
to IFRS is managed and controlled successfully in City of York Council; and that the A&G
committee receive reports to enable them to gain assurance that the matter is being
managed efficiently.

Background

A report introducing the implementation of IFRS was presented to Members of A&G
committee on 21 September 2009 and further updates will be available on a quarterly
basis. The change in financial reporting to IFRS will be fully implemented in the 2010/11
Statement of Accounts, to be reported to A&G by 30 June 2011. The need to include
comparative information for 2009/10 in the first IFRS-based Statement of Accounts means
that the effective date of transition is at 1 April 2009 and the 2009/10 accounts will need to
be restated in IFRS format.

Early planning and preparation are essential to ensuring a smooth conversion to IFRS. It
has been agreed with the Audit Commission that the balance sheet (one of the core
statements in the Statement of Accounts) for the 1 April 2009 will be restated, to
commence the conversion process, by the beginning of March 2010.

In order to achieve this, the more involved “significant” areas of change for IFRS (as
described in the report to A&G on 21 September 2009) are currently being reviewed and
progress on these areas are detailed below. The significant changes are:
i. First time adoption
ii. Increased disclosure requirements
iii. Segmental reporting
iv. Private Finance Initiatives



10.

11.

12.

Page 194

V. Leases

Vi. Assets — Infrastructure, Tangible, Intangible
Vi, Investment properties
viii. Employee benefits

iX. Group Accounts

The first 3 significant changes listed above do not affect the initial restatement of the 1 April
2009 balance sheet so priority has currently been given to the development of other areas.
In addition the IFRS guidance notes are to be issued by CIPFA during December 2009 and
this guidance will give clarity as to the specific requirements for segmental reporting,
disclosure requirements and first time adoption.

The accounting treatment for Private Finance Initiatives has changed under UK GAAP for
the Statement of Accounts 2009/10. These changes are compliant under IFRS. The
required regulation control tests are being applied to the schools PFI to determine if the
asset will be included on the balance sheet in future. Also in order to incorporate this
change in accounting treatment the unitary charge currently made to the developer is being
identified into capital, finance and service elements. By introducing this change in the
Statement of Accounts 2009/10, this assist Local Authorities in the goal to achieve the
required IFRS implementation.

Leases is an area that involves all directorates across the Council. Departments are being
engaged from corporate finance through departmental finance teams. A proforma has
been designed to collate the relevant information to assess the categorisation of a lease
whether it is a finance lease or operating lease. Service contracts are also being looked at.
In the past contracts did not form part of the lease definition however under the new IFRS
regulations a wider scope definition is used to identify leases and more emphasis is being
placed on service contracts and how assets are being used to deliver a service. The key to
the collation of this data is collaborative working across the Council’s directorates and to
date a positive response has been received.

Assets and investment properties — Corporate finance are working in conjunction with
property services to verify that plant, property and equipment values are correct for IFRS
purpose, determine whether assets are categorised correctly, to ensure that the accounting
treatment of revaluations an impairment losses are revised and that surplus assets are
reclassified in the balance sheet from fixed assets to current assets as asset available for
sale.

Employee benefits, along with leases is an area that involves all directorates across the
Council. Corporate finance has met with the Audit Commission and agreed a sampling
approach to collect the required data from all departments. It is necessary to collate the
number of annual leave days that have not been taken in a financial year and apply this to
the salary bill to quantify a monetary value of untaken leave days that can be included in
the accounts. This data is also required for flexi time. At this stage consultation with HR
has occurred and the process will now be cascaded through departments.

Group accounts are reviewed every year under UK GAAP to identify those organisations
that City of York Council has an interest in. For the 09/10 Statement of Accounts Yorwaste
and Veritau will both be grouped for the first time. Under IFRS, the regulations as to



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 195

grouping an organisation have changed and therefore there is now a wider scope where
organisations will be required to be grouped when they did not have to be before.
Corporate finance is currently working in collaboration with North Yorkshire County Council
as to the procedures and processes they have in place for grouping Yorwaste and the
future IFRS requirements.

Consultation

The report shows that over the past 3 months the key to the preparation of IFRS is
collaborative working with all departments across the authority, particularly the engagement
with property services and HR. Corporate Finance are presenting to all finance staff across
the authority in mid December to ensure that they are aware and understand the change in
accounting regulation to IFRS. Corporate finance are also consulting with other Local
Authorities and attended a discussion forum in November with other North Yorkshire
Councils which is to meet on a regular basis going forwards.

Options
It is a statutory requirement to introduce IFRS into local authority accounts for the financial
year 2010/11. No alternative options are available.

Corporate Priorities
The Authority will need to comply with IFRS as financial reporting is one of the measures in
the Use of Resources score forming part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment

Implications

The implications are

« Financial - there are no financial implications to this report as the project work is being
undertaken by existing resources in corporate finance and also across departments.
Human Resources - there are no human resource implications to this report

Equalities - there are no equality implications to this report

Legal - there are no legal implications to this report

Crime and Disorder - there are no crime and disorder implications to this report
Information Technology - there are no information technology implications to this report
as only current IT available is being utilised.

e Property —are no property implications to this report

o Other - there are no other implications to this report

Risk Management
There is a risk to the authority if the Statement of Accounts 2010/11 are not in accordance
with IFRS requirements. It is a statutory obligation, with ultimate government action if there
is none compliance.

Recommendations
That Audit & Governance Committee note the positive progress contained in this report and
recognise the continuing work being undertaken for a smooth transition to IFRS.

Reason: That those responsible for governance arrangements are updated on a regular
basis to ensure that the implementation of IFRS is proceeding in a timely manner for 30
June 2011 implementation.



Page 196

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer responsible for the
report:
Louise Branford-White Keith Best
Technical Finance Manager Assistant Director of Resources (finance)
01904 551187
lan Floyd
Director of Resources
Report \ Date
approved
Specialist Implications Officer(s) None
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All \

For further information please contact the author of this report
Background Working Papers
IFRS information produced by CIPFA



Page 197 Agenda ltem 15

Audit and Governance Committee 21 December 2009

Report of the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service and Governance)

Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit

Summary

1 This report seeks Members’ views on the future arrangements for undertaking
the review the effectiveness of the system of internal audit.

Background

2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, as amended, now require each
local authority to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of its system of
internal audit, and to report the findings of this review to an appropriate
committee. The changes came into effect from 1 April 2006 onwards. The
process is intended to form part of the wider review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control which supports the preparation of the Annual
Governance Statement.

3 All local authorities have a statutory requirement to make provision for internal
audit in accordance with proper standards of professional practice, as set out
in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal audit in Local Government. Internal
Audit is defined as an assurance function that provides an independent and
objective opinion to the organisation on the effectiveness of the control
environment. As such Internal Audit forms an essential part of the council’s
corporate governance arrangements.

4 For 2008/09, the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit was
conducted by the Officer Governance Group and the results were reported to
this Committee on 29 June 2009. It was concluded that the system of internal
audit was working well and that the council’s arrangements for internal audit
following accepted best practice.

Proposed Arrangements for the Review of Effectiveness

5  The review of the effectiveness of internal audit should be performed annually.
The Committee is therefore asked to consider how best to undertake this
exercise for 2009/10 and for future years.



10

11

Page 198

The past year has seen a significant amount of work undertaken to establish
the shared internal audit and counter fraud service with North Yorkshire
County Council. One of the main outcomes of this process has been the
establishment of a new company, Veritau Limited, jointly owned by the two
councils. Responsibility for service provision formally transferred to the new
company on 1 April 2009. For 2009/10 onwards, internal audit and counter
fraud services will be provided to the council in accordance with a service
agreement. As part of this change process both councils have established
client arrangements to monitor the delivery of the service. To ensure
consistency and to avoid unnecessary duplication the two client officers
undertake joint contract monitoring through a Shared Service Contract Board
(SSCB). The SSCB meets on a regular basis to review the performance of the
company against agreed targets, professional standards and other
benchmarking information.

To maintain independence, it is proposed that the SSCB should undertake the
annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit but that this
review should be overseen by the chairs of Audit Committee from the two
councils. The review will include consideration of the results of:

o any Audit Commission review and/or other external inspections of the
work performed by Veritau during the year;

o the annual self assessment performed against the CIPFA Code of
Practice;

o the performance of Veritau against the agreed targets for the year;
o customer satisfaction surveys and similar feedback;

o any benchmarking data.

For this year, it is proposed that the review will be undertaken in February and
March 2010 with the results reported to the next meetings of the two council’s
Audit Committees. For York, this would mean reporting the results of the
review to the meeting of this Committee in April 2010.

The approach set out in this report has been considered by the Audit
Committee at NYCC and agreed.

Options
This report is for consultation purposes. If the approach set out in the report is

not considered to be appropriate then Members are asked to suggest
alternative methods for conducting the review.

Analysis

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.



12

13

14

15

Page 199

Corporate Priorities

This report contributes to the council’s overall aims and priorities by helping to
ensure probity, integrity and honesty in everything we do. In doing so it
contributes to the corporate objective of making the council an Effective
Organisation.

Implications
The implications are:

¢ Financial — there are no financial implications to this report.

e Human Resources (HR) — there are no HR implications to this report.
e Equalities — there are no equalities implications to this report.

e Legal — there are no legal implications to this report.

e Crime and Disorder — there are no crime and disorder implications to this
report.

¢ Information Technology (IT) — there are no IT implications to this report.

e Property — there are no property implications to this report.

Risk Management

The council will fail to properly comply with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 if it fails to complete the annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal audit. This in turn could adversely impact on the
council’'s Use of Resources assessment score.

Recommendations

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are asked to:

- consider the process for conducting the annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal audit;

- agree that future reviews should be undertaken by the Shared Service
Contract Board (SSCB) with the process overseen by the chair of the
Audit Committee. The results of the review will then be reported to the
next meeting of this Committee.

Reason
To enable Members to fulfil their role in assessing the adequacy of the
council’s internal control environment.



Page 200

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Max Thomas Pauline Stuchfield

Head of Internal Audit Assistant Director (Audit & Risk Management)
Veritau Limited Telephone: 01904 551706

01904 552940

Report Approved v Date 7 December 2009

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: Not applicable All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

- Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003

- Accounts and Audit (Amendments) (England) Regulations 2006

- CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006

Annexes

None



	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	5 Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009
	Annex A CAA
	Annex B CAA
	Annex C CAA

	6 Response to Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 (including Improvement Plan 2009/10 Update)
	Annex A Response to CAA

	7 Asset Management Report 2008/09  - Audit Commission
	Annex Asset Management Report 2008-09

	8 Asset Management - The Way Forward
	9 Data Quality Policy - Progress Report
	10 Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter Three 2009/10
	Annex A Key Corporate Risk Monitor 3
	exempt Annex B Key Corporate Risk Monitor 3

	11 Audit and Counter Fraud Mid-Term Monitor
	Annex 1 Audit & Counter Fraud Monitor
	Annex 2 Audit & Counter Fraud Monitor
	Annex 3 Audit & Counter Fraud Monitor
	Annex 4 Audit & Counter Fraud Monitor
	Annex 5 Audit & Counter Fraud Monitor

	12 Follow Up of Audit Recommendations
	13 Review of the Audit & Governance Committee's Terms of Reference (Articles & Functions)
	Annex A review of terms of reference
	Annex B review of terms of reference

	14 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Update
	15 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit

